
 
 
 
 
 
 

NIBLEY CITY 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, January 21, 2016  
6:30 p.m. 

  
Nibley City Hall 

455 West 3200 South 
Nibley, Utah 84321 

 
1. Opening Ceremonies (Councilmember Hansen) 
2. Call to Order and Roll Call (Chair) 
3. Approval of Minutes and Agenda (Chair) 
4. Public Comment Period1 (Chair) 

 
5. Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 16-01: A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ANNUAL MEETING 

SCHEDULE FOR THE NIBLEY CITY COUNCIL 
 

6. Discussion and Consideration of a Site Plan for Stander, Inc., a commercial site located at 2410 S. 
Heritage Drive 

 
7. Discussion of Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 
 
8. Discussion and Consideration of a Request for Proposals for Auditing Services 

 
9. Council and Staff Reports 

 
Adjourn to Closed Session 
 
10. Discussion Regarding Acquisition of Real Property Pursuant to Utah Code 52-4-205 

 
11. Discussion Regarding Personnel Pursuant to Utah Code 52-4-205 – City Manager Annual Review 
 
Adjourn to Open Session 
 
12.  Report on Closed Session and Discussion of City Manager Salary 

 
Adjourn Meeting 
 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS 
FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES WILL BE PROVIDED UPON REQUEST.  FOR ASSISTANCE, 
PLEASE CALL 752-0431 A MINIMUM OF 24 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. 
                                                           
1 Public input is welcomed at all City Council Meetings. 15 minutes have been allotted to receive verbal public comment. Verbal 
comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per person. A sign-up sheet is available at the entrance to the Council Chambers starting 15 
minutes prior to each council meeting and at the rostrum for the duration of the public comment period. Commenters shall identify 
themselves by name and address on the comment form and verbally for inclusion in the record.  Comment will be taken in the order 
shown on the sign-up sheet. Written comment will also be accepted and entered into the record for the meeting if received prior to 
the conclusion of the meeting. Comments determined by the presiding officer to be in violation of Council meeting rules shall be ruled 
out of order. 
 



Nibley City Council  
Agenda Report for 
January 21, 2016 

 
 

 
Agenda Item #5 

Description Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 16-01: A RESOLUTION 
ADOPTING THE ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE NIBLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 
 

Department City Council 
Presenter David Zook, City Manager 
Sponsor n/a 
Applicant n/a 
Background Each year, the Council is required to approve a meeting schedule.  The 

proposed schedule would continue to existing schedule of meeting on 
the first and third Thursday at 6:30 p.m.  However, there are Thursdays 
are omitted from the schedule, including the first in April and the second 
in September, because they occur during the annual League of Cities 
training conferences. The second Thursday in December is also 
omitted from the schedule because it is the traditional date of the City’s 
end of year staff appreciation event.   

Recommendation Discuss the proposed schedule and suggest any desired modifications 
Financial Impact n/a 
Reviewed By Mayor, City Manager 
 

  



 
 
Agenda Item #6  
Description Discussion and Consideration of a Site Plan Approval for Stander, Inc., 

a commercial business to be located at 2410 S. Heritage Drive 
 

Department Planning/Building 
Presenter Shari Phippen, City Planner 
Sponsor n/a 
Applicant Stander, Inc. 
Background By way of general comment, in the past, when a site plan has been for 

a single, small building, the opinion and direction of the Council & 
Commission has been that a concept presentation could be waived and 
that preliminary and final site plan could be done as one approval.  That 
is why this is coming to the Council as a single item. 

 
Stander, Inc is a company that makes home care products that assist 
seniors and others with limited mobility to maintain independent living.  
They are moving their business out of Logan and into Nibley, and have 
purchased property near CampSaver.  They are proposing to build a 
30,000 square-foot building, which is about the same size as 
CampSaver. 

 
Projects that develop in commercially zoned areas are subject to Nibley 
Design Guidelines (DGS) and also require site plan review and 
approval by the City Council and Planning Commission.  The primary 
components of the DGS are: building materials and fenestration. 

 
o Building Materials 
 “To complement and be compatible with the character of 

Nibley, masonry building materials, such as brick, cut stone, 
and concrete block, are to be used as the primary building 
material (60% or greater) of commercial development… Other 
masonry materials, such as concrete block and other types of 
stone may be formed and used in a manner similar to natural 
stone. Other materials may be considered for use as a primary 
building material, based on review by the city… Secondary 
building materials may include brick, stone, concrete block, 
cement stucco, architectural metals, and wood/cement board 
siding. These materials are highly desirable over plastics, 
vinyl, and faux siding materials including synthetic stucco-type 
materials.” (DGS, p.11) 
 

 The building materials on this project are architectural steel 
and stucco.  In the drawings, the grey area is stucco, and the 
red and brown areas are architectural steel.  The requirement 
for 60% primary building materials is intended for those 
surfaces of the building which front public streets.  In this case, 
it is only the front of the building, where all of the windows and 
doors are located. 



 
 The steel is similar in appearance to what is on the sides and 

back of CampSaver. 
 
 The building materials being proposed by Stander are 

compatible with those previously approved for the CampSaver 
building and also with those in place on businesses located in 
the immediate vicinity of Stander’s building.   

 
o Fenestration 
 Fenestration refers to the placement of doors and windows so 

that the building’s walls are not merely flat, uninterrupted 
surfaces.  The requirement, as shown in this drawing, is that at 
pedestrian level (15’ high), 60% of the front of the building 
must be fenestration (doors/windows)  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
 The total square footage of the building front at pedestrian 

level is 2,265, which would require 1,359 sq ft of 
doors/windows.  This project has 1,477.25 sq ft. The 
fenestration is sufficient to meet what the ordinance requires. 

 
In addition to these two primary requirements, the DGS also encourage 
simplicity in building colors, roof lines and screening of 
mechanical/service areas, all of which this building proposal meets. 

 
At the January 13, 2016 meeting, the Planning Commission passed 
a motion to recommend approval of the building materials and 
design. 

 
The other part of this agenda item is approval of the site plan.  When 
site plans are reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission & 
City Council, they are reviewed for compliance with landscaping, 
building siting and parking requirements. 

 
o Landscaping 
 City Code 10-12-17 requires that commercial projects 

landscape 20% of the gross project size (eg: 1 acre lot = .2 
acres of landscaping) and that the setback area of the property 
(20’) be landscaped, with no parking located in that area. 
 

 The project property is 3.19 acres, which requires .64 acres of 
landscaping.  The landscaping plan shows approximately .68 
acres of landscaping. 

 



 10-12-17 also outlines that the landscaping should be a mix of 
trees, grasses and shrubs, with a recommendation that there 
be 1 tree for each 300 square-feet of landscaping. 

 
 When calculating the number of required trees, only those 

portions of the landscaping that can be planted with trees is 
factored.  This does not include areas of landscaping used for 
stormwater retention/detention, as the ponds cannot be 
landscaped beyond the top edges.  The plantable landscape 
on this property is approximately 17,500 square feet which 
would require 58 trees.  The landscape plan proposes 58 trees 
in the plantable areas of the landscaping. 

 
 The remainder of the landscaping is a mix of shrubs and 

grasses.  Additionally, the portion of the property not otherwise 
taken up by more intensive landscape will be low maintenance 
native grasses or xeriscaped. 

 
 It is staff’s opinion and recommendation that the landscaping 

be deemed compliant with City code. 
 

o Building Siting 
 City Code 10-11 imposes a 20’, permanently landscaped 

setback for commercial buildings.  This building is sited 
appropriately to meet that requirement. 

 
o Parking 
 The required number of parking spaces is determined by the 

use of the building.  For this building, for every 2 employees on 
the busiest shift, 1.5 parking spaces are required.  Stander 
currently employees approximately 20 people, which, if all the 
employees were there at the same time, would require 15 
parking spaces.  Their plan proposed 36 regular parking 
spaces plus 2 handicapped parking spaces. 
 

 The parking lot will have two ingress/egress points, which is 
required by our engineering standards and specifications, both 
for traffic flow and for emergency services access. 

 
 It is staff’s opinion and recommendation that the parking be 

deemed compliant with City code. 
 
 Based on all of the above comments, the Planning 

Commission determined the site plan and building design are 
compliant with all relevant City standards and codes and 
passed a motion recommending approval of the site plan. 

 
Recommendation Approve the site plan and building design. 
Financial Impact n/a 
Reviewed By City Manager, City Planner, Planning Commission 
  



Agenda Item #7 

Description Discussion of Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 
 

Department City Council, Planning and Zoning 
Presenter Shari Phippen, City Planner 
Sponsor n/a 
Applicant n/a 
Background In 2011, Landmark Design was contracted by a consortium of Cache 

Valley stakeholders, including Nibley City, to understand values, review 
goals, and develop a plan for development of the south Cache Valley 
US-89 corridor. The Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 
summarizes the results of that process.  
 
Nibley City never adopted the plan. When Mayor Dustin was elected 
two years ago, he was asked to consider it.  At the time, he felt there 
was too much uncertainty about the City’s intentions and values. Mayor 
Dustin elected to wait and take the time to carefully consider the 
impacts.  
 
Mayor Dustin would like the council to review the study and this 
meeting and intends to bring it back as a future agenda item, 
recommending acceptance. Mayor Dustin’s concerns two years ago 
were primarily with economic development and impact on Nibley’s tax 
base.  His opinion now is that 1) we cover our costs adequately every 
year and there is not a strong driver or need for sales tax revenue if we 
control our spending and are wise with our planning 2) there is not a 
strong citizen drive for significant commercial development in Nibley, 
and what people do ask is that whatever we do it be well planned and 
consistent with community values and 3) people in Nibley value open 
space preservation and this plan provides that.  
 
Mayor Dustin’s opinion is that this is a good plan, and that it moves 
Nibley City in the right direction, and that it also gives the City leverage 
in protecting the area around the new park and in working with 
neighboring cities--leverage we don't have if we all go our own way. 
This is an opportunity for the Council to review it before it is put on a 
future agenda for consideration of adoption.  
 
This item is to simply present the study and provide the opportunity for 
staff to answer any preliminary questions.  
 

Recommendation Review plan and ask questions of staff 
Financial Impact Depending on which aspects of the plan are adopted and implemented, 

some areas along US-89 could be prevented from developing, affecting 
future economic growth.  

Reviewed By Mayor, City Manager, City Planner 
 

  



Agenda Item #8 

Description Discussion and Consideration of a Request for Proposals for Auditing 
Services 
 

Department City Council, City Recorder, City Treasurer 
Presenter Stephen Nelson, City Treasurer 
Sponsor n/a 
Applicant n/a 
Background On May 7, 2015, the city council discussed conducting a competitive 

recruitment for auditing services and directed to staff to bring a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) to the Council in January 2016.  As directed, staff 
drafted an RFP in order to conduct a competitive recruitment for 
auditing services.  
 
The goal of the recruitment would be to select an auditor or auditing 
firm that meets the standards expected by the city and which would be 
provided at a competitive price. At the direction of the council, staff is 
ready to issue the RFP for auditing services. 
 
The RFP specifies criteria upon which proposals would be evaluated, 
including licensing, technical experience, qualifications of staff, 
responsiveness of the proposal and the cost of the audit.   
 

Recommendation Direct staff to advertise the RFP and send it to known auditing firms 
Financial Impact The cost for outside auditing services has been approximately $10,000 

per year in recent years. 
Reviewed By Mayor, City Manager, City Treasurer 
  



Agenda Item #12 

Description Report on Closed Session and Discussion of City Manager Salary 
Department City Council 
Presenter Mayor 
Sponsor n/a 
Applicant n/a 
Background Utah Code 52-4-205 allows for closed meetings in limited cases, 

including discussions related to real estate transactions and personnel 
matters.  The Council may or may not report on discussions related to 
the real estate discussion scheduled to take place in the closed 
session.  The other item to be discussed in the closed session is the 
annual review of the City Manager’s performance.  The Council may or 
may not report on that discussion as well.   

Recommendation Report as necessary 
Financial Impact If the Council finds that the City Manager’s performance has been 

satisfactory, the City Manager would receive an annual salary increase 
of 3%.  This would amount to $2,490 per year based on the manager’s 
current salary. 

Reviewed By Mayor  
 



RESOLUTION 16-01 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR THE NIBLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
WHEREAS, the Open and Public Meetings Act, in section 52-4-202 (2) of the Utah 
Code, requires that a public body which holds regular meetings that are scheduled in 
advance over the course of a year shall give public notice at least once each year of its 
annual meeting schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, adopting an annual meeting schedule can make it easier for citizens to be 
involved in civic affairs by making them aware of normal City Council meeting times. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NIBLEY CITY, 
STATE OF UTAH, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Regular meetings for the Nibley City Council shall be held on the dates listed on the 
attached schedule at 6:30 p.m. at Nibley City Hall, which is located at 455 West 3200 
South in Nibley. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The City Council may also call special or emergency meetings pursuant to the 
provisions of the Open and Public Meetings Act.   

 
 
Dated this 21st day of January, 2016 
 
              
       Shaun Dustin, Mayor 
ATTEST 
 
 
       
David Zook, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The following is hereby adopted as the 2016 Nibley City Council meeting schedule.   
 
The below meeting dates all fall on a Thursday and will begin at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

Meeting Date 
January 21, 2016 
February 4, 2016 

February 18, 2016 
March 3, 2016 

March 17, 2016 
April 21, 2016 
May 5, 2016 

May 19, 2016 
June 2, 2016 

June 16, 2016 
July 7, 2016 

July 21, 2016 
August 4, 2016 
August 18, 2016 

September 1, 2016 
October 6, 2016 

October 20, 2016 
November 3, 2016 
November 17, 2016 
December 1, 2016 

 
There may be circumstances that arise and cause a meeting to be cancelled.  
Notification will be made as soon as reasonably possible in the event of a cancellation. 
 
 
 



MAIN FLOOR
100' - 0"

SECOND FLOOR
112' - 0"

T.O. FOOTING
97' - 6"

5 2346789 1

TOP OF EVE
127' - 4"

T.O. PARAPET
130' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET2
132' - 0"

10

T.O. BOTTOM EVE
124' - 0"

1.5

32
' -

 0
"

55' - 1 7/8"178' - 9 5/8"

23
' -

 8
 1

/8
"

5' - 8"33' - 11 1/4"194' - 4 1/4"

24
' -

 0
"

21
' -

 0
"

12' - 0"8' - 0"

2'
 - 

0"

MAIN FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. FOOTING
97' - 6"

52 3 4 6 7 8 91

T.O. PARAPET
130' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET2
132' - 0"

101.5

178' - 9 5/8"55' - 1 7/8"

32
' -

 0
"

30
' -

 0
"

23' - 9"

23
' -

 0
"

18' - 4 1/4"

5'
 - 

6"

18' - 4 1/4"

11
' -

 0
"

8' - 0"

2'
 - 

0"

Scale

APPROVED BY

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

75 SOUTH 600 WEST
LOGAN, UTAH, 84321

P:435.752.4544

SET ISSUE DATE

1 2 3 4

A

B

C

D

CURRENT SET REVISION

PROJECT NUMBER

SHEET COUNT OF

NOTES

E

5

PERMIT SET

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
2
/2

9
/2

0
1
5
 1

:4
7

:1
7
 P

M

AR201

COLOR ELEVATIONS

S
T

A
N

D
E

R
, 
IN

C
 -

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
 &

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

Approver

Author

Checker

2
4
1
0
 H

E
R

IT
A

G
E

 D
R

.
N

IB
L
E

Y
, 
U

T
A

H
 8

4
3
2
1

12/21/2015

10815

12/21/2015

Sheet Revision Schedule

# Date

 1/8" = 1'-0"

D1 EAST ELEVATION COLOR

 1/8" = 1'-0"

B1 WEST ELEVATION COLOR

PROFILE:NUCOR REVERSE CLASSIC
COLOR:BURNISHED SLATE

PROFILE:MCELROY  MEGA-RIB
COLOR:AUTUMN RED

EFFIS
COLOR:TBD

PROFILE:NUCOR REVERSE CLASSIC
COLOR:BURNISHED SLATE

EFFIS
COLOR:TBD

PROFILE:CORRUGATED
COLOR:GALVALUMNE



MAIN FLOOR
100' - 0"

ABC

T.O. PARAPET
130' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET2
132' - 0"

A.6A.9 A.3B.2 A.1

32
' -

 0
"

53' - 1 5/8" 98' - 4 3/4"

30
' -

 0
"

8' - 0 1/2"

21
' -

 0
"

15' - 0 1/2"

10
' -

 9
"

23
' -

 0
"

79' - 8 1/2"

51' - 0 3/8"

2'
 - 

0"

MAIN FLOOR
100' - 0"

A B C

T.O. PARAPET
130' - 0"

T.O. PARAPET2
132' - 0"

30
' -

 0
"

150' - 6" 1' - 0 3/8"

Scale

APPROVED BY

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

75 SOUTH 600 WEST
LOGAN, UTAH, 84321

P:435.752.4544

SET ISSUE DATE

1 2 3 4

A

B

C

D

CURRENT SET REVISION

PROJECT NUMBER

SHEET COUNT OF

NOTES

E

5

PERMIT SET

 3/16" = 1'-0"

1
2
/2

9
/2

0
1
5
 1

:4
7

:1
9
 P

M

AR202

COLOR ELEVATIONS

S
T

A
N

D
E

R
, 
IN

C
 -

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

S
 &

 W
A

R
E

H
O

U
S

E

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

Approver

Author

Checker

2
4
1
0
 H

E
R

IT
A

G
E

 D
R

.
N

IB
L
E

Y
, 
U

T
A

H
 8

4
3
2
1

12/21/2015

10815

12/21/2015

Sheet Revision Schedule

# Date

 3/16" = 1'-0"

D1 NORTH ELEVATION COLOR

 3/16" = 1'-0"

B1 SOUTH ELEVATION COLOR

PROFILE:NUCOR REVERSE CLASSIC
COLOR:BURNISHED SLATE

PROFILE:MCELROY  MEGA-RIB
COLOR:AUTUMN RED

PROFILE:MCELROY  MEGA-RIB
COLOR:AUTUMN RED

EFFIS
COLOR:TBD

METAL FLASHING
COLOR:ALUMINUM TO

MATCH WINDOW MULLION















Landmark Design Team

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

31 August 2011





Table of Contents  Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan i

Table of Contents
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS•iii

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY•v

1 INTRODUCTION•1

BACKGROUND AND SETTING ............................................................... 1

PURPOSE OF THE PLAN ...................................................................... 1

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND ANALYSIS ................................................. 2
CORRIDOR LIMITS ...................................................................................... 2
PRIME FARMLAND ...................................................................................... 2
FLOODPLAINS/WETLANDS/DEPTH TO GROUND WATER ................................ 2
EXISTING LAND USE ................................................................................... 2
EXISTING ZONING ....................................................................................... 2
FUTURE LAND USE ..................................................................................... 2
FUTURE LAND USE COMMERCIAL ACREAGES .............................................. 6
CORRIDOR HISTORY ................................................................................... 6
GENERAL USE OF THE CORRIDOR ................................................................ 6
CORRIDOR AGREEMENT .............................................................................. 6
COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS ....................................................................... 6
TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC .................................................................. 6
DEMOGRAPHICS AND MARKET .................................................................... 9

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND THE ESTABLISHMENT OF KEY ISSUES................ 9
INTERVIEWS ............................................................................................... 9
STEERING COMMITTEE ................................................................................ 9
CHARETTES AND WORKSHOPS  ................................................................... 10
SOUTH CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT PLAN WEB PAGE .................................... 10

IDENTIFICATION OF KEY PLANNING ISSUES ........................................... 10
GENERAL ................................................................................................... 10
TRANSPORTATION ...................................................................................... 10
LAND USE .................................................................................................. 10
OPEN SPACE/VISUAL .................................................................................. 10
PLANNING PROCESS/IMPLEMENTATION ....................................................... 10

2 SOUTH CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT PLAN•11

PREFERRED LAND USE PLAN ............................................................... 11
LOGAN CITY ............................................................................................... 11
NIBLEY CITY ............................................................................................... 11
WELLSVILLE CITY ........................................................................................ 11

TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC .......................................................... 24
TRAFFIC ..................................................................................................... 24
SHORT-TERM .............................................................................................. 24
TYPES OF TRAFFIC ...................................................................................... 24
SHORT-TERM IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES ............................................... 25
LONG-TERM IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES ................................................ 28
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE ........................................................................... 32

ECONOMICS AND MARKET CONDITIONS ............................................... 32
SUSTAINABLE COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ALONG THE CORRIDOR ............ 32
CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL CLUSTERS  ........................................................... 33
GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR RETAIL DEVELOPMENT ....................................... 34

3 IMPLEMENTATION TOOLS•35

LAND USE ....................................................................................... 35
LAND USE GUIDELINES ............................................................................... 35
LANDSCAPE AND STREETSCAPE GUIDELINES ................................................ 35

ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES AND PREFERENCES ..................................... 40
SCALE, MASSING, AND FORM ..................................................................... 40
MATERIALS ................................................................................................ 41
ORIENTATION ............................................................................................. 41
SCREENING ................................................................................................. 41
SIGNAGE .................................................................................................... 41
SUSTAINABILITY ......................................................................................... 41
DESIGN REVIEW ......................................................................................... 42

TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC .......................................................... 42
INTEGRATE UDOT PLANNING/STIP PROCESS .............................................. 42
PURSUE UDOT CORRIDOR PRESERVATION FUNDING ................................... 42
CCCOG FACILITATION OF SALES TAX FOR UDOT 
CORRIDOR PRESERVATION .......................................................................... 42
ACCESS FACILITATION ................................................................................. 42
TRANSIT (FTA) FUNDING ............................................................................ 42

ECONOMY AND FINANCING ................................................................ 43
FINANCIAL TOOLS ...................................................................................... 43

TABLES AND FIGURES

TABLES

1-1    COMPARISON OF GOPB POPULATION PROJECTIONS WITH 
         2010 CENSUS DATA ........................................................................... 9
1-2    2035 POPULATION PROJECTIONS ...................................................... 9
1-3    2060 POPULATION PROJECTIONS ...................................................... 9

2-1    EXISTING AND FUTURE TRAFFIC VOLUMES .......................................... 24
2-2    NUMBER OF IMPACTED PROPERTIES 
           BASED ON SETBACK DISTANCES ........................................................ 25
2-3    ANTICIPATED GROWTH IN TRAFFIC VOLUMES ..................................... 28
2-4    NUMBER OF IMPACTED PROPERTIES BASED ON SETBACK
          DISTANCES ........................................................................................ 32
2-5    COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT IN COMPARATIVE COUNTIES ................. 32
2-6    PROJECTIONS OF SUPPORTABLE RETAIL/OFFICE SQUARE FOOTAGE
          AND CURRENTLY ZONED COMMERCIAL ACREAGES ............................. 33
2-7    PROJECTIONS OF SUPPORTABLE INDUSTRIAL SQUARE FOOTAGE
         AND CURRENTLY ZONED INDUSTRIAL ACREAGE .................................. 33
2-8 PROJECTED SUSTAINABLE CORRIDOR 
          COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ............................................................ 34
2-9   PRIMARY TRADE AREA GUIDELINES .................................................... 34
2-10   CHARACTERISTICS OF SHOPPING CENTERS .......................................... 34

3-1 PROJECTED OPEN SPACE BOND PAYMENTS ........................................ 43

FIGURES

1-1    PROJECT CONTEXT MAP .................................................................... 1
1-2    CORRIDOR LIMITS/PRIME FARMLAND ................................................ 3
1-3    FLOODPLAINS/WETLANDS/DEPTH TO GROUNDWATER ........................ 3
1-4    EXISTING LAND USE .......................................................................... 4
1-5    EXISTING ZONING .............................................................................. 4
1-6    FUTURE LAND USE ............................................................................ 5
1-7    FUTURE COMMERCIAL ACREAGES ...................................................... 5
1-8    EXISTING ROADWAY CROSS SECTION ................................................. 6
1-9    CURRENT US-89/91 CORRIDOR AGREEMENT ...................................... 7



Table of Contentsii Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

1-10  EXISTING LEVEL OF SERVICE ............................................................... 7
1-11  CURRENT ACCESS CONDITIONS .......................................................... 8

2-1     PREFERRED LAND USE PLAN .............................................................. 12
2-2    CORRIDOR OVERVIEW, LOOKING NORTH ABOVE WELLSVILLE 
         TOWARD NIBLEY ............................................................................... 13
2-3   AERIAL VIEW LOOKING NORTH FROM 4400 SOUTH NODE ................. 14
2-4    AERIAL VIEW OVERLOOKING 400 SOUTH NODE ................................. 15
2-5    ELEVATED VIEW OF 4400 SOUTH, LOOKING EAST 
          FROM INTERSECTION ......................................................................... 16
2-6    MOTORIST’S VIEW OF 4400 SOUTH INTERSECTION, 
          LOOKING NORTH ............................................................................... 17
2-7    AERIAL VIEW LOOKING NORTH FROM 3200 SOUTH
         NODE TOWARD LOGAN ..................................................................... 18
2-8    AERIAL VIEW ABOVE THE NIBLEY NODES ........................................... 19
2-9    ELEVATED VIEW OF 3200 SOUTH NODE, LOOKING 
          EAST FROM INTERSECTION ................................................................ 20
2-10 MOTORIST’S VIEW OF 3200 SOUTH INTERSECTION, 
          LOOKING NORTH ............................................................................... 21
2-11   ELEVATED VIEW OF 2600 SOUTH NODE, 
          LOOKING NORTHEAST ....................................................................... 22
2-12   MOTORIST’S VIEW OF 2600 SOUTH NODE,     
          LOOKING NORTH ............................................................................... 23
2-13   SHORT-TERM LEVEL OF SERVICE TO 2035 ........................................... 24
2-14   FUTURE ROADWAY CROSS SECTION................................................... 24
2-15   SHORT-TERM IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES ...................................... 26
2-16   PEDESTRIAN PLANS ........................................................................... 27
2-17    JUGHANDLE INTERSECTION ................................................................ 28
2-18   CONTINUOUS FLOW INTERSECTION.................................................... 28
2-19   LONG-TERM IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES ....................................... 29
2-20   POTENTIAL OVERPASS ILLUSTRATION ................................................ 30
2-21    POTENTIAL UNDERPASS ILLUSTRATION .............................................. 30
2-22   POTENTIAL PEDESTRIAN CROSSING FACILITY ...................................... 30
2-23   SINGLE POINT RURAL INTERCHANGE (SPRI) ....................................... 31
2-24   DIVERGING DIAMOND INTERCHANGE (DDI) ........................................ 31
2-25   LEFT-TURN FLYOVER STRUCTURE (LFS) ............................................. 31

3-1    TYPICAL HIGHWAY AND ROAD SECTIONS ........................................... 36
3-2 EXAMPLE OF MULTI-PURPOSE TRAIL THAT SERVES MULTIPLE USERS .. 36
3-3 EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE LIGHT FIXTURES ..................................... 37
3-4 EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE SITE FURNISHINGS ................................. 37
3-5 ADDITIONAL EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE SITE FURNISHINGS ............. 38
3-6  EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE TREE CHARACTERISTICS ......................... 39
3-7 EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE FENCES AND BARRIERS .......................... 40
3-8  EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE ARCHITECTURAL SCALE AND FORM ........ 40
3-9 EXAMPLES OF APPROPRIATE MATERIALS ...........................................  41



Acknowledgements  Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan iii

Acknowledgements
STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBERS LANDMARK DESIGN TEAM

LANDMARK DESIGN, INC.
MARK VLASIC, PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE, AICP, ASLA, LLA
ROBERT BARNHILL, ASLA 
LISA BENSON, ASLA, LLA
JENNIFER HALE, ASLA
JAN STRIEFEL, AICP, FASLA, LLA

CIVIL SCIENCE
KYLE COMER, P.E.
ANDY KITCHEN, P.E.

LEWIS YOUNG ROBERTSON  BURNINGHAM, INC.
SUSAN C. BECKER, AICP

SPARANO + MOONEY ARCHITECTS
JOHN SPARANO, AIA
SETH STRIEFEL, R.A.

BOWEN STUDIOS
BRENT BOWEN
JACOB SHAPIRO

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE/TECHNICAL 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

WENDELL MORSE
CHAIRMAN OF THE SOUTH CACHE PLANNING GROUP

JAY NIELSON
PROJECT MANAGER

JEFF GILBERT
TRANSPORTATION MANAGER, CACHE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

GLEN GOINS
PLANNING MANAGER, LOGAN CITY

JOSH RUNHAAR
CACHE COUNTY DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

SHARI PHIPPEN
NIBLEY CITY PLANNER

WENDELL MORSE
CHAIRMAN OF THE SOUTH CACHE 
PLANNING GROUP 

DALE BANKHEAD 
CORRIDOR PROPERTY OWNER

THOMAS BAILEY
MAYOR, WELLSVILLE CITY

WAYNE BARLOW
UTAH DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION

DAVE COWLEY
UTAH STATE UNIVERSITY

HOLLEY DAINES
LOGAN CITY COUNCIL

SANDY EMILE
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

DON HARTLE
WELLSVILLE CITY MANAGER

BRAD HUMPHREYS
UTAH DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION

CLARK ISRAELSON
AGRICULTURE

LARRY JACOBSEN
NIBLEY CITY COUNCIL 

TOM JENSEN
COMMUNITY

GERALD KNIGHT
MAYOR, NIBLEY CITY

STEVE KYRIOPOULOS 
RESIDENT

CARL LEATHAM
WELLSVILLE CITY COUNCIL

LYNN LEMON
CACHE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

LARRY MILLER
TRANSPORTATION INDUSTRY

PAUL NORTON
AMERICAN WEST HERITAGE CENTER

MATT PETERSON 
RESIDENT

CRAIG PETERSON
CACHE REGIONAL COUNCIL

SHARI PHIPPEN
NIBLEY CITY PLANNER

LARAINE SWENSON
LOGAN CITY COUNCIL

RANDY WATTS
MAYOR, LOGAN CITY

CURT WEBB
UTAH STATE LEGISLATURE

GORDON ZILLES
CACHE COUNTY/AGRICULTURE





Executive Summary  Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan v

Executive Summary
The South Corridor of US-89/91 in Cache Valley is a place of special 
beauty with a genuine “sense of place”. It is also the site of a busy 
highway that provides an important link with places and markets beyond. 
As the valley has grown and evolved, highway traffi c has increased, 
threatening the qualities that make the corridor desirable.

Three communities are located along the corridor – Wellsville, Nibley and 
Logan. Key facilities such as the South Campus of Utah State University 
and the American West Heritage Center are also located within the 
corridor.  In-between are streams, creeks, natural features, homesteads 
and fi elds, and a few roadside businesses. While the South Corridor is of 
obvious importance to the people and places closest to it, the corridor is a 
critical component of the valley as a whole. 

The purpose of the Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan is to 
provide a framework for the physical development of private and public 
land within the South Corridor area. The plan is intended to guide future 
growth and development in the corridor for years to come.

The primary objectives of the Cache Valley South Corridor Development 
Plan include:

• Creating a transportation system which produces an effi cient fl ow of 
goods, services, and travelers while sustaining business and industry;

• Providing opportunities for the full participation of all government 
entities within the corridor to manage future growth along the corridor; 
and

• Directing new growth in a manner that is consistent with the principles 
of the Envision Cache Valley process and which identifi es future land 
uses, roadways, and vehicular access points.

The Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan envisions a corridor 
where development is concentrated at key nodes, and open space buffers 
are established to help maintain the open, rural feel of the corridor. The 
Preferred Land Use Plan represents a consensus planning direction and 
a comprehensive development vision for the corridor. Other key ideas 
include the following:

• Widening of the US-89/91 right-of-way to incorporate all traffi c lanes, 
medians, shoulders, turn lanes, storm water drains, trails, safety 
buffers, and other facilities as part of the highway.

• Limiting development to “clustered nodes” at existing and future 
intersections. Each node should be designed in a comprehensive 

manner, merging the development goals of each community with the 
integrated corridor vision. 

• Establishing a multi-purpose trail along both sides of the highway. 
Additional design efforts and coordination with UDOT and other 
project partners is necessary to ensure that these facilities meet 
roadway and safety design standards.

• Establishing 300’ and 500’ open space buffers along both sides of the 
highway, depending on the proximity to the clustered nodes.

• Prohibiting new residential uses within the open space buffers, 
helping eliminate the need for sound walls, berms and other obtrusive 
buffering techniques.

• Encouraging residential, commercial, mixed-use and industrial uses 
within the existing cities of Wellsville, Nibley and Logan to the greatest 
degree possible.

• Prohibiting strip development along the highway.

• Encouraging better property maintenance and upkeep.

• Prohibiting commercial advertising signs along the highway.

• Adjusting of land earmarked for commercial uses to match realistic 
market projections.

The Plan concludes with a series of Implementation Tools to help 
guide future growth and development in the corridor. These include land 
use, landscape, streetscape and architecture guidelines, in addition to 
transportation, traffi c, economic and fi nancing tools and opportunities. 
Since implementation will ultimately be directed by the three 
municipalities and Cache County, the tone of this section is descriptive 
rather than prescriptive, providing a level of generalization and fl exibility 
necessary to meet the specifi c needs of each.



1 Introduction1 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

1 Introduction
BACKGROUND AND SETTING

As one travels north on U.S. Highway 89/91 through Wellsville Canyon 
and begins to descend into Cache Valley, it is clear why a plan for the 
South Corridor is required. This is a very special place with unique 
patterns, viewsheds and qualities that typify the Cache Valley experience. 

The agricultural fi elds, individual homes and pastures dominate 
the closest views, while residential neighborhoods, stands of trees, 
homesteads and towns punctuate the middle views. These are 
interspersed by wide swaths of open land and fi elds, which trace the 
sinuous fl ow of small streams, rivers and canals. The beautiful peaks of 
the Bear River Mountains enclose the eastern edge of the valley, while to 
the west the shoulders of the Wellsville Mountains provide a soft transition 
to the steep peaks above.  

The nearly ten-mile long corridor is a place of special beauty with a 
genuine “sense of place”. It provides a glimpse of the rich agricultural 
heritage and a clear view of a rural landscape that continues to make 
Cache Valley such a desirable place to live, work, and visit. 

But the South Corridor is much more than that. It is the site of US 89/91 
– a busy highway and an important connection with the world beyond. 
The highway is critical to the valley economy, helping to ensure the area 
remains a thriving and desirable place. As the valley has grown and 
evolved in recent years, traffi c on the highway has also increased.  This 
is a trend that will undoubtedly continue in the future, threatening the 

qualities that make the South Corridor so desirable. 

As illustrated in Figure 1-1, three communities are located along the 
corridor - Wellsville to the south, Nibley in the middle, and Logan furthest 
north. In-between is a range of unincorporated county land, which 
includes the South Campus of Utah State University, the American West 
Heritage Center, a range of large and small farms, numerous open 
spaces and fi elds, the Little Bear River and smaller streams, individual 
homes and homesteads, and a few roadside businesses. 

While the South Corridor is of obvious importance to the people and 
places closest to it, the decisions that affect it have impacts on the rest of 
the valley as well.

PURPOSE OF THE PLAN

The purpose of the Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan is to 
formulate a framework for the physical development of private and public 
land within the South Corridor area. The plan is intended to guide future 
growth and development in the corridor for years to come. 

One of the key functions of this plan is to strike a balance between 
growing traffi c and highway expansion, and the preservation of those 
qualities that make the corridor unique. Another role is the establishment 
of a common vision that can be implemented over time. With careful 
planning it is possible to avoid the pitfalls of “wall-to-wall” development 
that has taken place along the highway further to the north, and preserve 
the characteristics that make Cache Valley special.

The primary objectives of the Cache Valley South Corridor Development 
Plan include:

• Creating a transportation system, on and adjacent to the corridor, 
which produces an effi cient fl ow of goods, services, and travelers 
while sustaining business and industry in Cache Valley for many years 
to come;

• Providing an opportunity for the full participation of all government 
entities within the plan area in the consistent management of future 
growth along the southern corridor; and 

• Directing new growth that is consistent with the principles of the 
Envision Cache Valley process and which specifi es future land uses, 
future roadways, and vehicular access points.

Figure 1-1 Project Context Map



1 Introduction Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 2

This plan is a cooperative effort of the South Corridor Planning Group 
(SCPG), which is composed of Cache County, Logan City, Nibley 
City, Wellsville City, Utah State University (USU), Utah Department of 
Transportation (UDOT), and a range of Cache Valley business and 
community interests. 

The plan builds upon the numerous studies and processes that have 
taken place previously. Chief among these are Envision Cache Valley; 
the general plans, zoning and related planning information provided by 
the Cities of Wellsville, Nibley and Logan; the Cache County General 
Plan and related zoning information; mapping and digital data provided 
by corridor communities, Cache County, Cache Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (CMPO), and Bear River Association of Governments 
(BRAG); Cache Valley 2030 – the Future Explored; Little Bear Watershed 
Study; Census 2010 and the Governor’s Offi ce of Planning and Budget 
(GOPB) demographic data; and information and ideas provided by 
members of the public and elected offi cials as part of the community 
involvement process. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS AND ANALYSIS

The Cache Valley South Corridor planning process began with an 
investigation of existing conditions. The following is summary of some 
of the most critical fi ndings - both natural and man-made - that impact 
development and growth in the corridor. 

CORRIDOR LIMITS
As illustrated in Figure 1-2, a one-mile corridor boundary was established 
on each side of US-89/91 to defi ne the preliminary study area. It was 
eventually determined that some aspects of the plan (views, visual 
qualities and natural systems, for example) extend well beyond this 
boundary, requiring a broader interpretation of the corridor as necessary.  

PRIME FARMLAND
Rich soils and fl at topography result in landscape dominated by prime 
farmlands. A key function of the plan is to maintain the rich agricultural 
heritage of the area while dealing with the inevitable rise in highway traffi c 
and corresponding development pressure in the corridor.

FLOODPLAINS/WETLANDS/DEPTH TO GROUND WATER
Figure 1-3 illustrates the dynamic hydrologic conditions found in the 
corridor and beyond. Water generally fl ows in a southwest to northwest 
direction along defi ned streams and associated wetlands. The land 
becomes increasingly wet along these routes, limiting their use for 
development purposes on the west side of the highway in particular. 
Flooding is common along these zones during spring runoff period. The 
depth to groundwater is less than ten feet throughout the corridor, limiting 
growth and development options.

EXISTING LAND USE
The dominant land use is agricultural. As depicted in Figure 1-4, 
residential uses are clustered in four communities (Wellsville, Nibley, 
Logan and nearby Hyrum), with residential farms and farmsteads 
scattered throughout the agricultural areas, particularly on the west side 
of the highway. Farms and farmsteads tend to be located along county 
roads in close proximity to utility lines. The “grid and block” pattern that 
dominates central Wellsville and Hyrum contrasts with the sinuous road 
layouts in Logan and Nibley, illustrating distinct eras of development and 
community planning.

Commercial uses are concentrated along the southern extents of Logan 
City adjacent to the highway corridor, and to a much smaller degree in 
Hyrum, Nibley and Wellsville. The USU South Farm Complex (which 
includes the South Farm, George B. Caine Dairy and the American West 
Heritage Center) dominates the central portion of the site, straddling both 
sides of the highway. Signifi cant tracts of vacant land are located along 
the outer edges of Wellsville and Nibley, and to a lesser degree, Logan. 

EXISTING ZONING
Figure 1-5 illustrates the zoning patterns of the three corridor cities. 
Residential zones dominate each, although the patterns and distribution 
varies signifi cantly. For example, residential density is highest in the 
central portion of Wellsville, with low-density residential zones abutting 
the highway. Wellsville commercial zoning is dominated by a large swath 
of undeveloped land on the east side of the highway that encompasses 
the Caine Dairy and adjacent lands.

The density of residential zoning in Nibley generally increases from east 
to west, with limited residential uses directly abutting the highway. Strips 
of commercially-zoned land are located on both sides of the highway 
between 2600 and 3200 West. 

Residential zones in the southern portions of Logan are set back from 
the highway and buffered by commercial, park and similar uses. The 
Gateway Zone straddles both sides of the highway in the southern 
extents of the community, and has largely been developed and built-out.
    
FUTURE LAND USE
Figure 1-6 illustrates the future development vision of the three 
communities. It also indicates the proposed annexation boundaries of the 
three communities, which confl ict in several locations. 

The land use visions of Wellsville, Nibley and Logan agree on the need to 
protect sensitive open spaces, sensitive lands and the bulk of the prime 
farm land. Wellsville envisions residential development on both sides of 
the highway beyond a 200’ buffer zone. A large commercial development 
is envisioned in Wellsville on the west side of the highway south of the 
USU South Campus Complex.



1 Introduction3 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 1-2 Corridor Limits/Prime Farmland Figure 1-3 Floodplains/Wetlands/Depth to Groundwater



1 Introduction Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 4

Figure 1-4 Existing Land Use Figure 1-5 Existing Zoning



1 Introduction5 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 1-6 Future Land Use Figure 1-7 Future Commercial Acreages



1 Introduction Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 6

A narrow strip of commercial and industrial land lines both sides of the 
highway in Nibley, illustrating the community’s vision for highway-oriented 
commercial development. The fi rst project to be implemented according 
to this concept is Petersen’s Country Store, which is located on the 
west side of the highway near 2600 South. The project is only partially 
complete and largely unoccupied. It has generated substantial scrutiny 
and debate, particularly regarding the design, visual impact, and lack 
of economic success. The land surrounding the project was recently 
incorporated into Logan City at the request of property owners, effectively 
eliminating expansion of the envisioned concept.

The future land use vision in Logan illustrates a desire to establish the 
south entrance into the City as a “corporate campus/gateway” and a 
memorable entrance experience. Logan’s vision includes agricultural and 
rural preservation areas along the south edge of the community, refl ecting 
the shared vision of all three communities to preserve agricultural land 
and open space along their edges thereby enhancing the sense of three 
separate cities.

FUTURE LAND USE COMMERCIAL ACREAGES
Figure 1-7 illustrates that the commercial acreages contained in the 
Future Land Use Maps of Wellsville and Nibley far exceed demand over 
the next 50 years. A critical function of this plan is to ensure that the future 
land use vision refl ects realistic projections.

CORRIDOR HISTORY
US-89/91 in Cache Valley facilitates travel between northern Utah and 
various locations in southeastern Idaho. The highway also serves as a 
primary connection between Cache Valley and the Salt Lake and Idaho 
Falls population centers.  This corridor has traditionally served as the 
primary access for goods and services between the agricultural areas and 
built-up communities throughout the corridor.  

Prior to the mid-1970’s this route served as an international commerce 
route between California and the Canadian border. With the installation 
of Interstate 15, the corridor now serves as the primary corridor for travel 
through Cache Valley. The Logan, Utah – Idaho Metropolitan Statistical 
Area is one of the few metropolitan areas in Utah of its size that is not 
connected via an interstate highway. Members of the public have stated 
on several occasions that this corridor is Cache Valley’s “freeway”.

The South Corridor begins in Wellsville Canyon on the south and 
proceeds into and through Logan City, to the aforementioned service 
areas. US-89/91 within the study area is 9.8 miles of 5 lane roadway 
owned and controlled by the Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT).  
The right-of-way for the roadway ranges from 104 feet to 213 feet in 
width, with a typical width of 120 feet.

GENERAL USE OF THE CORRIDOR
The primary land uses surrounding the corridor have traditionally been 
agricultural, with several farmsteads located directly adjacent to the 
roadway. The roadway has long been used as a way for farmers to travel 
between farm sections and for hauling harvest to market.  As Logan City 
has grown, the corridor has experienced a transition to more commercial 
and retail type land uses.  Additionally, large scale employment centers in 
the area have utilized the US-89/91 corridor to access the adjoining city 
road networks. As the transition to more commercial use has occurred, 
the interaction of trucks, passenger vehicles and farm equipment has 
created increased public safety and capacity concerns.

CORRIDOR AGREEMENT
Foreseeing the future growth and transition of the traffi c characteristics 
within the valley, the municipalities in the valley previously worked 
cooperatively with UDOT to develop a plan to mitigate transportation 
concerns along this corridor. This action plan, referred to as the Corridor 
Agreement was supported by the 2005 South US-89/91 Transportation 
Corridor Study and related public/agency coordination. The Corridor 
Agreement identifi ed intersection control measures as well as access 
management requirements.  Figure 1-9 identifi es the study area and 
the proposed features identifi ed within the Corridor Agreement and 
supporting traffi c study.  

COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS
The corridor passes through three municipal jurisdictions. Wellsville has 
two primary connections from the corridor via State Road (SR) 23 and 
SR-101. Nibley City has primary connections to the corridor from 3200 
South and 2600 South. Logan City occupies the north portion of the study 
area where US-89/91 turns into Main Street. There is also an intersection 
connection to SR-252 (1000 West) that provides additional north/south 
access into Logan City.  

TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC

EXISTING TRAFFIC CONDITIONS
In order to understand future corridor needs, an analysis of anticipated 
traffi c and travel conditions was performed. The Cache Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (CMPO) has the responsibility for transportation 
planning within the Cache Valley area. The CMPO is currently in the 
process of updating its long-range plan out to the year 2035.  A draft 
study entitled Cache County, Utah Regional Transportation Plan, 2035 
includes traffi c analysis and modeling for all major roads within the valley, 
including US-89/91.  The existing daily traffi c volumes on the corridor as 
represented within this study range from 23,600 to 27,500. 

In order to categorize the relative congestion on roadways, a recognized 
standard called Level of Service (LOS) has been established and applied 

to this study.  According to this system, LOS can range from A-E, with “A” 
describing free-fl ow operations and “E” describing operations at capacity. 
Figure 1-10 illustrates relative values of LOS along the corridor. The 
baseline that UDOT typically utilizes for planning purposes representing 
conditions that are at or near free-fl ow capacity is LOS C-D range. The 
existing CMPO traffi c volumes for the US-89/91 corridor vary from LOS 
A to LOS C, and therefore appear to be operating within the acceptable 
range.  

Vehicles that utilize the roadway range from passenger vehicles to large 
semi-trailers. Truck traffi c is a substantial component of the corridor, 
servicing commercial interests in Cache Valley as well as providing a 
connection to Southern Idaho and Northern Utah. Agricultural equipment 
and vehicles access the corridor primarily in the southern end of the study 
area. 

TRANSIT AND NON-MOTORIZED CONDITIONS
A UDOT park-and-ride lot is located at the southern end of the valley 
along Center Street (SR-23) in Wellsville. The lot is typically fi lled 
to capacity on weekdays, primarily by commuters traveling through 
Wellsville Canyon and points south.  

The Cache Valley Transit District provides bus service within the Logan 
area and in a limited capacity to Nibley and Hyrum.  

ROADWAY CONFIGURATION

Cross Section
US-89/91 is classifi ed by UDOT as a Major Arterial roadway with a posted 
speed of up to 60 miles per hour.  The asphalt surfaced roadway consists 
of two travel lanes in each direction along with a striped center median. 
The existing roadway width varies from 80 to 90 feet and the right-of-way 
varies from 104 feet to 213 feet.  Figure 1-8 depicts the typical current 
roadway section.

Since the US-89/91 corridor traverses predominantly through agricultural 
and undeveloped areas, there is no curb and gutter along the edges of 

Figure 1-8 Existing Roadway Cross Section



1 Introduction7 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 1-9 Current US-89/91 Corridor Agreement 
Figure 1-10 Existing Level of Service



1 Introduction Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 8

the roadway. This results in surface runoff being collected and conveyed 
in roadside ditches that run along, and adjacent to, the roadway. The 
current confi guration of the roadway includes acceleration/deceleration 
lanes at various intersection locations, including SR-252 (1000 West), 
3200 South, and SR-101. These auxiliary lanes improve the safety of 
traffi c entering and exiting the highway.  

Topography 
US-89/91 crosses several waterways including Blacksmith Fork River, 
Hyrum Slough, and Little Bear River.  There is also a railroad crossing, 
just north of SR-101 that provides limited rail service into the area.  There 
are relatively steep grades on the south portion of the corridor, near the 
mouth of Wellsville Canyon, which results in increased access challenges 
and speed conditions.   

ACCESSES
The corridor has historically provided access to adjacent agricultural 
areas and residential properties. The majority of these front the existing 
roadway and have a single driveway access directly onto US-89/91. 
Figure 1-11 illustrates the large number of existing driveways and the 
higher density of accesses north of the highway’s intersection with 
SR-101.  The number of driveways coupled with the typical backing 
maneuver that is required to regain access, results in safety concerns 
that have prompted UDOT to pursue access limitations. In 1987 UDOT 
undertook a project to obtain access control along the corridor from SR-
101 to the mouth of Wellsville Canyon. This effort resulted in the access 
locations shown on Figure 1-11 as well as limitations of future expansion 
beyond the sizing shown at that time.  

CORRIDOR AGREEMENT
In 2006, the corridor municipalities and UDOT cooperatively formalized 
the Corridor Agreement that identifi ed access and intersection control 
conditions planned for the immediate future. This agreement called for 
the installation of two new signals along the corridor at SR-252 (1000 
West) in Logan and 3200 South in Nibley, when they each become 
warranted. The agreement further allowed for two other signals based 
upon implementation of the fi rst two signals and the faithful pursuit of 
access control consistent with UDOT’s Administrative Rule R930-6 and 
the Cache Access Management Policy.  One of these potential signals 
is located at approximately 4400 South (where the Caine Dairy access 
exists). The other could be placed at the intersection of US-89/91 and 
either 2600 South (1600 West) or 2300 South.

The parties involved also agreed that no other intersections may be 
signalized. Instead, to alleviate future confl icts, any un-signalized 
intersection or access may be restricted to a right-in/right-out access only 
or a similar restriction.

As part of the Corridor Agreement, the three cities agreed to master 
Figure 1-11 Current Access Conditions



1 Introduction9 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

plan and pursue roadway projects to fulfi ll the Preferred Options and 
Key Recommendations, as outlined in the related South US-89/91 
Transportation Corridor Study (December 30, 2005.)

DEMOGRAPHICS AND MARKET

DEMOGRAPHIC PROJECTIONS
Cache Corridor demographic projections are based on several sources: 
recently released 2010 Census population fi gures at the block and place 
level; Utah Governor’s Offi ce of Planning and Budget (GOPB); and traffi c 
area zone (TAZ) data prepared by the Cache Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (CMPO).  Projections were made for two 25-year periods, 
beginning with Census 2010 data; therefore, for the years 2035 and 2060.

2010 Census Data
Recently released 2010 Census data was used to establish the baseline 
from which future growth projections were made for the County. Future 
projections were then based on the 2010 Census data, using growth rates 
from the GOPB and TAZ as described in following sections. Table 1-1 
demonstrates how 2010 Census data has been used to update the 2010 
GOPB projections. It also illustrates which communities, over the past few 
years, experienced growth that was greater than or lesser than what was 
anticipated (i.e., the GOPB projections for 2010).  The two cities that had 
greater than anticipated growth were Nibley and Providence.

TABLE 1-1 - COMPARISON OF GOPB POPULATION PROJECTIONS 
WITH 2010 CENSUS DATA

2010 GOPB Estimate 
(2008 Baseline 

Projections)

2010 Census

Cache County 117,758 112,656
Hyde Park 3,992 3,833
Hyrum 8,342 7,609
Logan 52,776 48,174
Millville 2,027 1,829
Nibley 4,224 5,438
North Logan 8,432 8,269
Paradise 982 904
Providence 6,795 7,075
River Heights 1,705 1,734
Smithfi eld 9,808 9,495
Wellsville 3,575 3,432

Traffi c Area Zone Data (TAZ)
The Cache Metropolitan Planning Organization (CMPO) makes long-term 
socioeconomic forecasts through 2040. The CMPO data is based on 

traffi c area zones. Because TAZ boundaries do not match the municipal 
boundaries, the TAZ areas have been aggregated and/or subdivided as 
closely as possible to conform to the existing municipal boundaries. 

While the forecasts prepared by CMPO are controlled at the County 
level by the GOPB’s projections, CMPO has the authority and fl exibility 
to adjust and allocate growth fi gures to different areas within the County. 
Because of CMPO’s greater familiarity with Cache County, the CMPO 
growth rates from 2010 to 2040 were applied to the 2010 Census fi gures 
in order to calculate the population for the fi rst 25-year period – to 2035, 
as shown in Table 1-2.

TABLE 1-2 - 2035 POPULATION PROJECTIONS

Census 
2010 

Population

TAZ 2010 
Population 
Estimate

TAZ 2010 – 
2040 AAGR*

2035 
Population 
Projections

Cache 
County

112,656

Hyrum 7,609 7,880 2.30% 13,922      
Logan 48,174 50,770 1.18% **75,000
Mendon 1,282 2,060 1.85% 3,257
Millville 1,829 2,600 2.78% 5,161
Nibley 5,438 5,760 4.69% 18,115
Paradise 904 1,090 1.31% 1,509
Providence 7,075 6,330 1.50% 9,173
River Heights 1,734 2,020 0.60% 2,348
Wellsville 3,432 4,270 2.47% 7,852
*AAGR = Average Annual Growth Rate
**Projection based on input from Logan City; not based on TAZ AAGR from 2010-2040

 
GOPB Projections
GOPB makes projections for a 50-year period – through 2060. This is 
20 years longer than the TAZ projections which extend through 2040.  
Therefore, while TAZ growth rates are applied to the entire fi rst 25-year 
period (2010-2035), TAZ growth rates are only applied to the fi rst fi ve 
years of the second 25-year period. In other words, TAZ rates are applied 
to 2035-2040, and then GOPB growth rates are applied to the period 
from 2040 to 2060. These two rates are combined in Table 1-3 to make 
projections for the period from 2035-2060. 

These projections are critical information, particularly for the 
establishment of realistic commercial acreage projections that follow. 

TABLE 1-3 - 2060 POPULATION PROJECTIONS

 2010 
Census 
Population

2010-
2040 
AAGR* 
(TAZ)

2035 
Population 
Estimate

2040 
Estimate**

GOPB 
AAGR 
2040-
2060

2060 
Population 
Estimate

Cache 
County

112,656    

Hyrum 7,609 2.30% 13,922 15,600 1.94% 22,893 
Logan 48,174 1.18% 75,000 80,000 1.95% 117,819 
Mendon 1,282 1.85% 3,257 3,570 1.99% 5,298 
Millville 1,829 2.78% 5,161  5,920 2.44%           9,596 
Nibley 5,438 4.69% 18,115 22,780 2.20% 35,231 
Paradise 904 1.31% 1,509      1,610 1.99%      2,389 
Providence 7,075 1.50% 9,173     9,880 2.95%     17,670 
River 
Heights

1,734 0.60% 2,348   2,420 0.33% 2,585 

Wellsville 3,432 2.47% 7,852   8,870 1.62% 12,223 
*AAGR = average annual growth rate

**Based on TAZ projected growth rates from 2010-2040

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCESS

As detailed in the Appendix and summarized below, the public 
involvement process was extensive.

INTERVIEWS
At the beginning of the planning process, interviews were conducted with 
key staff members and the leadership of Wellsville, Nibley, Logan, Cache 
County, Bear River Association of Governments, UDOT and others. The 
purpose was to clearly understand the current vision and ideas for the 
South Corridor in each community and key groups.

STEERING COMMITTEE
Project steering committee meetings were held on four occasions, in 
order to provide direction and guidance to the planning team as the 
plan was developed. The committee was chaired by Wendell Morse, 
and included representatives of Cache County, Logan, Nibley and 
Wellsville, in addition to UDOT, the Chamber of Commerce, agricultural 
interests, Utah State University, the transportation industry, the State 
Legislature, the American West Heritage Center, nearby property 
owners, and other members of the public. Each representative signed 
a Partnering Agreement (see Appendix) at the beginning of the study, 
which defi nes the purpose of the committee, and provides a consensus 
vision statement.  The steering committee approved the following Vision 
Statement, which described the intent of the plan:



1 Introduction Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 10

VISION STATEMENT

“The South Corridor is a critical element of Cache County as a 
whole. In addition to facilitating the fl ow of goods, services and 
people along Highway 89/91 and destinations to the north and 
south, the corridor is a place of future growth and economic 
development for the valley as a whole, and for Nibley, Wellsville 
and Logan in particular. The corridor is a place that is defi ned by 
its beautiful setting, including the unique visual characteristics of 
adjacent fi elds, settlements and distant mountains which recall the 
historic roots of the area. As one passes through the corridor, one 
begins to understand the unique “sense of place” and the future 
potential of the place and its surroundings.

The South Corridor should be a place that grows responsibly 
without compromising the values and cherished features of 
this special place. In order to strike a balance between corridor 
growth, development and preservation, a united approach and 
a cooperative spirit is required by all participating parties. The 
result will be a comprehensive vision that facilitates the smooth 
fl ow of traffi c through the valley, creates a safe and effi cient 
transportation corridor, minimizes traffi c confl icts, maximizes 
positive development potentials, and aligns local community needs 
and desires with those of the county, region and natural conditions 
of the surrounding landscape.”

CHARETTES AND WORKSHOPS 
At the outset of the project, three Public Scoping Meetings were held over 
two days at locations in Nibley, Wellsville and Cache County. The purpose 
of the meetings was to help defi ne the key issues to be addressed in the 
plan. The meetings were well-attended, and the information provided was 
signifi cant (see Appendix for details).

Once Alternative Planning Concepts were developed, a day-long Public 
Workshop was held at the American West Heritage Center. Approximately 
50 people attended the workshop. The input and ideas that were received 
were helpful in the formation of the Preliminary Preferred Plan for the 
corridor. 

SOUTH CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT PLAN WEB PAGE
The Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan Web Page was 
hosted by Landmark Design, providing project news and access to plan 
data and information throughout the planning process. To date, the project 
web page has received over 600 unique page views.  

IDENTIFICATION OF KEY PLANNING ISSUES

The identifi cation of important planning ideas, opportunities, and 
constraints emerged as part of the analysis and public scoping process. 
The following is a summary of the Key Planning Issues that were 
identifi ed, with more details provided in the Appendix.

GENERAL
• Develop implementation strategies that encourage cooperation and 

coordinated implementation by Wellsville, Nibley, Logan and Cache 
County;

• Coordinate and utilize information and tools contained in past studies 
and plans;  

• Develop tools and ideas that promote economic and land use equity;
• Strike a balance between individual property rights and community 

interests; and
• Be sensitive to existing residences/neighborhoods along the corridor.

TRANSPORTATION
• Minimize transportation confl icts/maintain safety;
• Keep traffi c fl owing; and
• Incorporate alternative transportation types and modes, public transit, 

bicycle paths.

LAND USE
• Focus development at town centers;
• Create commercial clusters;
• Allow traffi c lights only at commercial clusters;
• Use buffering, clustering, and other tools to help locate and design 

development properly;
• Identify and consider only the most feasible land uses; and
• Preserve agricultural uses along the corridor.

OPEN SPACE/VISUAL
• Maintain open space/rural character/views;
• Protect opens space using appropriate tools (conservation 

easements, clustering, etc.); and
• Keep the corridor free from billboards and other signage.

PLANNING PROCESS/IMPLEMENTATION
• Create and implement a plan that is fair to all of the communities 

involved in the planning process;
• Balance private property rights with public needs; and
• Incorporate all voices into the planning process.



1 Introduction11 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

2 South Corridor Development Plan
PREFERRED LAND USE PLAN

The Preferred Land Use Plan represents the consensus planning 
direction and comprehensive development vision for the corridor. The 
following are some of the key ideas of the plan, which is illustrated on the 
following page:

• UDOT should obtain suffi cient right-of-way to implement the 
improvements envisioned in the plan, including all anticipated lanes, 
shoulders, safety zones and the multi-purpose trails/farm roads. 
As elements of the highway, it is assumed that UDOT will have 
the primary responsibility for implementing and maintaining these 
features.

• Development along the corridor should be limited to “clustered nodes” 
located at the following existing and proposed intersections:

 - SR23/Center Street (Wellsville)
 - Main Street/5000 South (Wellsville)
 - 4400 South (Wellsville) 
 - 3200 South (Logan/Nibley)  
 - 2600 South (Logan/Nibley) 
 - 1000 West Gateway (Logan)

• Each node should be designed in a comprehensive manner, merging 
the development goals of each community with the integrated 
corridor vision. For example, 2600 South could be transformed into a 
commercial/big-box/mixed-use node, 3200 South into a commercial/
mixed-use node, and 4400 South into an industrial/mixed-use node.

• Establishment of open space land use buffers along the length of 
the highway, providing adequate space between the highway and 
adjacent uses, thereby avoiding the need for sound walls, berms and 
other obtrusive noise and safety mitigation techniques.

• Establishment of a 500’ Open Space buffer on each side of the 
highway centerline between the clustered nodes. This will help 
maintain the unique viewsheds and connections with the surrounding 
landscape, while allowing traditional agricultural uses and practices to 
be maintained.

• Establishment of a 300’ Open Space buffer between the highway 
centerline and the clustered nodes. This will help maintain the 
open feel of the corridor while enhancing the sense of arrival and 
the establishment of each node as a distinct place and community 
gateway.

• Establishment of a continuous multi-use path along both sides of 
the highway within an expanded UDOT right-of-way. These facilities 
should link existing and proposed east-west pathways, facilitating the 
movement of pedestrians, bicycles and equestrian riders along the 
corridor. The movement of agricultural vehicles and farm equipment 
should also be facilitated as part of these routes.  Since the layout 
of the pathways and other right-of-way features is conceptual, it is 
essential that the fi nal design is carefully coordinated with UDOT 
and other project partners to ensure that essential safety and traffi c 
requirements are met.

• Integration of new residential, commercial, mixed-use and industrial 
uses within the existing cities of Wellsville, Nibley and Logan to the 
greatest degree possible.  This will reduce the need for and impact of 
new development along the corridor.

• Prohibition of future residential and other uses from locations within 
the open space buffers, thereby eliminating the need for sound 
walls, berms and other obtrusive buffering techniques, and helping 
to preserve the character and visual attributes of the surrounding 
landscape.

• Prohibition of strip development along the highway.  This is essential 
for maintaining the unique characteristics of the corridor.

• Adjusting the amount of land earmarked for commercial and other 
land uses to match realistic market projections.

As the highway passes through the three municipalities, specifi c steps 
will need to occur to ensure the comprehensive vision is maintained. 
The following are some of the key actions to be implemented by each 
community:

LOGAN CITY
• The Gateway Corporate Campus Zone should be completed as 

envisioned, utilizing established design guidelines to create a strong 
and unifi ed entrance experience into the City.

• No future residential uses should be allowed within 500 feet of 
the highway centerline in the southern extents of the city. This will 
alleviate the need for sound walls, berms and other sound mitigation 
technique while maintaining associated open space and visual 
characteristics.

NIBLEY CITY
• Encourage commercial and mixed-use development to take place 

within the established City core on the east side of the highway to the 
greatest degree possible.

• Develop the 2600 and 3200 South intersections as commercial/mixed-
use nodes. Each node should be developed with a unique profi le and 
gateway “message”. Ensure that the acreage designated for these 
nodes refl ects project market needs.

• Nibley has adequate land available for residential growth far from the 
highway. Future residential uses should not be allowed within 500 
feet of the highway centerline, thus alleviating the need for sound 
walls, berms and other sound mitigation techniques. This will also 
help maintain associated open space, sensitive lands and visual 
characteristics along the highway.

WELLSVILLE CITY
• The need for commercial land through 2060 is limited. Future 

commercial, industrial and mixed-use development should be 
centered at the large site currently proposed on the east side of 
the highway south at 4400 South.  Agricultural industries should 
be encouraged closest to the highway at this location, with mixed 
commercial/industrial/residential uses located in the core of the site. 
The railroad just south of the node should be explored as a possible 
opportunity for servicing the site.

• Wellsville has adequate land far from the highway that is suitable for 
residential development. No future residential uses should be allowed 
within 500 feet of the highway centerline, thus alleviating the need 
for sound walls, berms and other sound mitigation techniques, and 
helping to maintain associated open space and visual characteristics.

• Consider the establishment of limited commercial enterprises within 
the existing City center and as part of the American West Heritage 
Center.  The uses for each should refl ect and support the nature and 
function of each place, including restaurants, small local businesses, 
agricultural supply stores, etc.

Figures 2-2 through 2-12 illustrate how the corridor may appear once the 
Preferred Land Use Plan has been implemented. It should be noted that 
the layout of the nodes, the multi-use trails, buffer areas and other plan 
elements illustrate only possible ideas, and that numerous other iterations 
are possible.  It should also be noted that the design of the multi-use trail 
is conceptual; the fi nal design of this element will require detailed design 
studies and close coordination with UDOT and other project partners to 
ensure that aesthetic, safety and traffi c requirements are achieved.



1 Introduction Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 12

Fig
ur

e 2
-1

 
Pr

efe
rre

d L
an

d U
se

 P
lan

High
way

 89
/91

Highway 165

50
00

 S
ou

th

44
00

 S
ou

th

Center Street

32
00

 S
ou

th

1000 West

Highway 23

26
00

 S
ou

th

M
ai

n 
S

tre
et

SR 23

W
ell

sv
ille

 C
an

yo
n

W
el

ls
vi

lle
 C

ity

H
yr

um
 C

ity

N
ib

le
y 

C
ity

M
ill

vi
lle

 C
ity

Lo
ga

n 
C

ity

R
iv

e
H

ei
gh

ts
C

ity

[
1

0
0.

5

M
ile

s

La
nd

 U
se

G
at

ew
ay

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

H
ig

hw
ay

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
C

en
te

r
M

ix
ed

 U
se

/In
fil

l C
om

m
er

ci
al

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l P
re

se
rv

at
io

n/
R

es
id

en
tia

l F
ar

m
la

nd
P

ar
k

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l I
nd

us
tri

al
In

du
st

ria
l

Lo
w

 D
en

si
ty

 R
es

id
en

tia
l (

3-
4 

un
its

/a
cr

e)
Lo

w
 D

en
si

ty
/O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce
 R

es
id

en
tia

l (
1-

2 
un

its
/a

cr
e)

M
ix

ed
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
P

ub
lic

/In
st

itu
tio

na
l

U
ta

h 
S

ta
te

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity

M
aj

or
 R

oa
d 

Ty
pe

s

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Ty
pe

s
E

xi
st

in
g 

S
ig

na
l

C
om

m
itt

ed
 S

ig
na

l
P

la
nn

ed
 S

ig
na

l
P

os
si

bl
e 

Fu
tu

re
 In

te
rc

ha
ng

e

E
xi

st
in

g 
R

oa
d

P
ro

po
se

d 
R

oa
d

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 B
uf

fe
r/D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

et
-b

ac
k 

(5
00

' e
ac

h 
si

de
 o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 c
en

te
r l

in
e)

O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 B
uf

fe
r/D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

et
-b

ac
k 

(3
00

' e
ac

h 
si

de
 o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 c
en

te
r l

in
e)

S
ou

th
 E

nt
ra

nc
e/

E
xi

t 
G

at
ew

ay
 (s

pe
ci

al
 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 i.

e.
 tr

ee
s,

 
be

rm
s,

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
si

gn
s,

 
et

c.
)

E
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 3

20
0 

S
ou

th
 e

as
t o

f C
ity

 H
al

l 
as

 M
ai

n 
S

tre
et

E
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

e 
tra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 M

ai
n 

S
tre

et
 

in
to

 a
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 
av

en
ue

N
or

th
 E

nt
ra

nc
e/

E
xi

t 
G

at
ew

ay
 (s

pe
ci

al
 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 i.

e.
 tr

ee
s,

 
be

rm
s,

 s
ig

ns
, e

tc
.)

26
00

 S
ou

th
 N

od
e

32
00

 S
ou

th
 N

od
e

A
dj

us
t g

eo
m

et
ry

 
of

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

 to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
lo

ng
-

te
rm

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

44
00

 S
ou

th
 N

od
e

C
lu

st
er

ed
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t N

od
e

E
nt

ra
nc

e/
E

xi
t G

at
ew

ay



2 Plan13 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-2 Corridor Overview, Looking North Above Wellsville Toward Nibley

Corridor Overview
2600 South

3200 South

4400 South

New Clustered Node

New Clustered Node

USU South Complex

New Clustered Node

30
0’ 

Bu
ffe

r

Wellsville

Nibley

American West 
Heritage Center

50
0’ 

Bu
ffe

r

As Illustrated in this aerial view, concentrating future development at key 
nodes and establishing reasonable ‘no-build’ buffers along the highway are 
critical actions for preserving the unique qualities of the South Corridor. 



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 14

Figure 2-3 Aerial View Looking North from 4400 South Node. (Note the distinctive agricultural/industrial uses at the Wellsville node.)   

Corridor From 4400 South

American West 
Heritage Center

USU South Complex

Logan

2600 South Node

3200 South Node

4400 South Node

Main Street

Future residential 
development planned within 

the corridor should honor 
the 500’ ‘no-build’ buffer.

The 4400 South development node should focus on light industrial and 
agricultural industries at the edges, with commercial/retail and residential mixed-
uses in the center of the node.



2 Plan15 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-4 Aerial View Overlooking 4400 South Node. (Note how uses become mixed-use and denser in the core of the development.  

4400 South Node

American West
Heritage Center

USU South Complex

4400 South

Railroad

Agricultural Industries

Main Street



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 16

Figure 2-5 Elevated View of 4400 South, Looking East from Intersection.

4400 South Node

Agricultural Industries
at Edges Nearest to 

Highway

Multi-Use Pathway

M
ain

 S
tre

et

44
00

 S
ou

th

To
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

W
el

lsv
ille

Light Industrial and Mixed-
Use in Core

300’ buffer allows nodes to be seen from 
highway, while providing adequate space 

to maintain rural/agricultural feel.



2 Plan17 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-6 Motorist’s View of 4400 South Intersection, Looking North.

4400 South Intersection
The corridor design concept encourages the establishment of roadside trails adjacent 
to and within the highway right-of-way.  Additional design studies and coordination with 
UDOT and other project partners is necessary to ensure the fi nal system is both safe 
and practical.



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 18

Figure 2-7 Aerial View Looking North from 3200 South Node Toward Logan.

3200 South Node

Logan

2600 South

3200 South

Setbacks and buffers between 
nodes and other development 
help maintain the agricultural 

feeling and preserve open space.

New Agricultural Preservation/
Residential Farmland uses 

to be located outside of 500’ 
buffer.

Each node should have a distinct “theme” or concept that ties it together and creates a discernible “place.” For 
example, the 3200 South Node might focus on smaller-scale commercial/mixed-use residential.



2 Plan19 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-8 Aerial View Above the Nibley Nodes.  (Note the consistent 300’ setback at the nodes.)

3200 South and 2600 South Nodes

2600 South

3200 South
Long-term intersection 
treatments may require 

grade-separated structures 
(bridges and tunnels).

Future Residential uses to 
incorporate 500’ “no build” 

open space buffer along the 
highway.



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 20

Figure 2-9 Elevated View of 3200 South Node, Looking East from Intersection.  (Note how well-landscaped parking lots and vegetated buffers create an inviting place.)

3200 South Node

Occasional trees provide 
informal resting/meeting 

places for trail users.  
Formal plantings are not 
encouraged within the 

buffers.

Strict rows of upright 
trees mimic traditional 

agricultural windbreaks, 
creating a united 

entrance experience.

3200 South

Nibley

Multi-purpose trail/farm 
road is conceptual only.  

Detailed investigations and 
coordination with UDOT and 

other project partners are 
necessary to ensure safety 

and workability.



2 Plan21 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-10 Motorist’s View of 3200 South Intersection, Looking North.

3200 South Intersection



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 22

Figure 2-11 Elevated View of 2600 South Node Looking Northeast.

2600 South Node

Future Development Area

Nibley

300’ buffer at node 
maintained as 
fi elds/pasture

A buffer of trees located close 
to the outer edge of the node 
screens parking and service 

zones from view.



2 Plan23 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-12 Motorist’s View of 2600 South Intersection, Looking North.

2600 South Intersection

Development at nodes recedes into the landscape through the application 
of a 300’ buffer and screening vegetation.  A similar effect occurs elsewhere 

along the corridor with the implementation of a 500’ roadside buffer.



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 24

TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC
For planning purposes, transportation and traffi c ideas have been broken 
into two separate time periods: short-term and long-term. The short-term 
is from the present to the year 2035. Long-term improvements address 
anticipated conditions from 2035 to 2060.  

SHORT-TERM
The traffi c modeling and results from the CMPO Regional Transportation 
Plan-2035 were utilized to form the basis for short-term evaluations.  
Table 2-1 illustrates existing and future US-89/91 traffi c volumes by 
segment.  

TABLE 2-1 - EXISTING AND FUTURE TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Location 2010 Traffi c 
Volume (Est.)

2035 CMPO Traffi c 
Volume (Est.)

Wellsville Canyon to 4400 
South

23,674 49,156

4400 South to SR-252 25,173 54,803
SR-252 to Logan Main St. 27,453 47,597

The short-term Level of Service (LOS) is shown on Figure 2-13, which 
anticipates that the CMPO planned long-range improvements will be 
implemented. This includes two additional lanes (one in each direction) to 
be added onto US-89/91 from 3200 South to the intersection with SR-
165/Logan Main Street on the north as shown in Figure 2-14. 

 

TYPES OF TRAFFIC
The growth trend in the valley toward more residential and commercial 
uses will increase the number of passenger vehicles and heavy trucks 
using the corridor. Additionally, the number of commuters is expected to 
increase, thereby increasing the need for more transit options. Agricultural 
uses are expected to remain the same, although higher traffi c volumes on 
the corridor will lead farmers to seek alternate routes with slower speeds 
and which are less heavily traveled.

Figure 2-14 Future Roadway Cross Section 

Figure 2-13 Short-Term Level of Service to 2035



2 Plan25 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

SHORT-TERM IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES

CORRIDOR AND INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENT STRATEGIES
The corridor will need to be widened from 3200 South to SR-165/Logan 
Main Street.  The cross-section will match CMPO and UDOT plans for 
six lanes with a striped median. To address the anticipated short-term 
traffi c demand, proposed implementation strategies are recommended as 
shown in Figure 2-15.

The intersection signal improvements as identifi ed within the 
aforementioned Corridor Agreement are anticipated to be installed prior 
to the end of this period. In the interim, acceleration and deceleration 
lane improvements will need to be considered by UDOT and planned at 
the major intersections as shown on Figure 2-15.  Integration of a future 
connection from the CMPO planned Western Corridor (dashed green line 
on Figure 2-15) at 3200 South will also be necessary.

TRANSIT AND TOTAL DEMAND MANAGEMENT 
Increased bus service and inter-connectivity to a possible UTA 
Frontrunner station in Brigham City will need to be implemented as 
demand requires.  It is anticipated that expanded park-and-ride facilities 
and transit interconnections will need to be provided. This could 
include expansion of the existing park-and-ride lot near SR-23, or the 
development of additional facilities closer to the Logan/Nibley population 
centers.  

Total Demand Management (TDM) is a set of practices that provide for 
enhanced community involvement in reducing traffi c during peak periods. 
It is recommended that the CMPO take the lead in developing TDM 
workshops with large employers in the area to promote off-peak travel 
and shuttle services that will help reduce corridor congestion.  

PEDESTRIAN/NON-MOTORIZED AND AGRICULTURAL EQUIPMENT
It is anticipated that non-motorized forms of transportation will continue 
to grow.  To address this condition, Cache County and local communities 
have produced extensive pedestrian plans that provide for facilities 
throughout  and surrounding the study area.  Many of these facilities 
are connected to the corridor but do not adequately address highway 
crossings.  The Preferred Plan therefore integrates continuous and 
parallel trails on each side of the corridor. These trails will encourage 
users to move to the planned traffi c signal locations along the edge of 
the highway, where safe crossing movements can be made.  Figures 2-2 
through 2-12 and Figure 2-16 illustrate these planned features.  

During the development of the Preferred Plan, it became apparent that 
addressing agricultural transportation needs is critical to reduce high 
speed/low speed confl icts. To address these, it is proposed that a farm 
road be developed as part of a multi-use trail in the buffer area adjacent 
to the corridor.  This farm road would allow for travel between localized 

farm sections and relieve the current condition of farm equipment 
accessing the roadway for short travel lengths to nearby fi elds.  The trail 
as illustrated is conceptual only, and will require further investigation and 
detailed design coordination with UDOT and others to ensure the fi nal 
result is both safe and functional.

ACCESS
As the corridor is widened to allow for additional lanes, there will be 
impacts to properties along the corridor. Table 2-2 illustrates the number 
of properties that will be impacted depending upon the setback from the 
future right-of-way line to existing structures.  

TABLE 2-2 - NUMBER OF IMPACTED PROPERTIES BASED ON SETBACK DISTANCES

Wellsville Canyon to SR-101
Setback 
Distance

20 Feet 25 Feet 30 Feet

Residential 0 0 1
Commercial 0 0 0
SR-101 to 3200 S.
Setback 
Distance

20 Feet 25 Feet 30 Feet

Residential 2 2 3
Commercial 0 1 2
3200 S. to Logan Main St.
Setback 
Distance

20 Feet 25 Feet 30 Feet

Residential 14 18 24
Commercial 14 14 16

Limiting access will be critical to the long-term viability of the corridor.  
A facilitated approach to conform with UDOT’s Access Management 
Program for the roadway as described in the Corridor Agreement 
discussion will be necessary and fundamental to the implementation of 
the Preferred Plan. 

ENVIRONMENTAL
Implementing the Preferred Plan will require addressing the full range 
of environmental impacts, including noise, visual impacts, water quality 
and other conditions. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) issues 
related to wetlands, prime farmlands, and cultural concerns will also need 
to be addressed. The results of these assessments may limit what can 
be constructed. It is anticipated that the proposed open space buffers will 
provide suffi cient separation between the highway and future uses so 
noise attenuation features will not be necessary. The integration of nodal 
development and the maintenance of agricultural viewsheds takes into 
account the visual impacts of corridor development.  Other elements to 



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 26

Figure 2-15 Short-Term Implementation Strategies

ALTERNATE TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS
• Express Bus Scheduling to Future Frontrunner Station in Brigham City
• Multi-use Trail Connectivity
• Expanded Park & Ride Facilities
• Expansion of Cache Valley Transit Bus Routes
• Total Demand Management (TDM)
 - Coordinate with large employers along corridor to adjust   
      to “off-peak” shift times
 - Shuttle services

ACCESS CONTROL ISSUES
• Preserve/Obtain/Acquire Access Control Along Corridor
 - SR-101 North to “Y Intersection” - at a minimum 1     
       access every 1,000 feet (anticipated to be enacted as    
     part of planned corridor development)
 - SR-101 South to Wellsville Canyon - follow existing    
       UDOT limited access restrictions
• Pursue funding for corridor preservation and access reduction
• Address safety concerns/alignment issues, assess right-in/right-out 

options
• Implement proactive access management process - via agreements 

with existing owners.

Concept: 3200 South Nibley Intersection

Concept:US-89/91 looking south toward intersection 
with SR-23

Concept: 2300 South Intersection



2 Plan27 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

PEDESTRIAN PLANNING
• Offer options for pedestrian control at signalized intersections
• Provide for continuity with County Trails/ Continuous Trail/ 

Bikeway
• Suggested trail extensions (shown in red) to signalized 

intersections to allow for safer pedestrian crossings

Figure 2-16 Pedestrian Plans

Current

Concept - note that the trail design is conceptual and will 
require detailed design input to meet the needs outlined in 
this plan.

Current

Concept

Looking south near 3200 South intersection Looking northeast near 1100 West intersection



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 28

be considered include the need to integrate existing irrigation and water 
quality features into the cross-section.  

INTERSECTIONS
The most notable change to the intersections along the corridor during 
the short-term will be the installation of the signals at SR-252 (1000 
West), 2600 South (or 2300 South), 3200 South, and 4400 South. Since 
the implemented Corridor Agreement prohibits any additional signals, 
once traffi c increases, other innovative methods will need to be utilized to 
improve intersection operations. One such technique is the installation of 
acceleration and deceleration lanes for right turn movements. These will 
remove the slower (accelerating and decelerating) vehicles from the main 
fl ow of traffi c.

Another Level of Service enhancement on US-89/91 is the coordination 
of signal phasing at each signal location. This will require the 
interconnection of signals via a fi ber-optic network that will integrate 
with UDOT’s traffi c management network. UDOT is already developing 
these networks on other state routes in the valley including SR-30 and 
SR-252, which will afford interconnection opportunities for valley wide 
management. 
 
As the end of the short-term period approaches, the need will arise 
to further enhance the operational capacity and effectiveness of the 
signalized intersections. There are several innovative variations of the 
standard signalized intersection that are designed to provide operational 
enhancements. Information on several of these intersection options is 
provided below. Specifi c selections will ultimately be determined by UDOT 
study/design to be implemented at the time of operational need.  

Jughandle Intersection
Jughandles work because the turning queues are moved away from 
the main fl ow of traffi c. This eliminates the need for left turn lanes in the 
median.

One drawback to Jughandle Intersections is that the additional arm 
requires more land than a traditional intersection. This means that right-
of-way acquisition would be required along the corridor. Another concern 
is that drivers would need to be educated on how to use a Jughandle 
Intersection. 

Continuous Flow Intersection (CFI) 
CFI’s have been implemented successfully in other locations in Utah to 
improve traffi c fl ow. A CFI works because the left-turning vehicles are 
moved opposite of on-coming thru traffi c. 

A drawbacks to CFI’s is that they require more right-of-way than 
traditional intersections, which increases the impacts to adjacent property 

owners. Another concern of CFI’s is that vehicle movement is unnatural, 
so additional signage will be required to mitigate driver confusion. 
Additional driver education may be required to ensure fl uid use of a CFI.

More in-depth analysis would be required 
prior to any specifi c implementation of 
either of these or other intersection options.

LONG-TERM IMPLEMENTATION 
STRATEGIES

TRAFFIC 
An analysis of planned growth of the valley 
out to the year 2060 provides a basis for 
projecting the amount of traffi c on the US-
89/91 corridor.  The map to the right shows 
the anticipated growth within the study 
area.

The resulting 2060 estimated traffi c volumes by US-89/91 segment are 
described in Table 2-3.  

TABLE 2-3 - ANTICIPATED GROWTH IN TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Location 2010 Traffi c Volume 
(Est.)

2060 Traffi c Volume 
(Est.)

Wellsville Canyon to 
4400 South

23,674 74,800

4400 South to SR-252 25,173 74,800 – 85,700
SR-252 to Logan Main 
St.

27,453 85,700-88,500

CORRIDOR
As shown in Figure 2-19, the increased traffi c will necessitate the 
extension of the six lane cross-section from 3200 South to the mouth 
of Wellsville Canyon. To address the large traffi c volumes that are 
anticipated, new and larger scale improvements are proposed. These 
improvements include interchange features at the locations shown on 
Figure 2-19.  

INTERSECTIONS/INTERCHANGES
As the area and traffi c volumes continue to grow, it will become essential 
to reduce the amount of stoppage along the corridor. This will require 
eliminating the intersections (signalized and un-signalized) and replacing 
them with grade separated crossings and interchanges. Visual impacts 
of potential interchanges were extensively discussed as part of the 
planning process and are shown in Figures 2-20 through 2-22. The photo-

Figure 2-17 Jughandle Intersection

Figure 2-18 Continuous Flow Intersection



2 Plan29 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-19 Long-Term Implementation Strategies

ALTERNATE TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS
• Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)/Intermodal Center Connectivity
• Multi-Use Trails (Underpasses & Overpasses)
• Total Demand Management (TDM)
 - Continue coordination & shuttle service options with   
    large employers along the corridor

ACCESS CONTROL ISSUES
• Preserve Access Control Standards along corridor
• Continued facilitation of Property Agreements
• Implementation of funding for preservation/access reduction
• Expanded farm road access in applicable areas



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 30

Figure 2-20 Potential Overpass Illustration (Long-Term Solution) Figure 2-21 Potential Underpass Illustration (Long-Term Solution)

Current Current

Concept Concept

Figure 2-22 Potential Pedestrian Crossing Facility (Long-Term Solution)

Concept

Current



2 Plan31 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Figure 2-23 Single Point Rural Interchange (SPRI)

Figure 2-24 Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI)

Figure 2-25 Left-Turn Flyover Structure (LFS)

Even though a LFS is not a full interchange, many of the drawbacks of 
a full interchange are attached to its implementation. One of these is the 
visual impacts of having a grade separated structure. Also, structural 
costs would be similar to those of building a full interchange structure. 
Additionally, with costs and impacts similar to a full interchange, the fl ow 
is still impacted by the operational constraints of a traffi c signal.

TRANSIT
Transit is anticipated to become integral to the transportation solutions 
for the corridor.  The potential Frontrunner station in Brigham City will 
also increase the need and desire for connectivity from Cache Valley to 
Brigham City. Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) will likely need to be implemented 
to meet this demand. BRT would yield many of the benefi ts of a traditional 
Light Rail system while requiring less capital to speed its implementation.

PEDESTRIAN/NON-MOTORIZED
As traffi c volumes along the corridor continue to increase, it will become 
necessary to separate pedestrian and other non-motorized forms of 
traffi c from vehicular traffi c. Multi-use trails incorporated with short-
term improvements will be interconnected with planned roadway grade 
separations to enhance safety.  Additionally, separate pedestrian crossing 
structures may be necessary depending upon site specifi c needs and 
operational constraints at planned interchanges. Photo-simulations of 
possible grade separated pedestrian crossings are illustrated in Figures 
2-20 to 2-22. Typically, grade separations can either go over or under 
the roadway. However, due to the existing high groundwater table in the 
Cache Valley it appears more prudent to have all multi-use crossings 
pass over the corridor.
   
ACCESS
As the roadway is widened in the southern part of the valley, there will be 
impacts to the adjacent properties that are similar to those described in 
the short-term discussion. Impacts will be less severe than those incurred 
in the short-term period because fewer properties are affected. Potential 
impacts are described in Table 2-4.

renderings illustrate the potential long-term impacts.

Although several interchange options that may be considered, specifi c 
solutions applicable to each intersection are beyond the level of detail of 
this plan.  It is anticipated that as a result of high groundwater in the study 
area, underpass options will be less feasible, making overpass features 
the more likely solution. The following are some of the long-term options 
that may be considered.
 
Single Point Rural Interchange
A Single Point Rural Interchange (SPRI) interchange and its counterpoint, 
the Single Point Urban Interchange (SPUI), are very common throughout 
the state. This is an advantage in that users will be accustomed to seeing 
and using them. See Figure 2-23. 

When implementing a SPRI or any grade separated interchange there will 
be visual impacts as well as impacts to adjacent property owners in the 
form of right-of-way acquisition.  When implemented properly, though, a 
SPRI has the potential to require minimal additional right-of-way. Another 
consideration with grade-separated crossings is the additional cost that 
will required for construction.

Diverging Diamond Interchange
Another interchange option that is still emerging in the United States is 
the Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI). One was recently completed 
in American Fork, Utah. As illustrated in Figure 2-24, the main advantage 
to the DDI is that it eliminates all left turns across opposing traffi c, thus 
reducing safety issues related to left turns.

One drawback to DDI’s is that they are the most costly interchange 
option. This is partially because they require a substantial amount of 
right-of-way. Another concern is that since they are still an emerging idea, 
driver education would also need to be considered.

Left-turn Flyover Structure (LFS)
This option combines a grade separation and a signalized intersection, 
and is designed to eliminate the stopping of traffi c for left-turn 
movements. See Figure 2-25. This is accomplished by placing all left-turn 
movements on a grade separated ramp in the center of the roadway. Left-
turns would be given acceleration and deceleration lanes in the center of 
the roadways. Thru and right-turn traffi c would be controlled by a signal. 
Right turns would also be given acceleration and deceleration lanes 
which would remove speed separated traffi c from the main fl ow.

An advantage to the LFS is that thru and right signal phasing would be 
maximized since there is no left-turn phase. Installing a LFS would also 
reduce the need for a full interchange. The compact design of an LFS 
could require less right-of-way acquisition than a full interchange.



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 32

TABLE 2-4 NUMBER OF IMPACTED PROPERTIES BASED ON SETBACK DISTANCES

Canyon to SR-101
Setback 
Distance

20 Feet 25 Feet 30 Feet

Residential 0 0 1
Commercial 0 0 0

SR-101 to 3200 S.
Setback 
Distance

20 Feet 25 Feet 30 Feet

Residential 2 2 3
Commercial 0 1 2

Modifi cations to existing residential accesses will need to be considered 
in the long-term. Provisions for right-in and right-out access with 
acceleration and deceleration lanes may be appropriate.  Since the 
ultimate goal is to minimize corridor access to improve safety, it may be 
necessary to offer alternate access to existing homes and farms along 
the corridor. One solution is the expansion of the short-term farm roads to 
connect the off-corridor roadway network.
 
ENVIRONMENTAL
Environmental considerations for the long-term planning are the same 
as those for the short-term. Noise, visual and water quality impacts have 
been considered and incorporated into the Preferred Plan.  

PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE
All existing utilities are addressing current demands. As the cities 
expand, the current facilities will need to be upgraded and/or expanded. 
Historically, utilities have been neglected and then are requested after 
they are needed. It is suggested that the CMPO and all municipalities 
coordinate with one another and other utility providers to install or at least 
have plans that are consistent with the master plans for all growth in this 
area.  Municipalities will need to be proactive in planning for adequate 
rights-of-way for future construction and coordinate with UDOT on 
possible placement within the corridor area.  

ECONOMICS AND MARKET CONDITIONS

SUSTAINABLE COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ALONG THE CORRIDOR
Given growth projections for Cache Valley, one of the key questions to 
consider is how much commercial development will be sustainable along 
the corridor?  A two-fold approach was taken in order to provide some 
answers:  

1. Levels of current commercial development were assessed in other 
counties – Salt Lake, Weber, Utah and Davis in order to project 
sustainable development in Cache County; and 

2. A “capture rate” was used to project the amount of the sustainable 
development that would likely take place along the Corridor. 

As illustrated in Table 2-5, current levels of commercial development were 
evaluated for Salt Lake, Davis, Weber and Utah counties. Commercial 
development includes retail, offi ce and industrial/business park 
development.   Broker data provided by Commerce Real Estate Solutions 
is tracked regularly and was easily available for these four counties.  

TABLE 2-5 COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT IN COMPARATIVE COUNTIES

 Salt Lake 
County

Weber 
County

Davis 
County

Utah 
County

Average* Weighted 
Average*

Adjusted 
Average*

Population 
2010

1,029,655 231,236 306,479 516,564    

Offi ce SF* 31,282,745 2,551,063 2,553,930 9,294,059    
Industrial SF* 111,840,216 32,211,920 26,106,135 30,071,498    
Retail SF* 37,352,228 5,904,675 7,449,808 10,391,821    
Offi ce SF per 
capita

30 11 8 18 17 22 12

Industrial SF 
per capita

109 139 85 58 98 96 72

Retail SF per 
capita

36 26 24 20 27 29 23

TOTAL 
commercial sf 
per capita

175 176 118 96 141 147 107

*Average data represents the average square feet per capita weighted equally by county; weighted average represents the average 
square feet weighted according to the population of each county; adjusted average does not include data from Salt Lake County for 
offi ce, industrial and retail development and does not include data from Weber County for industrial development.  This adjustment 
was made because of Salt Lake County’s regional role along the Wasatch Front and large population size which is not realistic for 
Cache County, even 50 years in the future.  Weber County has an extraordinarily high level of industrial development and so was 
deleted from the industrial analysis.

The projections are based on the “Adjusted Average” which does not 
include data from Salt Lake County and deletes the Weber County data 
in the industrial category.  The adjusted average data is considered to 
be relevant to Cache County, since population is projected to reach 
approximately 332,000 persons by 20601.  The 2010 population in 
Davis County is 323,087; Utah County is 560,511; and Weber County is 
232,696. Cache County’s population projections for 2060 are similar to 
the current population range of the three counties used in the analysis.  

The amount of supportable commercial acreage in Cache County in 
2035 and 2060 was projected using the “adjusted average” from the 

1 Governor’s Offi ce of Planning and Budget, http://www.governor.state.ut.us/ 
 dea/popprojections.html



2 Plan33 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

TABLE 2-6 PROJECTIONS OF SUPPORTABLE RETAIL/OFFICE SQUARE FOOTAGE AND 
CURRENTLY ZONED COMMERCIAL ACREAGE

Zoned Acres (2011) Retail Offi ce 
Supportable 2035

Retail Offi ce 
Supportable 2060

WELLSVILLE AREA
Hyrum 135 64 106
Paradise 41 7 11
Mendon (1/2) 33 8 12
Wellsville 457 36 56
TOTAL 666 115 186
NIBLEY AREA
Millville 171 24 44

Nibley 73 84 163
TOTAL 244 108 207
LOGAN AREA
Logan 1,128 347 545
Mendon (1/2) 33 8 12
Providence 149 42 82
River Heights 22 11 12
TOTAL 1,331 407 650

TABLE 2-7 PROJECTIONS OF SUPPORTABLE INDUSTRIAL SQUARE FOOTAGE AND 
CURRENTLY ZONED INDUSTRIAL ACREAGE

Zoned Acres 
(2011)

Industrial 
Supportable 2035

Industrial 
Supportable 2060

WELLSVILLE AREA
Hyrum 160 128 210
Paradise 0 14 22
Mendon (1/2) 0 15 24
Wellsville 41 72 112
TOTAL 201 229 369
NIBLEY AREA
Millville 0 47 88
Nibley 122 166 324
TOTAL 122 214 412
LOGAN AREA
Logan 1,588 689 1,082
Mendon (1/2) 0 15 24
Providence 0 84 162
River Heights 0 22 24
TOTAL 1,588 809 1,292

CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL CLUSTERS 
The analysis of commercial development along the corridor considers 
clusters in the Wellsville, Nibley and Logan areas.  Each of these areas is 
discussed below, and illustrated in Table 2-8.

WELLSVILLE AREA
By 2060, the Wellsville area should be able to support nearly 100 acres 
of retail and offi ce space, and approximately 200 acres of industrial/
business park development.  Of concern is the fact that Wellsville City 
currently has 457 acres zoned for retail/offi ce uses – between four 
and fi ve times the amount projected to be supportable in the next fi fty 
years.  Further, Wellsville’s town center is located some distance from 
the highway.  Without good access and visibility, the town center will not 
capture retail sales.  As a result, Wellsville’s retail development will need 
to take place on the corridor.

The zoning for industrial development is more closely related to the 
sustainability projections.  Wellsville has some competitive advantages 
in Cache Valley that may allow it to exceed its industrial/business park 
projections, and the City may want to consider changing some of its retail/
offi ce acreage to industrial/business park uses for the following reasons:

1. Wellsville is the fi rst development upon entering the Valley and 
provides closer access to I-15 and the Wasatch Front than other parts 
of Cache Valley.

2. Union Pacifi c has a rail line that runs through Wellsville that 
may provide opportunities to attract an added range of industrial 
development types.

3. Wellsville City has accumulated signifi cant water rights that will 
also allow it to attract a wider range of development types than are 
possible in communities with more limited water availability.

Therefore, some of the designated retail/offi ce development currently 
earmarked for commercial uses on the east side of the highway could 
realistically be changed to encourage industrial and business park uses.  
Industrial and business park development should be a top priority of 
Wellsville in order to establish a stronger property tax base.

NIBLEY/LOGAN AREAS
Nibley is expected to see rapid growth over the next 50 years, increasing 
from a population of nearly 5,500 today to over 35,000 by the year 2060 
– an average annual growth rate of 3.8 percent over the time period, and 
more than six times the population in the area today.  This population 
growth will create increased demand for goods and services.  It is 
important since Nibley is largely a bedroom community today, to expand 
the tax base to include retail sales and establish a more-balanced tax 
base that will be economically sustainable in the future. 

comparable counties.  In order to convert building square foot data into 
acreages, the following fl oor area ratios (FAR) were used:  retail (0.15); 
offi ce (0.25); and industrial (0.18).  Because this plan focuses on the 
“corridor,” the analysis groups communities into three main clusters along 
the corridor:

1. Wellsville Area – this is the southern portion of the Valley and includes 
Hyrum, Paradise, Wellsville and a portion of Mendon.  Because of 
travel patterns to Mendon, one-half of Mendon’s growth was included 
in the Wellsville area analysis, and the other half was included in the 
Logan area projections.

2. Nibley Area – this area represents the midsection and part of the 
northern the section of the corridor and includes Nibley and Millville.

3. Logan Area – this is the northernmost portion of the corridor study 
area and includes Logan, a portion of Mendon, Providence and River 
Heights.

As illustrated in Table 2-6, the analysis shows that most communities 
have more land zoned for commercial uses than is currently supportable, 
and more than will be supportable in 25 years and in 50 years, based 
on population growth projections for the area.  It should be noted that 
industrial projections should be considered for the regional area, and not 
community by community, as illustrated in Table 2-7.  Business park and 
industrial development will not be spread evenly between communities 
(based on population), but rather will cluster in communities that have 
access to transportation infrastructure (such as major roads, rail and 
airports) and that desire, and allow for, this type of development in their 
communities.

Only a portion of future commercial development will take place along the 
corridor.  In order to estimate the amount of future supportable acreage 
along the corridor, capture rates for corridor development were assumed 
for each community.  These capture rates represent the percentage 
of total sustainable commercial development for each community that 
is considered likely to occur along the corridor.  While some of these 
communities, such as Providence, River Heights, Hyrum, etc., are 
not located along the corridor, their residents travel the corridor and 
it is assumed that a certain percentage of the buying power for these 
communities could be captured along the corridor.



2 Plan Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 34

TABLE 2-8 PROJECTED SUSTAINABLE CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT

ADJUSTED 2035 ADJUSTED 2060

Capture Rates Retail/Offi ce 
Supportable

Industrial Retail/Offi ce 
Supportable

Industrial

WELLSVILLE AREA 
Hyrum 20% 13 26 21 42
Paradise 50% 3 7 6 11
Mendon (1/2) 30% 2 4 4 7
Wellsville 100% 36 72 56 112
TOTAL  55 109 87 173
NIBLEY AREA
Millville 50% 12 24 22 44
Nibley 100% 84 166 163 324
TOTAL  96 190 185 368
LOGAN AREA
Logan 100% 347 689 545 1,082
Mendon (1/2) 30% 2 4 4 7
Providence 20% 8 17 16 32
River Heights 20% 2 4 2 5
TOTAL  360 714 567 1,126

Nibley currently has 73 acres zoned for retail/offi ce uses, but is projected 
to be able to support 163 acres in 50 years.  Therefore, Nibley will need 
to identify more land for future commercial development – either in its 
existing boundaries or through future annexations.

In contrast, Logan, for which strong growth is also projected (from a 
population of over 48,000 today to nearly 118,000 by 2060), has zoned 
nearly 1,100 acres as retail/offi ce, but will only be able to support 
about half of that amount by 2060.  Logan may need to re-evaluate its 
current zoning to determine if there are some retail/offi ce areas yet to be 
developed that would be better served with other uses.

Nibley and Logan should work together closely to assess opportunities for 
commercial development, taking the following factors into account:

• Available land at key intersections (with good visibility and 
accessibility from the highway) in Nibley and the south part of Logan;

• The potential to identify two commercial clusters in the Nibley/Logan 
area, and the relative “identity” of each area – such as big box/power 
center, higher-density mixed use, restaurant/entertainment center, 
lifestyle center, etc.

• Potential revenue sharing arrangements. 

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR RETAIL DEVELOPMENT
The following guidelines for retail development refl ect population density 
within a specifi c geographic radius, as well as the approximate drive time 
to reach the retail outlets.  See Table 2-9.  This analsysis based on the 
corridor development will be geared to “community” and “neighborhood” 
scale development.

TABLE 2-9 PRIMARY TRADE AREA GUIDELINES

Type of Center Minimum Population 
Support Required

Radius Driving Time

Super Regional 300,000 or more 12 miles 30 minutes
Regional 150,000 or more 8 miles 20 minutes
Community 40,000 - 150,000 3-5 miles 10-20 minutes
Neighborhood 3,000 - 40,000 1.5 miles 5-10 minutes
Source:  Urban Land Institute, Shopping Center Development Handbook, 3rd ed.

Table 2-10 summarizes research conducted by the Urban Land Institute 
(ULI) regarding the characteristics of shopping centers.  According to the 
fi ndings, community and neighborhood centers ranging between three 
and 30 acres in size can be expected within the corridor. These uses 
could be sited alone or grouped near business parks, thus increasing the 
overall commercial development in the area.  See Appendix for additional 
details.

TABLE 2-10 CHARACTERISTICS OF SHOPPING CENTERS

Type of 
Center

Leading Tenant Typical 
GLA (sf)

General 
Range in 

GLA

Site 
Area 

(acres)
Super 
Regional

Three or 
more full-line 
department stores

       
900,000 

500,000 - 
2,000,000

15-100 
or more

Regional One or two full-
line department 
stores

       
450,000 

300,000 - 
900,000

10-60

Community Varies based 
on type: Power; 
Town; Lifestyle; 
Outlet; Off-Price 
Centers

       
150,000 

100,000 - 
450,000

10-30

Neighborhood Supermarket          
50,000 

30,000 - 
100,000

3-10

Source:  Urban Land Institute, Shopping Center Development Handbook, 3rd ed.



3 Implementation Tools35 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

LAND USE

LAND USE GUIDELINES
Now that the corridor vision has been established, it is essential that it 
is adopted and codifi ed by Wellsville, Nibley, Logan and Cache County 
as part of existing ordinances and laws. The easiest way for this to be 
achieved is for each entity to adopt the Cache Valley South Corridor 
Development Plan, either as a separate document or as an addendum to 
the General Plan. 

Once the Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan has been 
adopted, the policies and ordinances of each jurisdiction should be 
revised to ensure that future development is aligned with the intent of 
the plan. In particular, the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of each 
jurisdiction should be reviewed and adjusted to ensure it is aligned with 
this plan.  

Once the plans, ordinances and policies have been adjusted, it is 
essential that the three communities, Cache County, UDOT, USU and 
others with interest in the corridor maintain the positive dialogue that has 
been established, and continue to review and discuss the corridor as a 
unifi ed group. It is therefore recommended that a Cache Valley South 
Corridor Review Committee is established, with the specifi c purpose of 
reviewing and providing input and advice on all development within the 
corridor. The committee should be mandated to ensure that the vision 
contained in this plan is maintained and implemented. It will ultimately be 
up to the various entities and interest groups to establish the details, but 
it is essential that the committee include representatives of the corridor 
cities (Wellsville, Nibley and Logan), Cache County, UDOT, the American 
West Heritage Center, Utah State University, nearby property owners, as 
well as others deemed appropriate. 

LANDSCAPE AND STREETSCAPE GUIDELINES
The Landscape and Streetscape Guidelines that follow are intended 
to help maintain the strong and positive rural character of the corridor 
landscape. The guidelines should serve as references and ideas for 
Wellsville, Nibley, Logan, Cache County and others as they modify their 
plans, ordinances and offi cial documents.

As has been noted, the landscape is the main element that establishes 
the special “sense of place” and rural character of South Corridor. The 
nearby fi elds and pastures, small streams, rolling hills, simple fences, 
windbreaks and clusters of trees and vegetation are essential elements of 
this extraordinary place.

3 Implementation Tools
The intent of these guidelines is to extend vernacular landscape traditions 
and forms into the new and evolving landscape. In general, existing open 
spaces and natural areas earmarked to remain should be left alone to 
the greatest degree possible. In contrast, future roads, development 
areas and the clustered nodes should be developed utilizing the following 
guidelines. The width and treatments of adjacent roadways, the number 
of traffi c lanes, on-street parking treatments, the location of street trees, 
and the scale and detail of buffer zone landscaping all have signifi cant 
visual impacts that will shape impressions of the area. 

US-89/91 -  LANDSCAPE AND STREETSCAPE TREATMENTS
As illustrated in the Typical Section of Highway 89/91 in Figures 3-1 and 
3-2, a multi-use trail should be located adjacent to the highway, providing 
a fl exible system for walkers, cyclists, equestrian riders and farm 
machinery to safely navigate the corridor. The trail that is illustrated in the 
drawing is conceptual in nature and will require detailed design input by 
UDOT and others to ensure it is safe and doable.  However, it is essential 
that the implemented design results in a trail system that provides north-
south movement for all envisioned users.

Loose plantings of trees and shrubs should line the outer edges of the 
nodes for about 50 feet. These elements should refl ect the vernacular 
landscape which surrounds these places. This will help soften the hard 
edge of the buildings, and provide a visual buffer between the highway 
and nearby parking lots and service areas.  Individual and small clusters 
of shade trees should be located in proximity to the trail and near 
intersections, providing places for trail users to wait, rest and relax.

Beyond the nodes, the 500’ open space buffers should continue to refl ect 
the rural/agricultural setting. Pastures, fi elds, natural open spaces and 
similar treatments should be encouraged and maintained to the greatest 
extent possible. In contrast, manicured parks, lawns and other, high 
maintenance and out-of-character treatments should be prohibited.  
Individual shade trees should be located in proximity to the trail.

Fences should be used only where needed, such as along the edge of 
the highway, and along the edge of private properties. Fences should 
match those existing in the area, thereby helping to maintain a unifi ed 
corridor appearance. Fences should be simple and open, and only as tall 
as necessary to fulfi ll the function they serve. They should be constructed 
using readily-available local materials that fi t with the rural setting. The 
design of fences and walls should correspond to the surrounding fence 
treatments already established along corridor farms.



3 Implementation Tools Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 36

Tightly-spaced columnar trees should be 
used on all of these streets to create a 
unifi ed corridor “look”.

Note: The US-89/91 Highway Right-of-Way should be widened to 
incorporate all elements illustrated, including the multi-purpose trail.

Figure 3-2 Example of Multi-Purpose Trail that Serves Multiple User GroupsFigure 3-1 Typical Highway and Road Sections



3 Implementation Tools37 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

CONTROLLED ACCESS STREET - LANDSCAPE AND STREETSCAPE 
TREATMENTS

• Main Street/5000 South (Wellsville)
• 4400 South (Wellsville)
• 3200 South (Nibley)
• 2600 South (Nibley)
• 1000 West Gateway Commercial Area (Logan) 

As illustrated in the Typical Section for 2600 South, 3200 South, 4400 
South, and 5000 South on Figure 3-1, streetscape improvements along 
the main east/west roadways should help create a unifi ed overall look for 
the corridor while providing a special feeling for each node. The roadways 
should generally include a bicycle lane in each direction, rural-style street 
lights, and deep front yards generously landscaped with trees, shrubs and 
special garden treatments. 

In order to enhance the establishment of each node as a gateway 
destination, no street trees should be planted along the roads between 
US-89/91 and the outer edges of node development. Within the nodes, 
strict rows of upright trees should be planted in wide park strips between 
the road and sidewalks, refl ecting the traditional practice of planting 
windbreaks along farm roads and property edges.  This will be a unifi ed 
treatment for each node.  

Trees and plants should be utilized that are suited to the local climate, 
that fi t with the surrounding landscape, and that are water-conserving.

PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION AND CROSSINGS – LANDSCAPE AND 
STREETSCAPE TREATMENTS 
The US-89/91 trails should be extended over the cross-streets as 
crosswalks, thereby promoting continuous and safe pedestrian/bicycle 
movement along the highway. 

Additional design input is necessary to determine the fi nal confi guration 
of each trail segment and the incorporation of envisioned trails users 
(pedestrians, cyclists, equestrian riders, and farm equipment). The 
location and design of highway crossings should be carefully considered 
to ensure safe passage by all potential users. Tunnels and/or bridges 
should be considered at key locations as long-term solutions.

Sidewalks and walkways that line the east/west streets should be 
constructed of asphalt, concrete, unit pavers or similar materials in 
accordance to specifi c needs and functional requirements. Pavement 
colors should be carefully considered to ensure these facilities fi t in the 
surrounding landscape.

Figure 3-4 Examples of Appropriate Site Furnishings

Figure 3-3 Examples of Appropriate Light Fixtures



3 Implementation Tools Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 38

Figure 3-5 Additional Examples of Appropriate Site Furnishings



3 Implementation Tools39 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

LIGHTING AND FURNISHINGS
Streetlights and furnishings should be coordinated at each node, while 
encouraging a sense of individuality for each node. Furnishings should 
be limited to a select range of benches, trash receptacles and other basic 
elements appropriate for the rural setting. Streetlights should be selected 
from a single model-line for each node, and poles and fi xtures should be 
used that complement the rural feel. Only “Night Sky” compliant fi xtures 
should be used. 

PARKING LOTS AND SERVICE AREAS
Parking lots and service areas are essential components of successful 
commercial, industrial and mixed-use developments. The design of these 
areas should be treated with the same care as the adjacent streets, with a 
focus on “fi tting in” and putting the needs of pedestrians on equal footing 
with motorists.

A well-conceived shading strategy provides a level of order and structure 
that can transform a parking lot from an undifferentiated asphalt expanse 
into a clearly articulated, safe, comfortable and visually interesting place. 
Parking lots should be landscaped with a mix of medium-to-tall shade 
trees (25-45 feet high and wide). Trees should have a heavy canopy 
to provide good shade. They should be water conserving and distinctly 
different in species and form from those of adjacent streets. Tree species 
with roots that are likely to heave paving or which are diffi cult to maintain 
should be avoided. The trees should be typically planted in rows within 
barrier islands, although clustered tree planting may be preferable in 
certain cases. 

Where parking is visible from the highway and adjacent roads, trees 
should be used to help buffer the parking area from the street. A 
loose and informal layout should be used to fi t in with the surrounding 
landscape.

Lighting should be provided in all parking lots. Poles and fi xtures that 
complement the rural feel of each node should be used. Only “Night Sky” 
friendly fi xtures should be used. 

STREET TREES AND LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS
A variety of large shade trees should be used to transform each node into 
a lush and inviting place. In general, shade and street trees should be 
selected that are large at maturity, since this will reinforce the formation of 
a pleasant and traditional character for each area.  

FENCES AND BARRIERS
Fences should be used only where needed, such as along the edges 
of the nodes. They should match existing fences in the area, which will 
maintain a unifi ed corridor look. 

Figure 3-6 Examples of Appropriate Tree Characteristics



3 Implementation Tools Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 40

Solid fences and walls should be used sparingly, helping to screen or 
buffer parking lots, loading zones and similar utilitarian spaces from view. 
In general, fences and screens should be limited to the rear and sides 
of buildings, thereby helping to reinforce the establishment of each node 
as a unifi ed place. These features should be constructed from forms and 
materials that fi t with the rural setting. 
Wood, timber and wire are particularly 
appropriate. The design of fences and 
walls should respond to surrounding 
fence treatments.

ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES 
AND PREFERENCES

This section provides general 
guidelines and preferences for the 
architectural character of buildings 
constructed along the Cache Valley 
South Corridor. These guidelines 
are intended to provide design 
and development direction to the 
leaders, property owners, architects, 
designers, and developers of 
Wellsville, Nibley and Logan, Cache 
County as they design and construct 
new projects that refl ect the special 
qualities of the South Corridor.

The most iconic buildings found throughout the corridor, and those that 
give the strongest sense of this rural place are the agrarian vernacular 
buildings. These buildings are typifi ed by and include the following 
qualities:

 - Simple and straightforward building forms.
 - Practical and utilitarian use of space.
 - Use of natural building materials.
 - Expression of exposed structural elements such as    
    beams and rafters, columns, and steel brackets.
 - Stand alone structures surrounded by open-space.
 - Restraint and order with little or no decoration.

The intent of the guidelines is to promote characteristics that are 
similar to the vernacular buildings in the corridor, as well as modern or 
contemporary interpretations of such buildings that enhance the corridor.  

SCALE, MASSING, AND FORM

One of the most important design principles for the corridor is ensuring 
that future development in the South Corridor has an appropriate scale 

Figure 3-7 Examples of Appropriate Fences and Barriers

Figure 3-8 Examples of Appropriate Architectural Scale and Form



3 Implementation Tools41 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

and fi ts with existing buildings and the surrounding landscape. In order 
to achieve this, smaller buildings are encouraged in the area, as they are 
the most appropriate fi t, particularly in comparison to large “big box” uses. 
Corresponding support for such building types should be refl ected in land 
use plans, zoning ordinances and other implementation tools of the three 
jurisdictions and Cache County. The vernacular buildings of the corridor 
have a simplicity that provides for a simple understanding or readability 
of the building. The forms are also timeless in a sense. New development 
and buildings along the corridor should continue and enhance this 
simplicity and straightforward approach.

New construction in the South Corridor should build upon and refl ect the 
historical legacy of the South Corridor.  Each building should be designed 
for its specifi c context and not look as if it could be located just anywhere. 

Original designs and forms for each building in the corridor are 
preferable to corporate building prototypes and building designs that 
are easily-replicated and monotonous. Historical stylization and “theme” 
architecture, especially of styles unrelated to the rural vernacular, or 
which have no precedent in the west, should be discouraged. Each 
building within the corridor should be designed with individual character 
for this rural place. 

To minimize the impact on the viewshed, buildings along the corridor 
should be maintained as low, single story buildings when possible. Where 
mixed-use buildings are envisioned, such as lower-level retail and upper-
level housing, a maximum of three stories is suggested. The further these 
taller buildings are separated from the highway, the less impact they will 
have on the viewshed.

Multiple buildings on the same site should be cohesively designed in 
a manner that provides a visual relationship between buildings while 
also providing connections to pedestrian plazas, open space, and view 
corridors to the surroundings.

Stand-alone buildings with a single or few tenants are preferred to long 
buildings with numerous tenants. Where long buildings are required, 
architectural features and elements should be used to break down the 
scale and massing of the building. These features should relate to the 
rural vernacular and could include the stepping of roofs, changes in roof 
pitch, variation in windows and openings, vertical breaks in the facade 
and other architectural variation. 

MATERIALS

Materials consistent with the corridor and western region rural buildings, 
include:

a. Wood siding including horizontal, vertical, and    
board-batten types.

b. Corrugated and other horizontal and vertical metal   
siding patterns in pre-fi nished colors, and natural metal   
fi nishes, including weathering steel.

c. Standing seam and corrugated metal roofi ng.
d. Exposed board-formed concrete. 
e. Monolithic stone. 

ORIENTATION
Building design and siting should consider solar orientation, climatic 
conditions, wind patterns, and other environmental conditions.  

The location of the highway adjacent to the outer walls of new buildings 
makes it essential that the design of the rear of buildings be carefully 
considered for forming positive fi rst-impressions about the corridor. It is 
preferred that the longest orientation of a building not be tangent to the 
highway, thereby minimizing the visual impact. In cases where the back 
facade is tangent and visible from the highway, exterior building design 
including windows and openings, materials, and architectural features 
should be considered and coordinated for all sides of the building to 
achieve harmony and continuity of design. 

SCREENING
Roof top and ground level mechanical units, condensing units, electrical 
equipment and transformers, dumpsters, and service loading areas 
should be screened from view.  Screening for all equipment and 
dumpsters should be integrated and complementary to the design.  
Service loading areas will need to be considered early on in the site 
planning process to accomplish effective screening. 

SIGNAGE
Signage is often a prominent feature wherever commercial 
establishments exist.  Numerous signs, highly colored and stylized signs, 
and signs that are out of scale can have a negative impact on the rural 
setting. The use of buildings as advertising, which prominently display 
corporate identity, is not conducive to this rural area and should be 
discouraged. Billboards and similar signs should be explicitly forbidden 
throughout the corridor.

SUSTAINABILITY
The design of sustainable buildings that are energy effi cient and have 
less impact on the environment will continue to gain importance in the 
coming years. It is essential that cities understand sustainable design 
and programs such as the USGBC (U.S. Green Building Council) 
LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) rating system.  
Sometimes ordinances are put into affect that contradict sustainable 
practices.  One example might be that an ordinance requires dark colored 
roofi ng, while sustainable practices would promote light colored roofi ng 
that refl ects heat energy and supports the cool roofi ng process.  It is up to 

Figure 3-9 Examples of Appropriate Materials



3 Implementation Tools Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 42

the individual municipalities to understand the importance of sustainable 
practices and to keep up-to-date with appropriate development and 
implementation.

DESIGN REVIEW
Each of the municipalities along the corridor is encouraged to establish 
building and zoning ordinances and to participate in a corridor design 
review committee.  As ordinances are developed and proposed building 
developments are reviewed, the following four general questions should 
be considered:

1. Does the proposed design relate to the rural character of the 
corridor?

2. Does the proposed design establish an undesirable precedent?
3. Does the proposed design create a substantial detriment to the 

adjacent properties?
4. Does the proposed design protect the character of and enhance 

the corridor?

TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC

INTEGRATE UDOT PLANNING/STIP PROCESS
As part of their regular planning process, the Utah Department of 
Transportation’s (UDOT) 5 year State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) incorporates projects into a funded year.  It is 
recommended that a prioritized list of corridor improvements be identifi ed 
by UDOT along with the planned funded year to begin integration of these 
improvements into future STIP programming.   

PURSUE UDOT CORRIDOR PRESERVATION FUNDING
UDOT currently maintains a statewide corridor preservation fund to 
secure properties for future transportation needs.  It is recommended that 
the CMPO and the municipalities work together to develop applications 
for funding acquisition of property that may become available as part of 
the land development process.  

CCCOG FACILITATION OF SALES TAX FOR UDOT CORRIDOR 
PRESERVATION
Currently a ¼ cent sales tax is captured by Cache County for the 
development of transportation related facilities.  In order to implement 
access, right-of-way for future roadway expansion, intersection 
enhancements, and other critical improvements associated with 
the corridor, it is recommended that the Cache County Council of 
Governments (CCCOG) incorporate US-89/91 corridor preservation into 
the use of these funds.  This would also require the CCCOG to implement 
a process to entertain applications from the municipalities as development 
occurs and the opportunity for property acquisition may be available.  

ACCESS FACILITATION
It is recommended that the CCCOG work cooperatively with the 
municipalities to develop a facilitated approach to the property 
owners along the corridor.  This could include discussions on corridor 
preservation applications as well as possible right of fi rst refusal 
agreements that would allow the CCCOG or UDOT to purchase parcels 
of property prior to future development.  

TRANSIT (FTA) FUNDING
It is recommended that Federal Transit Administration (FTA) transit 
related funds be pursued as expansion of the transit system becomes 
necessary to meet future demands.  

ECONOMY AND FINANCING

FINANCIAL TOOLS
A discussion of fi nancial tools is included, as it will be necessary for 
the communities to use a variety of funding mechanisms in order to: 1) 
preserve open space and protect the corridor from sprawling, leapfrog 
development; and 2) encourage clustered commercial development at 
identifi ed nodes along the highway.  

As described below, the tools used to preserve open space include: 
conservation easements, purchase of open space through bonding, 
density bonuses and transfer of development rights (TDRs).

Tools used to encourage clustered commercial development at specifi c 
locations include: tax increment fi nancing and revenue sharing interlocal 
agreements.

Conservation Easements can be used to achieve the desired 
development setbacks along the highway and to protect agricultural 
property.  A conservation easement is a legal document between a 
property owner and a government agency or a land trust that restricts 
the right to real estate development.  In essence, an easement divides 
property rights into a bundle of rights that includes such things as 
ownership, development, mineral rights, water rights, etc.  The property 
owner can either voluntarily donate some of these rights, or he or she 
can be compensated for them.  A conservation easement is binding on all 
future land owners.  Although the landowner has given up specifi ed rights, 
he continues to own the land.  

How should a conservation easement limiting development rights be 
valued? The value can be established by taking the difference between 
the fair market value appraisals with and without the easement. 
Depending on size, confi guration and location of the property, 
conservation easements will vary greatly in value. For example, a 
conservation easement on a smaller piece of property may greatly limit 
future uses, and thereby signifi cantly increase the cost of the easement. 

In comparison, an easement on a larger piece of property may have 
no material impact on development which may be able to be clustered 
on the remaining acreage, thereby signifi cantly reducing the cost of the 
easement in comparison to a smaller piece of property.  

Easements can be public or private in nature. However, if the easement is 
purchased with public funds, most communities require the easement to 
be accessible by the public.  

Easements can also be encouraged by suggesting escrow 
arrangements that allow property owners to tentatively commit 
to conservation easements, but do not fi nalize the easement until 
neighboring owners commit as well. The arrangement works by 
allowing property owners to place conservation easements in escrow. 
If a predetermined percentage of nearby landowners agree to similar 
easements, the entire package of easements is transferred to a 
governmental agency or land trust.  If not, the conservation easements 
never take effect and owners are free to do with their property as they 
please.

If landowners want to preserve their land in perpetuity yet use it during 
their lifetime, they should consider using a remainder interest. The 
remainder interest enables landowners to donate property to a qualifi ed 
organization, receive an income tax deduction, and reserve a life estate 
for themselves so they can live out their lives on the land. Donations can 
also be made by will, which preserves for the landowners the right to 
change their minds. It does not entitle the landowners to an income tax 
deduction during their lifetimes, but does reduce the size of the taxable 
estate. A landowner should make sure the recipient organization will 
accept the gift before donating by will1. 

An owner of very valuable land who wants to donate his or her land to 
a trust and retain an income source from it may consider charitable 
remainder unitrusts. The landowner places a conservation easement 
on the land, sells the land and invests the proceeds into a trust fund 
that provides the landowner with income for life. Upon the landowner’s 
death, the remaining trust funds are donated to a nonprofi t organization 
or charity. This method provides income, tax benefi ts and charitable 
contributions2. 

General obligation bonds for open space can be issued by the County 
to raise funds to purchase conservation easements.  No study has been 
done to quantify the purchase price of conservation easements in Cache 
County; therefore, the following table simply shows the potential tax 
impacts to property owners based on three different revenue amounts 
raised:  $2,000,000, $5,000,000 or $10,000,000.  Under these three 
scenarios, the annual payment per $100,000 of taxable value3 ranges 
1 Ways to Conserve Wyoming’s Lands: A Guidebook
2 Ibid.
3 Taxable value on a primary residence is equal to 55 percent of the assessed  



3 Implementation Tools43 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

from $2.84 to $14.21.
 

TABLE 3-1 PROJECTED OPEN SPACE BOND PAYMENTS

Cache County taxable 
value

$5,254,290,413

Interest rate 4%
Bond term in years                        20 
Issuance costs 1.5%
Par amount of bond $2,030,000 $5,075,000 $10,150,000 
Revenue available for 
open space

$2,000,000 $5,000,000 $10,000,000

Annual debt service $149,371 $373,427 $746,855
Tax rate  0.000028 0.000071 0.000142 
Per $100,000 of taxable 
value

$2.84 $7.11 $14.21 

General Obligation bonds (“GO”) are subject to simple majority voter 
approval by the constituents of the issuing entity.  General obligation 
elections can be held two times each year, in November and June, 
following certain notifi cation procedures that must be adhered to in 
accordance with State Statutes in order to call the election (pursuant to 
Utah State Code 11-14-2 through 12).  Following a successful election, 
it is not necessary to issue bonds immediately, but all bonds authorized 
must be issued within ten years.  Once given the approval to proceed with 
the issuance of the bonds, it takes approximately sixty days to complete 
the bond issuance.

General obligation bonds can be issued for any governmental purpose 
as detailed in Section 11-14-1.  The amount of general obligation debt is 
subject to the following statutory limitations:

• Counties are limited to two percent (2%) of the total taxable value of 
the County;

• Cities of the 1st and 2nd class are limited to a total of eight percent 
(8%) of the total taxable value; four (4%) for general purposes; and 
four (4%) for water, sewer and lights; and

• Cities of other classes or towns are limited to a total of twelve percent 
(12%) of total taxable value; four percent (4%) for general purposes; 
and eight percent (8%) for water, sewer and lights.

Notwithstanding the limits noted above, most local governments in Utah 
have signifi cantly less debt than the statutory limitations.  Pursuant to 
state law, general obligation bonds must mature in not more than forty 
years from their date of issuance.  Typically, however, most GO bonds 
 (market) value of the home.  Therefore, a home with an assessed value of  
 $181,818 would have a taxable value of $100,000.

mature in twenty-fi ve to thirty years.  

Since general obligation bonds are secured by the taxing power and are a 
full faith and credit pledge of the issuing government, they offer the lowest 
credit risk to the bondholders and the lowest overall cost.  The downside 
to GO bonds is that they require an election, and election outcomes are 
uncertain and can be costly (win or lose).  GO bonds are generally most 
successful when the benefi ts are viewed as accruing to the community as 
a whole – not just one specifi c area or demographic group. 

Another funding tool for the acquisition of open space is TDRs – 
Transfer of Development Rights. TDRs are based on the premise that 
development rights can be sold, or transferred, from one area to another.  
Sending areas sell development rights that can be used in receiving 
areas that are willing and able to absorb higher densities.  Communities 
involved with TDRs have found that it is relatively easy to identify 
sending areas (areas where land preservation is desirable), but is often 
harder to locate receiving areas (areas that are willing to absorb greater 
density and where market conditions are favorable). In order for TDRs 
to succeed, communities need to identify areas where there is a strong 
desire for density.  

The ratio of selling development rights to receiving development rights 
is based on the price that a developer is willing to pay for density.  TDRs 
may be held and used when market conditions are favorable.  They have 
no expiration date, as the courts have determined that such would be 
considered a “taking.”    

One of the disadvantages of the TDR program is that, because it is 
voluntary in nature, it tends toward patchwork conservation patterns.  
Good planning must accompany a TDR program and it is essential that 
all communities involved work together to ensure consistency with the 
program.  Cities must understand that they cannot increase density 
through other means, or there will be no incentive to participate in the 
TDR program.

Cache County could consider a TDR program but, in order for it to be 
successful, it would need to identify receiving areas that are suitable for 
higher-density development.  Another variation of the TDR approach 
is for the County to grant increased density on a portion of a property 
and, in exchange, the County receives some portion of the property (as 
compensation for the added density).  This land can then be sold and 
proceeds can be used to purchase conservation easements.  Increased 
density can also be granted on one portion of a property in exchange for 
a conservation easement on another portion of the land.

A deed restriction is established by the landowners on a property’s 
title, typically when the landowners are selling the land and wish to exert 
some infl uence over its use. For example, home site purchasers may buy 

subject to deed restrictions that limit the number of buildings and their 
size, preserve views, or specify architectural guidelines that will blend 
homes into the landscape. By creating home sites that are secluded, 
scenic and pristine enough to demand top dollar, property owners may be 
able to maximize their return while developing a small amount of land that 
will still preserve open space.

A right-of-fi rst refusal is an agreement between a landowner and a 
potential buyer in which the landowner agrees that if he or she receives 
a legitimate offer from another party, the holder of the right of fi rst refusal 
will have a specifi ed period of time to match the offer and acquire the 
property. Rights-of-fi rst refusal can be especially useful to landowners 
who want to guarantee a neighbor or land trust a chance to purchase 
their property in the event of a forced sale.  Rights of fi rst refusal do not 
have to be executed, and if there is another offer made that will preserve 
open space, the right of fi rst refusal will likely not be used.

Tax Increment Financing is a way that the public and private sectors can 
join together to encourage desired economic development.  Community 
development areas (CDAs) could be created at specifi c development 
sites. The existing taxable value of the site becomes the base taxable 
value.  Any increase in taxable value over the baseline, during the 
period of the CDA, forms the basis for tax increment revenues. Taxes 
are not raised in a CDA. Rather, the property taxes generated from the 
new development that occurs after the CDA is formed can be used to 
incentivize economic development in the project area. Increment may be 
used for a wide variety of projects in the area, including roads, utilities, 
land write-downs, demolitions, parking, street lighting, parkways, etc. In 
order to use the tax increment, the taxing entities in the area (i.e., school 
district, city, county, special districts, etc.) must agree to participate in 
the CDA through interlocal agreements that designate a portion of their 
increment to the project area for a specifi c period of time.

Experience suggests that it is easier to obtain the approval of the taxing 
entities when the development involves industrial/business park uses, 
rather than retail uses.  This is due to the fact that industrial/business park 
uses have signifi cantly lower costs for municipal services (i.e., police calls 
for service, traffi c generation, etc.) than do retail areas, and they also do 
not have children that raise school costs. Therefore, many communities 
attempt to establish tax increment areas by combining industrial park/
business park areas with some retail development, as long as the time 
frames for development are similar and the areas are adjacent to each 
other (and so can be combined into one CDA).  

Another concern raised during the course of this study has been the 
relative equity of where commercial clusters should be located along the 
highway. Because sales tax revenues are distributed both on population 
and point of sale, it is advantageous for communities to have sales 
tax-generating businesses locate within their boundaries. The sales 



3 Implementation Tools Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan 44

tax distribution formula in Utah has often created planning issues, as 
communities frequently locate grocery stores or other large retail centers 
on their borders in an effort to attract dollars into their community from 
surrounding areas. For this reason, Nibley and Logan may want to 
consider revenue sharing agreements for commercial development 
that will allow for equity between the two communities, given growth 
projections in the local area, and that will also account fairly for the cost of 
providing municipal services to retail development. This arrangement has 
worked well for other communities with bordering developments, where 
buildings and parking lots straddle municipal boundaries. City boundary 
adjustments between Nibley and Logan may also need to be considered 
in order to achieve good planning and equity with highway corridor 
commercial development.



Landmark Design Team

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan -  APPEND IX

31 August 2011



Table of Contents  Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan i

Table of Contents - Appendix
INTERVIEWS ...................................................................................... A-1
STEERING COMMITTEE PARTNERING AGREEMENT .................................... A-2
STEERING COMMITTEE MEETINGS ........................................................ A-3
PUBLIC SCOPING MEETING NOTES ...................................................... A-6
PUBLIC WORKSHOP NOTES ................................................................ A-10
KEY PLANNING ISSUES ....................................................................... A-12
SUMMARY ANALYSIS .......................................................................... A-12
IMPLEMENTATION GOALS ................................................................... A-13
ALTERNATIVE PLANNING CONCEPTS ..................................................... A-13
REFINING THE ALTERNATIVES .............................................................. A-13
RETAIL DEVELOPMENT ....................................................................... A-18
SALES LEAKAGE ANALYSIS .................................................................. A-18



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-1

Appendix
INTERVIEWS

1. WELLSVILLE
Meeting Notes from Introductory Meeting
January 24, 2011, 10:00 a.m. at City Hall
Attending:   Mark Vlasic, Jan Striefel, Susan Becker, Seth Striefel
Meeting with Don Hartel and Mayor Bailey.   Carl Latham (City Council) 
will be the other representative on the Steering Committee.

Land Use and Zoning
The City of Wellsville includes Sherwood Hills.  They would like to see a 
common vision for the corridor that keeps open space along the highway.  
Their subdivision ordinance includes a requirement for 40 percent open 
space and cluster development.  One example is the new subdivision at 
the south end of the corridor just after coming out of Sardine Canyon.  
They also required a 200’ setback from the highway.   We asked if that 
was enough of a setback, and they felt comfortable with it.  

The City does not have design guidelines, but they would like to do some 
this year for commercial development.  They are also in the process of 
redoing their land use and subdivision codes.  Their ordinances have 
been in place for years, but they want to clean-up issues related to the 
commercial zones and signing.  

They estimate there are approximately 100 acres currently zoned for 
commercial, with some manufacturing as well.  They foresee these areas 
as developing things such as a Maverick, strip mall, small commercial.  
Jay Nielson is their zoning consultant.  

Their annexation area roughly extends east to the Meridian Road and 
south to the Box Elder County line.  They do not allow development 
on slopes over 20 percent – they are concerned about recent events 
in Mapleton where the City was sued because a developer wanted 
to develop on steep slopes, but so far they have successfully averted 
development in those areas.  

The zoning map and future land use map can be obtained from Chris 
Brinehold at Jones and Associates.  801.476.9767. The zoning ordinance 
is on line.  

Public Services
Wellsville has a good water supply, and their sewer is probably OK for 
another 20 years.  They require that any one wishing to be annexed into 
the City bring with them 3 acre feet of water  for every acre developed.  
Water is available (may be purchased from) from the Wellsville Irrigation 
Company and the Hyrum Dam canal.  But, they are also concerned about 

Bear River water being taking by Salt Lake City.  

Traffi c  
The road to the Caine Dairy will have a traffi c light.  There are traffi c 
issues at the intersection where the park and ride lot is located – lots of 
cross traffi c.  Wellsville wrote to UDOT about 8 years ago asking for an 
overpass, but they received no response from UDOT. 

Biggest Issues/Concerns
Open space is the biggest issue.  They believe they are more interested 
in and concerned about open space than other communities.  

What are the hot spots:  Nibley, they want commercial on the highway 
and worked out a deal with USU so that they provide sewer to the new 
facilities, which means they will end up in Nibley rather than in Wellsville 
even USU property is in their annexation area. However, they anticipate 
getting along well.

2. NIBLEY
Meeting Notes from Introductory Meeting
January 24, 2011, 11:30 a.m. at City Hall
Attending:   Mark Vlasic, Jan Striefel, Susan Becker, Seth Striefel
Meeting with Mayor Knight and Shari Phippen (planner).  Larry Jacobsen 
(City Council) will be the other representative on the Steering Committee.

General
Mayor Knight would like to receive information about the Team.  Mark will 
provide it.  
Meeting times:  Thursday (1st and 3rd) night is City Council meetings 
in Nibley at 6:00.  Mayor requests a change of time for the fi rst Steering 
Committee meeting to 4:00 p.m. rather than 4:30.  

Land Use and Zoning
Through a series of unfortunate events, Logan took much of the frontage 
on the highway that Nibley had planned for commercial development.  
Property owners involved were concerned about being annexed into 
Nibley and petitioned to be annexed into Logan instead.  This has created 
some bad feelings.  Nibley’s plan was to develop parallel roads adjacent 
to the highway so that the commercial development would not actually 
front onto the highway.  The parallel roads were approximately 660 feet 
back from the highway, and short segments have already been installed 
where there are existing water and sewer lines. Now, they cannot be 
completed.  Mayor Knight has asked the Mayor of Logan to give the 
property back so that it can be annexed into Nibley; Logan’s mayor said 
he would take a look at it.  Mayor Knights feelings are that the parallel 
road idea solves the access issues, and that ample open space would be 

maintained because of the USU property extending south to the Heritage 
Center.  

The commercial is intended to be General Commercial, and is retail 
based.  Industrial lands are intended to be mostly light industrial – right 
now there is a scrap-booking place and a soap making supplies place.   
Weathershield is shutting down.  

They have plans for a Town Center that is more in the center of town 
and not along the highway.  This would be smaller shops and retail 
establishments, not like the larger retail along the highway. The Town 
Center overlay is not yet in place, but will happen this year and focus on 
mixed use.  If a big box were to come, it would go along Highway 89.  The 
commercial will happen along the highway; the question raised is whether 
it will be clustered, nodal, what it will look like, etc.  

A new development of town homes has been selling very well and 
includes families, singles, newlyweds, and empty nesters.  They are 
selling for $120,000-$150,000.

Nibley favored the open space bond proposed last year which failed 60% 
against, 40% for.  

Nibley feels betrayed by Logan.  They don’t trust Logan with regard to 
any revenue sharing arrangement.  The Logan City Council apparently 
all favored the take-over of the Nibley annexation area land.  They also 
feel betrayed because they were not involved in the consultant selection 
process or informed prior to hiring a consultant.  

They have site development guidelines for commercial areas and were 
used on the feed store development.  This development was to be 
anchored by Peterson’s Feed Store, with other small and complimentary 
uses.  The project is essentially unleased and empty and was constructed 
in 2007 by an Ogden developer.  The feed store is doing OK, and one 
section was recently leased as a USU agricultural offi ce and another as a 
billiard supply company – both not revenue generating.  

The over-arching goals of this kind of corridor plan are good, but each 
community must be allowed some wiggle-room. (Comment from the 
planner.)

Utilities
Existing water and sewer already runs along the parallel roads.  They 
just built a new water tank and are planning a new well, so water is not a 
concern.  



Appendix A-2 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Cache County School District wants to build a new high school in that 
part of the county.  There are two existing county high schools (Hyrum 
and Smithfi eld), and one in Logan.  But a new one in the south end of the 
valley is needed, and Nibley would like to be the location.  

3. BRAG 

Meeting Notes from Introductory Meeting
January 24, 2011, 1:00 p.m.. at BRAG offi ces.
Attending:   Mark Vlasic, Jan Striefel, Susan Becker, Seth Striefel
Meeting with Brian Carver

Traffi c
Brian was to put together some data for the Team, but he does not have 
traffi c data.  That will have to come from Jeff Gilbert at Cache County.  He 
will have all the counts and projections.

Demographics
The only population data they have comes from GOPB.  Brian will get that 
data and do some tweaking to be specifi c to the corridor if possible.  The 
same situation applies to employment data.  

Brian suggested talking with Bob Fotheringham who is the Water 
Manager for Cache County.  He know all about water rights, the Bear 
River Water and attempts to take it from the valley for us in Salt Lake.  
But basically, Cache County currently has more water than any other area 
of the state; though they are concerned about loosing it.  

STEERING COMMITTEE PARTNERING AGREEMENT



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-3

STEERING COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan
STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING #1
February 3 2011 at 4:00 pm, Cache County Offi ces/ Multipurpose Room

Attendance

1) Steering Committee
Wendell Morse Chair of SCPG
Sandy Emile  Chamber of Commerce
Clark Israelson Agriculture
Tom Jensen  Community 
Dave Cowley  USU
Larry Miller  Transportation Industry
Paul Norton  American West Heritage Center
Randy Watts  Mayor - Logan
Laraine Swenson City Council - Logan 
Holley Daines  City Council - Logan
Gerald Knight  Mayor - Nibley
Larry Jacobsen City Council - Nibley
Shari Phippen City Planner - Nibley
Thomas Bailey Mayor - Wellsville
Carl Leatham  City Council - Wellsville
Don Hartle  City Manager - Wellsville

Excused/ Absent
Curt Webb  Utah State Legislature
Brad Humphreys UDOT
Wayne Barlow UDOT
Lynn Lemon  Cache County Executive
Gordon Zilles  Cache County/Agriculture
Craig Petersen Cache Regional Council

2) Technical Committee Members and others
Jay Nielson  Project Manager 
Glen Goins   Planning Manager, Logan City 
Josh Runhaar  Cache County Director of Development Services 
Jeff Gilbert  Transportation Planner, Cache Metropolitan   
         Planning Organization 
Lynn Zollinger  Corridor Resident
Jan Striefel   Landmark Design
Mark Vlasic  Landmark Design
Kyle Comer  Civil Science, Inc.
Susan Becker  Lewis, Young, Robertson & Burningham

Welcome and Introductions
The Chairman welcomed all in attendance to the fi rst steering committee 

meeting, and providing a quick summary of the history of the project and 
the importance of the project. Each person in attendance then introduced 
themselves and the organizations they represent.

Committee Composition, Rules, Roles and Expectations
The Chairman noted that the role of the steering committee was advisory 
in nature, and the main purpose is to provide good guidance and input 
as the plan is developed. He noted that in addition to the Steering 
Committee members, a technical Committee composed of senior staff 
from Logan and Cache County would attend meetings and work directly 
with the Landmark Design Team of consultants. Upon questions why 
the Technical Committee did not include representatives of Nibley and 
Wellsville, it was decided that Shari Phippen of Nibley would serve in 
that capacity for Nibley (in addition to being one of their three Steering 
Committee members). Wellsville noted that Jay Nielson served that 
role for their community as their City Planner. The chairman noted that 
if additional members of the technical committee were required at later 
stages, they could be brought into the process as needed. He also noted 
that members of the public and other interested parties were encouraged 
to attend the meetings, and that their input and comments would be 
considered at the conclusion of each meeting. 

A question was raised how voting would take place, and how many votes 
each entity would receive. The chairman noted that voting per-se was 
not envisioned to be necessary, as it was hoped that decisions could be 
made through discussion and agreement as part of consensus building. It 
was noted that if voting was necessary, the terms and methods would be 
decided at that time.

Partnering Agreement
In order to begin with a clear understanding of the role of the committee 
and how they should work together, a Draft Partnering Agreement 
was presented for consideration by committee members. There was 
considerable discussion, including a note that the project administrators 
need to ensure that all meetings are held as scheduled, and that all 
members and other key participants attend meetings as needed and 
when needed. 

 It was noted that it is important to bring the general public into the 
process as soon as possible, and that the entire corridor has a 
coordinated vision.  The Cache Access Management Plan (CAMP) is 
good and is in place, and has already aided the communities and the 
county regarding rules for access.  Much work has already been done 
regarding the intersections; now it is important to plan around those.  
UDOT will continue to be concerned about ingress and egress.  

The document that comes from this process will be “softer” than the 
CAMP.  It is desired that it have “teeth”, but the committee will have to 
have input.  It is the hope that the process can build on the Envision 
Cache Valley process and the other efforts to development the corridor 
plan.  

The questions was raised about what “Support the Plan once developed” 
might mean?  Generally, it represents a good faith effort to work toward 
something that hopefully will benefi t everyone.

All committee members in attendance signed a modifi ed Partnering 
Agreement, which is attached as an appendix to these notes. 

Common Community Goals
A document briefl y outlining goals and objectives found in the various 
community general plans was introduced and briefl y discussed.  It 
illustrates that there are already many areas where the communities 
agree on how the corridor should develop.  The Chairman indicates that 
the corridor agreement and the CAMP should be added to the document.

Project Web Page
Mark stated that project information would be posted on our website with 
a link to the City’s.  The webpage address was given out to everyone -- 
www.ldi-ut.com.

Vision Statement
A Draft Vision Statement for the project was presented to the committee 
for their consideration. Following thorough discussion, the Vision 
Statement was modifi ed to more accurately refl ect the purpose of the 
project. The fi nal Vision Statement is included in this appendix.

Schedule for future meetings
Representatives of the Landmark Design team summarized the process 
that will be followed for this project, noting that a 30-week schedule 
ending in late July is being used. It was further noted that the process 
includes two rounds of meetings and workshops, to be held in each of 
the three cities through which the corridor passes (Nibley, Wellsville and 
Logan).  Following discussion, it was decided that meetings should also 
be held in an unincorporated location within the corridor area, possibly 
at the Heritage Center or one of the USU facilities. It was also noted 
that participants will not necessarily attend meetings only in their own 
community, and that some latitude should be provided when scheduling 
the meetings. Landmark Design and the Technical Committee will meet to 
determining the fi nal number and location of meetings, and to provide a 
revised schedule as soon as possible



Appendix A-4 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Members of the committee expressed their concern that the planning 
team reach out to members of the public in order to get good turnout. 
Landmark staff noted that city newsletters, fl yers, media reports, post 
cards, utility bills, website announcements and other methods will be 
considered, and that they will work closely with the project technical staff 
to use methods that are most likely to work. They also noted that they 
would like to cluster workshops and meetings as closely together as 
possible, and if possible hold the workshops as part of special community 
events. They noted that holding 2-3 meetings on a single Saturday would 
be very effi cient and could help establish a critical mass for the project on 
a day when more people may be likely to attend and participate.   

Landmark Design staff members also noted that only three Steering 
Committee meetings are currently scheduled, and that an additional 
meeting will be needed. The revised schedule will include four steering 
committee meetings at strategic points of the planning process.

The end product is envisioned to be a plan that is specifi c to each area 
and one that will be very graphic.  It will also include market and fi nancial 
planning.

Other
Future meetings are preferred on Thursday at 4:00 PM. Two weeks 
(minimum) notice will be provided.

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan
STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING #2
March 31, 2011 at 4:00 pm, Cache County Offi ces/ Multipurpose Room

Attendance
1) Steering Committee
Wendell Morse Chair of SCPG
Clark Israelson Agriculture
Tom Jensen  Community 
Dave Cowley  USU
Paul Norton  American West Heritage Center
Holly Daines  City Council - Logan
Gerald Knight  Mayor - Nibley
Larry Jacobsen City Council - Nibley
Shari Phippen City Planner - Nibley
Thomas Bailey Mayor - Wellsville
Carl Leatham  City Council - Wellsville
Don Hartle  City Manager – Wellsville
Darin Firstrup  UDOT
Darin Duersch UDOT
  Wayne Barlow UDOT

Excused/ Absent

Sandy Emile  Chamber of Commerce
Curt Webb  Utah State Legislature
Brad Humphreys UDOT
Lynn Lemon  Cache County Executive
Gordon Zilles  Cache County/Agriculture
Craig Petersen Cache Regional Council
Larry Miller  Transportation Industry
Randy Watts  Mayor – Logan
Laraine Swenson City Council - Logan 

2) Technical Committee Members and others
Jay Nielson  Project Manager 
Glen Goins   Planning Manager, Logan City 
Josh Runhaar  Cache County Director of Development Services 
Jeff Gilbert  Transportation Planner, Cache Metropolitan   
   Planning Organization
Lynn Zollinger  Corridor Resident
Jan Striefel   Landmark Design
Mark Vlasic  Landmark Design
Kyle Comer  Civil Science, Inc.
Jerry Fickas  Property Owner
Steve Kyriopoulos Property Owner
Dale Bankhead Property Owner
Rich Boyce  Property Owner
Mark Nielsen  Property Owner

Welcome:  Wendell welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked for 
introductions as there were some new people.  He then commented that 
there was good attendance at the three public scoping meetings – about 
80 people total, and most attended the afternoon meetings.  It was noted 
that most people who attended the meetings received notice through 
email, some from the direct mailing, and a couple from the ad in the 
newspaper.  

Review Notes From Meeting #1:  Wendell asked if there were any 
additions or comments regarding the notes from the fi rst Steering 
Committee Meeting.  There were none.

Summary Review of Public Scoping Meeting Input:  Mark passed out 
the comments received during the three public scoping meetings and 
reviewed some of the highlights.  New comments included the trail along 
the roadway, concentrating development in the cities and off the highway, 
purchase of development rights and similar management tools, and the 
establishment of 4400 South as a dedicated truck route to the east.

Committee Responses to the Comments:

• 10th West in Logan required regional cooperation in order to happen.  
It’s a good example of what is needed here as there will be confl icts 
between private property owners and the public interest.

• Farm equipment access:  Could a agricultural lane be combined with 
a trail for shared use?  It would serve two needs.  Nibley was trying to 
accomplish that through their development agreements.

• There is a difference between the givens – “Bill of Rights” of property 
owners (land won’t be taken and they have the right to develop) 
versus basic components of a good corridor (safe and free-fl owing 
traffi c, well-located commerce, key open spaces and views preserved, 
safe travel, etc.)  

• There should be open space between cities and to preserve long 
vistas and wetlands, and consideration for sensitive lands.

• Regarding visual – don’t create a uniform swath along the corridor.  
Variety is needed and currently exists.  Include vistas with the USU 
property and the American West Heritage Center lands.

• There is already quite a bit of bad uses along the corridor.  How do we 
solve that?

• Property rights issues could be resolved by purchasing the property. 
There is a better chance of purchase with an agreed-upon plan. 
Property will need to be purchased to preserve open space, and funds 
may be available from the State.

• UDOT has already purchased access rights along 3200 South – that 
does not preclude development, just where access will be. This can 
be very good strategy for discouraging or limiting development.

• There is a Corridor Access Revolving Loan Fund with currently has 
about $3 million that is a possible funding source.  

• The right plan will allow the right thing to happen.
• Equity between land ownership and property rights is important, but 

the plan must also address sales tax and why communities need 
it.  Need equity at all scales and for all communities because all the 
communities need to fund parks, etc. which are currently funded with 
sales tax.

• Economics needs analysis – if USU wanted to purchase more land, it 
may not be best for Wellsville and Nibley because of the potential loss 
of sales tax.  The Plan should address this.

• Europe has very intense planning that is highly controlled, but the 
results are good.  Something in between that (which is probably to 
controlling) and the existing situation may be needed here in order to 
get something good and attractive.  It will not be easy, but that’s why 
we are engaged in this planning process.  It’s possible!

• Need a good plan based on economics and sustainable growth and 
non-growth and a good implementation plan.  

• Wellsville and Nibley may be willing to forego commercial 
development if the distribution of sales tax and property tax is 
distributed differently and equitably.  Economics is important to 
sustainability.

Comments from others in the audience.



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-5

• The committee does not have enough property owners on it, there 
need to be more.

• USU does not have to abide by zoning.
• Property owners can help address agricultural access and want to be 

involved.
• Billboards should be allowed.
• There was a motion to include more private property owners on the 

committee and it passed.  There will be an additional two or three 
added to the committee.  Possible names include Parry Pardeau, 
Lynn Zollinger, James Zollinger, Him Anderson, Syd Zollinger, 
Hansen, Lishman, and someone north of 101.  The Technical 
Committee will make some suggestions to the Steering Committee 
and will then contact the potential members to join the committee.

Schedule:  Future meetings include the May 4th workshop/charette which 
will occur on May 4, 2011 at the American West Heritage Center.  Two 
sessions will be conducted, one in the morning and one in the afternoon 
and into the early evening.  The consultants will develop alternatives for 
the participants to comment on.  

The next Steering Committee meeting is planned for May 19th to review 
the workshop/charette results.

A fourth Steering Committee meeting is tentatively scheduled for June 30, 
2011 to review the draft plan.  

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan
STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING #3
March 31, 2011 at 3:00 pm, Cache County Offi ces/ Multipurpose Room
MEETING NOTES

Wendell welcomed the group and thanked them for all attending.

New Member, Dale Lishman was welcomed as a new committee member 
representing corridor property owners.

Mark prepared and presented a PowerPoint of the information from the 
public workshops to the members as many did not attend the workshop. 
It included economic information presented by Susie (she will add 
discussion on PDRs), transportation issues presented by Kyle, and 
a review of the four alternatives available for review and comment at 
the workshop.  The information was also available on the website for 
review.  He also briefl y went over a summary of the input received at the 
workshop and afterwards via mail and email.  

Dale Lishman asked about the vision for the plan.  It was explained 
that this plan is needed to help preserve views, and to viable economic 
development and tourism.  He mentioned a 1/8 cent tax that could be 
matched from the Federal Government to help preserve a 50’ buffer all 

along the corridor (this was proposed before).  It would include a 50’ 
buffer, a trail, and an agricultural road as a setback edged with a fence 
and dogwood plantings.  

Other comments:  UDOT needs this to have something to implement.  
Need partnerships with the state (USU), and perhaps some earmarked 
sales tax.  

Following are the comments/responses from the Steering Committee.

• What about the buffers and compensation to the property owners? 
Compensation could be attained with density shifts, but the smaller 
parcels may be more impacted because there would be no place to 
shift the density on the individual parcel.  

• Revise the map to just show that there is farmland and wetland 
adjacent to the highway and do not delineate the 1000’ buffer. The 
agricultural land will stay agricultural.  

• Are agricultural zones really true “agricultural zones” or are they just 
holding zones for future residential development?  Need to designate 
agricultural land and then fi nd the tools to make it happen.  Need to let 
the property owners know that tools will be developed to adequately 
compensate if needed.

THE CONSULTANT RECOMMENDATION WAS PRESENTED.

• WELLSVILLE:  Cannot support the 1000’ buffer.  The commercial 
district has been eliminated.  They have already considered and 
implemented slope restrictions, view corridors.  Wellsville cannot 
afford to pay for the valley views.  The best place for commercial is 
on the highway.  Wellsville is the “gateway” into the valley, and needs 
viable retail which is clustered.  

• There is an opportunity to focus on light industrial as the rail is an 
opportunity.  The amount of commercial acreage shown on the 
alternatives is what is viable and supportable based on Susan 
Becker’s economic analysis.  

• Look at the setbacks for commercial development – is there a 
dimension that ties directly to the parcel characteristics?  The 1000’ 
has some basis in keeping residential back because of noise.  Look at 
property ownership and topography, and fi nd a reasonable distance.  

• How are sound barriers determined?  They only go in if the majority 
of the property owners want it – that’s UDOT policy.  Kyle will confi rm 
that that is indeed offi cial UDOT policy.  

• NIBLEY:  Added lanes on the highway north of 3200 – this is in 
the CMPO – and will be about 20 feet, but there is also a need for 
additional lanes in the south.  Need to take into consideration future 
interchanges too.  

• Nibley has less commercial area zoned that is supportable.  Their 
challenges include:  they have an existing business park with utilities 
that is over 30 years old that is currently shown inside the 1000’ 

buffer.  Roads would need to be removed.  How do TDR’s and density 
bonuses work for commercial, and how can the city and property 
owners be compensated for that loss of commercial?  Perhaps, a TIF.  
Nibley doesn’t really want commercial, they want parks – but they 
need a way to pay for them. 

• At 2600 South and 3000 South there is a volatile group of residents 
who will be upset with the buffer.  They are there and need to be 
treated fairly.  

• The Team needs to look more closely at the Nibley Business Park.
• We need to meet with the city councils.
• We need to look at a longer period of time than 50 years.
• Rooftops need to be present to support commercial development.

SUMMARY
• Show farmland as farmland and explain the tools to be used to 

preserve it.
• Look at a viable setback based on UDOT, property lines, natural 

features, etc.  – it should be equitable.
• Look at setbacks at USU and AWHC.
• Concentrate on implementation strategies for specifi c areas, i.e. 

agricultural.
• Add existing committed commercial.
• Include future width of the right-of-way for roads and interchanges.  

Look at the topography for interchanges.
• Meet with the city councils (Wellsville and Nibley) when the draft is 

complete, and then meet with the Steering Committee again.  



Appendix A-6 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

PUBLIC SCOPING MEETING NOTES

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan – SUMMARY NOTES

Top Priorities

Transportation/Safety
- Transportation Confl icts & Flow (Safety)– NIBLEY
- Transportation – AWHC
- Traffi c Flow – WELLSVILLE
- Trails and Other Modes of Transportation – AWHC
- Alternative Types of Transportation - WELLSVILLE

Land Use/Commercial/Cluster
- Focus Development at Town Centers – WELLSVILLE
- Lights at Commercial/Industrial Clusters – NIBLEY 
- Commercial Locations (Cluster) – NIBLEY
- Buffering/Clustering, and Other Tools to Locate Development Properly 
– AWHC
- Identify Feasible Land Uses – NIBLEY
- Agricultural Preservation Along the Corridor - AWHC

Open Space/Visual
- Open Space/Rural - NIBLEY 
- Views and Open Space (No commercial billboards) – AWHC
- Protect Open Space (easements, etc.) – WELLSVILLE
- Visual/Aesthetics – NIBLEY
- Visual (maintain open vistas, no billboards) - WELLSVILLE

Plan Process/Representation/Implementation
- Enforcement of Plan/Implementation (Fairness) – NIBLEY
- Balancing Private Property Rights with Public Needs – AWHC
- Incorporate All Voices into the Process - AWHC

 
Plan in General

Meeting Priorities
- Enforcement of Plan/Implementation (Fairness) – NIBLEY
- Balancing Private Property Rights with Public Needs – AWHC
 - Incorporate All Voices into the Process – AWHC

Individual Comments
• 10th West project in Logan shifted burdens to other communities 

fi nancially.  How will this plan guarantee fair distribution of the burden?  
Where is the funding going to come from?  Don’t shift the burden 
unfairly.  

• Enforcement of plan – how can you ensure that the common good will 
be met?  Implementation strategies are needed.

• The distribution of open space vs. commercial should be fair to all of 
the communities.  Should be equal /fair.

• Visual components are important – zoning requirements or design 

guidelines for aesthetics.
• No more developments like Peterson’s strip mall – seconded by 

another attendee.  Design guidelines.
• Nibley resident – sister lives in Farmington – Shepherd Lane 

connector is going to impact houses.  For this project, will people get 
warning that streets will become connectors and homes will be lost?  
Give notice.  Better to avoid taking houses out.

• Corridor study width?  Mile on each side is excessive.  Driver’s view 
¼ mile each way.  ½ mile total width is plenty, see from traveler’s 
perspective.

• Mile width is good, but consider major roads that connect to 165.  
• How limit growth?  Freeze time.
• Process will help guide future land uses.
• How will this relate to Envision Cache?  This process grows out of it. 

This plan may possibly recommend zoning changes to help ensure 
continuity.

• Will the partners in this process come out of it with a master plan?  
Yes, all of the communities involved have signed an agreement to 
cooperate with the process.

• Planning process will be done in July or August
• Money – the plan will allow the communities to go to the State 

legislature with a greater likelihood of securing funds.
• We’ll get what we deserve.  Will be more expensive to fi x later, if we 

don’t plan well now.
• Need a common goal.
• There will be more attendance at the workshops when there are ideas 

to look at.
• Heard about this meeting from letters in the mail, the paper, council 

email, or family and friends.
• What does maintaining agricultural uses do to property owners’ rights? 
• Unincorporated areas don’t typically get involved. Make an effort to 

get that voice.
• Individual property rights vs. what’s best for the community. Plan has 

to be followed by desire of individual property owners.
• Use tools from Envision Cache County – TDR’s, conservation 

easements.
• Wellsville is committed to maintaining integrity of corridor.
• As decisions are made, ensure that a broad spectrum of the public is 

represented (other than traditional decision-makers).
• Important for the cities and county to have clear plans.  A good 

example is 1000 West.  Schools went in on a road that was going to 
be a bypass. Coordination is needed.

• USU has a South Campus Master Plan that includes the Dairy and the 
American Heritage Center.  This will be provided to the consultant.  

• The Cache Valley 2030 Study included a visual impact study – 
this area is more visible than any other area from more places.  It 

identifi es the area.
• Open space all the way to Logan – cooperate to share the “burden”.
• County-wide cooperation is needed.  
• Corridor belongs to everybody – visitors and residents.
• Boundary of the project – is one mile on each side of the highway a 

good distance?  What do the experts say?  Mountains create visual 
boundaries.

 
Land Use/ Open Space/ Urban Design (Landmark)
Meeting Priorities

- Trails and Other Modes of Transportation – AWHC
- Alternative Types of Transportation – WELLSVILLE
- Focus Development at Town Centers – WELLSVILLE
- Lights at Commercial/Industrial Clusters – NIBLEY 
- Commercial Locations (Cluster) – NIBLEY
- Buffering/Clustering, and Other Tools to Locate Development Properly – 
AWHC
- Identify Feasible Land Uses – NIBLEY
- Agricultural Preservation Along the Corridor – AWHC
- Open Space/Rural - NIBLEY 
- Views and Open Space (No commercial billboards) – AWHC
- Protect Open Space (easements, etc.) – WELLSVILLE
- Visual/Aesthetics – NIBLEY
- Visual (maintain open vistas, no billboards) – WELLSVILLE

Individual Comments
• Rather than cluster commercial along the highway, move off of the 

highway and further into the communities. 
• The distribution of open space vs. commercial should be fair to all of 

the communities.  Should be equal /fair.
• Nibley resident – most people want rural character.
• Visual components are important – zoning requirements or design 

guidelines for aesthetics.
• No more developments like Peterson’s strip mall – seconded by 

another attendee.  Design guidelines.
• Needs to address residential land use.  Noise and safety are issues.  

Land values are dropping.  Needs to be viable.  Residential is tough 
along the highway because of the noise and safety issues.

• Agricultural uses – slow moving traffi c with agricultural uses .  Need 
safe access.

• More feasible uses along highway would be commercial – not as 
sensitive to noise and safety concerns.

• Commercial vision?  Way back – out of site.
• Reduce access – clustering to ease burden on traffi c.
• Maintain open countryside atmosphere – encourage farmers address 



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-7

their needs.
• What is rural?  Open spaces, the smell of horse manure.
• Clusters?  Where? How many? Nibley planned big development at 

west end of 3200 South.  Will push this family out.  They will move if 
development goes in.  Millville and Nibley traffi c is heavy through this 
area.

• 3 clusters – Wellsville, in the middle of corridor, and by Logan/Nibley 
at the upper end.

• Nibley resident – sister lives in Farmington – Shepherd Lane 
connector is going to impact houses.  For this project, will people get 
warning that streets will become connectors and homes will be lost?  
Give notice.  Better to avoid taking houses out.

• The fewer commercial clusters the better.  Limit to key areas.
• Sensitive wetlands areas protected water will be big issue.  Setbacks.
• Protect residential areas.
• Population – spreading out keeps demand down.
• Spaces between communities.
• Shari - Nibley 2010 census 5,400 people.  2000 census just over 

2,000 people. Growth is biggest concern.  Doesn’t want to see it 
become State Street.  Find balance between traffi c fl ow and positive, 
attractive development.  No development right on the highway.  
Cluster development.  Other steering committee members from 
Nibley, including the mayor, agree.

• South Logan and Wellsville – where develop commercial?  Hope to 
fi nd common ground with visions of cities.  

• Qualities to preserve: open space between cities, agricultural lands, 
functioning roads. 

• Open space along highway is good. Keep it.
• Diffi cult to get agricultural equipment on and off highway. This issue 

needs to be addressed if keeping agricultural land along the highway.
• USU has located their agricultural experimental facilities along 

highway. Preserve agricultural uses around these facilities. 
• As Wellsville grows, commercial will come. The south end needs more 

commercial to serve the southern end of the valley.
• Wellsville has a commercial zone around the Hwy 101 intersection.
• The highway serves as a gateway. Keep it so; Don’t develop it like it is 

further north.
• The gateway should maintain agricultural and historical qualities.
• What does maintaining agricultural uses do to property owners’ rights? 
• Control existing signage along highway. Look at other projects to 

come up with good approaches.
• Is it possible to make the highway a scenic byway?
• Look at bicycle and recreation trails and how the intersect the 

highway. Incorporate and make safe crossings for those trails.
• Keep trails interlinked and connected.
• Maintain signifi cant setbacks (120 meters) to preserve vistas (gateway 

qualities) and incorporate trails.
• Would like to see buffers between USU and American West area and 

the cities, as well as between the different cities.

• 4400 S.-Is it designated by UDOT as a major commercial corridor?
• Balance commercial and residential uses (cities need the revenue) 

with buffering between cities, etc.
• Other modes of transportation considered?  When Front Runner 

extends to Brigham City, it will put development pressure on the south 
end of the valley.  Consider compact development (clustering).

• Include public transportation nodes now to get to Brigham City Front 
Runner.

• How to address open space?  Look at Envision Cache.  Survey – rank 
current open space areas.

• Some areas are irreplaceable open spaces.
• A lot of properties are for sale currently.
• Development should occur on perpendicular roads rather than on 

highway
• Leave it alone.  No building along the corridor.  No traffi c lights.  Don’t 

make it like Main Street Logan or like State Street in Salt Lake City.
• Commercial development – if not on corridor, will have to be in cities; 

purchase open space to keep open (dealing with private property 
owners).

• No strip malls; no more commercial.
• Clean up existing commercial, especially vacant and abandoned 

commercial properties.
• Need commercial to survive; Wellsville is a bedroom community.
• Wellsville plans on having commercial set back from the highway.
• Commercial is needed for tax revenue.
• How do we compensate private property owners to keep open space?
• Concentrate commercial in Wellsville to town – make it a walkable 

community.
• Air quality is a concern – a bike trail along the corridor would be nice.
• Public transportation for the valley would help with air quality.  Studies 

haven’t justifi ed it at this point.
• USU runs shuttles from Main Campus to Brigham City – there could 

be an opportunity to partner.
• Denser development at city centers (as in Europe) to leave open 

spaces between cities.
• Would like solar and wind farms visible as you come into the valley.
• Visitor Center in Wellsville.
• Noise reduction along the highway – no sound walls; maybe through 

design; trees
• Truck brakes, in particular, create noise
• How do you deal with noise in increased traffi c volumes in the future?  

Vegetation or man-made?  Less impacts than walls.  Tress and 
vegetation as a barrier.

• Maintenance of vegetative solutions can be an issue.
• IF development occurs – limit types of commercial development (form 

and look).  No big box. Conducive to the historic environment.
• Restriction on billboards is needed.  State roads – billboards have to 

meet state requirements.  Requirements are not that stringent.  NO 
BILLBOARDS!

• No electronic sign boards.
• Don’t want the corridor cluttered like the Logan to Smithfi eld section.
• Cluster development in appropriate places.
 
Transportation and Traffi c (Civil Science)

Meeting Priorities
- Transportation Confl icts & Flow (Safety)– NIBLEY
- Transportation – AWHC
- Traffi c Flow – WELLSVILLE
- Trails and Other Modes of Transportation – AWHC
- Alternative Types of Transportation – WELLSVILLE
- Lights at Commercial/Industrial Clusters – NIBLEY

Individual Comments
• Highway 89/91 intersection with Highway 101 to Hyrum – How does 

the light function?  Which is supposed to take priority?  Traffi c fl ow 
on 89/91 is impeded – favors east/west traffi c.  What times?  Early in 
the morning around 4am, light is red for traffi c on main highway, even 
when no one is traveling east/west.

• Live on west end of 3200 South – Heritage Elementary opened up, 
and now the kids that live within 2 miles of the school have to walk.  
There are no bus stops, and conditions are unsafe for kids to walk 
(no sidewalk, semis driving right next to where kids are walking, no 
shoulder, semis are in bike lanes).  

• How do we get semis off of 3200 South?  
• One courtesy stop is allowed per bus route for schools, and homes 

are too far apart for all the children within the 2 mile zone to gather at 
one stop.

• Trucks from Millers are in confl ict with pedestrian and bikes – width is 
an issue.

• Providence resident – other busy routes need to be considered in 
the big picture.  Other corridors feed into 89/91.  Highway 65 is a 
busy north/south route, for example.  Consider state highways in the 
planning process.  Like I-15, use side feeder routes.

• Study how to get better feeders.  3200 South has heavy traffi c, 2600 
South could be an alternate.

• Will 89/91 be staying as-is most likely.  Idea is to maintain as high-
speed corridor.  Need access control and feeders.  Factor in all routes 
– overall picture.

• Effi cient transportation well into the future while preserving critical 
open space.

• Different intersection confi gurations/interchanges possibilities.  
Examples on I-15 in Utah County, SPUI or double diamond diverging.

• Cross traffi c and fl ow through both need to work.
• No extra lanes are planned on the highway – needs to function 30 

years into the future with what we have.
• Agricultural uses – slow moving traffi c with agricultural uses .  Need 

safe access.



Appendix A-8 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

• Reduce access – clustering to ease burden on traffi c.
• Clusters?  Where? How many? Nibley planned big development at 

west end of 3200 South.  Will push this family out.  They will move if 
development goes in.  Millville and Nibley traffi c is heavy through this 
area.

• 3 clusters – Wellsville, in the middle of corridor, and by Logan/Nibley 
at the upper end.

• 2600 South – has a school along it –speed limits need to be adjusted.  
Not a good main road.

• Consider other land uses.  
• 2600 South – sidewalks missing in parts.
• Specifi c recommendations on how to tie roads in.
• 2600 South would become a main feeder if paved.
• As we grow, will be more demand from access to highway.
• Population – spreading out keeps demand down.
• Population will grow regardless, growth will impact traffi c.  
• 3200 South is hard to get on.  
• Volume will increase – growth will likely be to the east side of the 

highway.
• Agree that 3200 West is a challenge.
• More effi cient intersections, at least a light.
• Crossing the highway is dangerous.
• What’s the biggest pressure?  Growth?  Speed? Use?  Growth is 

greatest pressure.
• Keep highway functional.
• When will a third lane be added to each side of 89/91? 
• Will bog road down if replicate what happened between Logan and 

Smithfi eld north of 1400 north.
• Will reach capacity eventually.  
• Studies on traffi c fl ows will be used by consultants.
• Workshop will have data, scenarios, and ideas.
• Can we utilize highway 165 at the south end of the valley to relieve 

pressure on 89/91?  The idea has been talked about, but it unlikely to 
happen soon.

• Qualities to preserve: open space between cities, agricultural lands, 
functioning roads.  

• It’s nice to have fewer stop lights.
• Flow vs. access (access is dangerous right now).
• Put fewer traffi c lights along the highway.
• Corridor agreement between UDOT, Cache County, Nibley, Hyrum, 

Wellsville, and Logan – worked with engineers on how to maximize 
the fl ow while providing safe access.  Four additional lights came out 
of that process.  Indicates the general area of the lights, though fi nal 
location can be adjusted slightly.  The lights are well-spaced.

• Unnecessary lights can produce more accidents – state and federal 
law provides a uniform code for whether an area qualifi es for a light.

• 1700 South at Highway 165 will probably be put in this spring or 
sooner.

• Traffi c fl ows along both roads needs to be considered. 

• On the traffi c map, green lines indicate access spacing at the UDOT 
standard of 1000’ for a highway.  Red lines indicate that UDOT has 
obtained control of the access rights, and that access is limited pretty 
much to the existing access points.  In the red other, other solutions 
will be required, such as clustering access to existing points.

• Another agreement was developed for Highway 165.
• Who sets the speed limits on Highway 165?  It’s a state road, so they 

are set by UDOT.  There are more kids along the road now than there 
used to be.  Speed studies are conducted to determine what speed 
will be safe.  You can request through your city to have it studied 
again.

• Future concepts – lights, access across with bridges, intersection 
treatments, etc.

• Solutions need to be viable.
• College Ward: Angle entry to highway is diffi cult. 20th West 

intersection in particular.
• No traffi c lights in unincorporated areas-check UDOT policy 
• Diffi cult to get agricultural equipment on and off highway. This issue 

needs to be addressed if keeping agricultural land along the highway.
• A frontage road—if economically viable—could be a solution to the 

above issue. Consider both east and west sides of the street. 
• Other areas have used frontage roads. Frontage roads typically serve 

all uses (residential/commercial/agricultural).
• Access to the commercial and residential uses need to be controlled, 

particularly how they enter and exit the highway.
• What is UDOT’s plan for the highway? Is it a limited access highway?
• Response: A study has been done by UDOT. This study looked at 

bypassing Logan with another road. A study hasn’t been done for 
entire corridor.

• Does UDOT have authority to use eminent domain?
• Response: Yes, depending on the project/area. Requires showing a 

need and the laws are pretty specifi c.
• What about for the frontage roads?
• Response: UDOT would probably partner with local jurisdictions.
• Control existing signage along highway. Look at other projects to 

come up with good approaches.
• Is it possible to make the highway a scenic byway?
• Are overpasses—with on and off ramps as an alternative to 

stoplights—being considered? Dedicated turning lanes are another 
option.

• A safe crossing for moving between the American West and USU Ag 
Ed facilities with agricultural equipment, horses, etc.

• 4400 S. should be a designated trucking corridor (taking the traffi c 
away from 2300 S. and the residential uses on that street).

• Hyrum’s (to Miller Packing Plant) main trucking route is along a 
residential area. It is important to have designated roads for trucks.

• 4400 S. doesn’t go through currently. There isn’t residential uses 
along 4400 S. currently. 

• 4400 S. wouldn’t be a state road.

• A signal has been planned between SR-101 and 4400 S.
• Residential development could be possible along the highway 

could make their own frontage road. Would have to get traffi c to an 
intersection.

• Currently avoid highway because it feels really busy.
• Vista from highway is just as important as having the highway 

function.
• Other modes of transportation considered?  When Front Runner 

extends to Brigham City, it will put development pressure on the south 
end of the valley.  Consider compact development (clustering).

• Include public transportation nodes now to get to Brigham City Front 
Runner.

• Development should occur on perpendicular roads rather than on 
highway

• Turn lanes/access roads need to be of suffi cient length to get on/off 
high speed highway.  

• 3900 South (by American West Heritage Center) – stay a dead end; 
area around it should stay open and in agricultural uses.

• Leave it alone.  No building along the corridor.  No traffi c lights.  Don’t 
make it like Main Street Logan or like State Street in Salt Lake City.

• Are other access points beyond where signals are allowed in this 
plan?  On the transportation map, the red lines at the south end 
designate limited access – no more access beyond what currently 
exists will be allowed.

• An interchange is shown near the carpool area – what would it be 
like?

• Would like underpasses/overpasses – especially at 10th west.
• The Corridor Agreement already allows for an overpass at the Center 

Street intersection on the highway.
• Maintain traffi c speeds.  Keep traffi c lights to a minimum.
• Y intersection to 3200 South – UDOT is looking at expanding it to 6 

lanes.
• Access is limited – traffi c lights in Wellsville plan.
• Public transit to the south end of the valley?  CVTD may have 

something planned to connect to front runner.  Service would be 
based on sales tax.

• At the Y, bottlenecks currently when those unfamiliar with lane splits.  
Need better signage to help people navigate this intersection better.  
Can there be two lanes in each direction at the Y?  Studies have been 
done and have concluded that the existing design is the best it can be 
given the existing site conditions. 

• Expand limited access lines?  UDOT would have to purchase the 
access areas.  Acquire property now at limited access points.

• Air quality is a concern – a bike trail along the corridor would be nice.
• Public transportation for the valley would help with air quality.  Studies 

haven’t justifi ed it at this point.
• USU runs shuttles from Main Campus to Brigham City – there could 

be an opportunity to partner.
• 3900 South to 3000 West – don’t continue the road through.



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-9

• Noise reduction along the highway – no sound walls; maybe through 
design; trees

• Truck brakes, in particular, create noise
• How do you deal with noise in increased traffi c volumes in the future?  

Vegetation or man-made?  Less impacts than walls.  Tress and 
vegetation as a barrier.

• Maintenance of vegetative solutions can be an issue.
• How will traffi c be addressed at 10th west?  Most likely will have a 

traffi c light in the future.
• Will 10th West have higher speeds?  
• Special paving to reduce sounds on highway?
• Consider roundabouts instead of traffi c lights.
• Keep traffi c fl owing.
• 3200 South is a good location for an overpass – eliminates the need 

for a light here.
• Alternative routes to 89/91?  Possible western alternative goes from 

3200 South to Smithfi eld.  Is being studied.
• Consider east-west traffi c as well – road dedicated to move traffi c – 

need appropriate land uses to do that.
• Traffi c needs to fl ow!
• Fence maintenance along highway – who is responsible?  It is often 

not repaired.  In limited access areas at the south end, it would 
be UDOT.  At northern end, UDOT usually installs and then turns 
maintenance over to the land owner.

• Safety issues – accessing and crossing the highway.  Raised 
medians are an option – they create right-in and right-out only turns at 
intersections.

• American Heritage Center is specifi cally tricky.  Looking at how to 
concentrate access by Caine Dairy.

 
Public Services and Utilities (Civil Science)
Meeting Priorities

Individual Comments
• Keep infrastructure out of site – bury power lines.
• Would like solar and wind farms visible as you come into the valley.

Economics and Market Considerations (LYRB)

Meeting Priorities
- Focus Development at Town Centers – WELLSVILLE
- Commercial Locations (Cluster) – NIBLEY
- Identify Feasible Land Uses – NIBLEY
- Agricultural Preservation Along the Corridor – AWHC
- Protect Open Space (easements, etc.) – WELLSVILLE
- Visual/Aesthetics – NIBLEY
- Visual (maintain open vistas, no billboards) - WELLSVILLE

Individual Comments
• Commercial vision?  Way back – out of site.
• Maintain open countryside atmosphere – encourage farmers address 

their needs.
• Clusters?  Where? How many? Nibley planned big development at 

west end of 3200 South.  Will push this family out.  They will move if 
development goes in.  Millville and Nibley traffi c is heavy through this 
area.

• 3 clusters – Wellsville, in the middle of corridor, and by Logan/Nibley 
at the upper end.

• The fewer commercial clusters the better.  Limit to key areas.
• South Logan and Wellsville – where develop commercial?  Hope to 

fi nd common ground with visions of cities.  
• As Wellsville grows, commercial will come. The south end needs more 

commercial to serve the southern end of the valley.
• Wellsville has a commercial zone around the Hwy 101 intersection.
• What does maintaining agricultural uses do to property owners’ rights? 
• Balance commercial and residential uses (cities need the revenue) 

with buffering between cities, etc.
• Other modes of transportation considered?  When Front Runner 

extends to Brigham City, it will put development pressure on the south 
end of the valley.  Consider compact development (clustering).

• Development should occur on perpendicular roads rather than on 
highway

• Leave it alone.  No building along the corridor.  No traffi c lights.  Don’t 
make it like Main Street Logan or like State Street in Salt Lake City.

• Commercial development – if not on corridor, will have to be in cities; 
purchase open space to keep open (dealing with private property 
owners).

• No strip malls; no more commercial.
• Clean up existing commercial, especially vacant and abandoned 

commercial properties.
• Need commercial to survive; Wellsville is a bedroom community.
• Wellsville plans on having commercial set back from the highway.
• Commercial is needed for tax revenue.
• How do we compensate private property owners to keep open space?
• Public transit to the south end of the valley?  CVTD may have 

something planned to connect to front runner.  Service would be 
based on sales tax.

• Concentrate commercial in Wellsville to town – make it a walkable 
community.

• Would like solar and wind farms visible as you come into the valley.
• Visitor Center in Wellsville.
• Don’t want the corridor cluttered like the Logan to Smithfi eld section.
• Cluster development in appropriate places.
 
Urban Design, Architecture and Built Form (S+M)
Meeting Priorities

- Focus Development at Town Centers – WELLSVILLE

- Commercial Locations (Cluster) – NIBLEY
- Buffering/Clustering, and Other Tools to Locate Development Properly 
– AWHC
- Protect Open Space (easements, etc.) – WELLSVILLE
- Visual/Aesthetics – NIBLEY
- Visual (maintain open vistas, no billboards) - WELLSVILLE

Individual Comments
• Nibley resident – most people want rural character.
• Visual components are important – zoning requirements or design 

guidelines for aesthetics.
• No more developments like Peterson’s strip mall – seconded by 

another attendee.  Design guidelines.
• More feasible uses along highway would be commercial – not as 

sensitive to noise and safety concerns.
• Commercial vision?  Way back – out of site.
• 3 clusters – Wellsville, in the middle of corridor, and by Logan/Nibley 

at the upper end.
• Spaces between communities.
• The highway serves as a gateway. Keep it so; Don’t develop it like it is 

further north.
• The gateway should maintain agricultural and historical qualities.
• Control existing signage along highway. Look at other projects to 

come up with good approaches.
• Is it possible to make the highway a scenic byway?
• Would like to see buffers between USU and American West area and 

the cities, as well as between the different cities.
• Buildings, type of architect etc. important?  Yes.  Steamboat Springs, 

Colorado is good example of maintaining a special architecture.
• Development should occur on perpendicular roads rather than on 

highway
• Leave it alone.  No building along the corridor.  No traffi c lights.  Don’t 

make it like Main Street Logan or like State Street in Salt Lake City.
• Concentrate commercial in Wellsville to town – make it a walkable 

community.
• Air quality is a concern – a bike trail along the corridor would be nice.
• Architecture needs to “look nice”
• Noise reduction along the highway – no sound walls; maybe through 

design; trees
• Truck brakes, in particular, create noise
• How do you deal with noise in increased traffi c volumes in the future?  

Vegetation or man-made?  Less impacts than walls.  Tress and 
vegetation as a barrier.

• Maintenance of vegetative solutions can be an issue.
• IF development occurs – limit types of commercial development (form 

and look).  No big box. Conducive to the historic environment.
• Restriction on billboards is needed.  State roads – billboards have to 

meet state requirements.  Requirements are not that stringent.  NO 
BILLBOARDS!



Appendix A-10 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

• No electronic sign boards.
• Don’t want the corridor cluttered like the Logan to Smithfi eld section.
• Cluster development in appropriate places.

South Corridor Development Plan Public Workshop 
Date: May 4, 2011, 
Location: American West Heritage Center
Time: 12:00 to 6:00 p.m.

Number of Recorded Attendees: 46
Number of Comments Forms Received: 16 
Number of Verbal Comments (Recorded at the Workshop): 6
Number of Comments Received via the Web Page or Email: 5

Summary of Responses

1. After reviewing all of the information presented at today’s meeting, 
which of the alternative concepts do you prefer?  Why?   Which do you 
prefer the least and why?   Are there parts of one or more of the concepts 
that you like best? 

In general, most respondents liked the idea of limiting commercial to key 
areas. The Off-Highway Alternative was the most preferred alternative. 
The In-Town Alternative closely followed with several people suggesting a 
mix between the two (Off-Highway and In-Town). 

The following is a summary of input regarding the four alternatives 
presented:

1) Current Direction
Only one respondent felt like the Current Direction was the best direction. 
The majority of the comments cited the Current Direction as the least 
preferred direction. The reasons stated included: (1) the current direction 
lacked planning between communities; (2) desirable views could be lost; 
and (3) congestion would increase. Others felt that the current direction 
would make it diffi cult to maintain an open corridor and avoid undesirable 
development patterns (as has occurred along Hwy 89/91 from Logan to 
Smithfi eld or State Street in Salt Lake City).  
 
2) On-Highway
Respondents liked that the On-Highway Alternative clustered businesses 
at key intersections and felt this approach allowed easy access to 
commercial areas while maintaining open space/agricultural lands. 
They felt that this alternative prevented sprawl and focused utilities/
infrastructure in centralized areas. They also felt this alternative 
minimized impact to existing uses. 

3) Off-Highway
Respondents preferred this option because it maintains open views 
of the corridor and keeps development off the highway.  They liked 
that commercial nodes were still accessible from the highway, but that 

PUBLIC WORKSHOP NOTES

they became destinations that travelers could get off the highway and 
experience. They liked that they were located by cities and that those 
cities could potentially benefi t from commercial development. They also 
appreciated that focusing commercial activity into designated areas 
allowed for the continuation of agricultural lands. Additionally, they 
appreciated that residential development was kept off of the highway 
(buffered), therefore, eliminating the need for concrete walls/noise 
barriers.

Several respondents thought mixed-use type development would be the 
best direction at the commercial nodes and that retail-only commercials 
won’t have a big enough drawing power.

4) In-Town 
Respondents preferred the In-Town option because it preserves 
agricultural uses along the corridor and saves current open views. They 
also liked the idea of keeping commercial in the cities—to strengthen the 
city’s tax base and make the cities more walkable—and encouraged the 
idea of having mass transit that goes to those commercial areas.

Respondents felt like the following concerns weren’t addressed in any of 
the alternatives:
• In-Town Alternative—Would commercial be economically viable?
• On-Highway Alternative—The buffer may disconnect businesses from 

the highway and people may want to put billboards in the buffer.
• Who would maintain the proposed buffers?
• Access from the highway to commercial nodes was also a concern 

(respondents suggested “jug handle” highway entrances/exits at 
commercial nodes and cable dividers between lanes of traffi c)

2. Based on population projections to the year 2035 and 2060, 
there is currently far more land zoned for future retail/commercial/offi ce 
development than can be supported economically.  Where is the best 
location for future retail/commercial/offi ce development?  Should it be 
equally distributed between Logan, Wellsville, and Nibley or focused in 
one or more of the communities?

Several people thought that development should occur in existing 
commercial centers (e.g. infi ll) and existing junctions (e.g. the junction of 
Hwy 89 and Hwy 101) and should reuse/infi ll in existing downtowns and 
built areas. If additional commercial development is needed, it should be 
focused in one or two areas. Cluster development should occur in select 
locations, unless it occurs at existing town centers. Essential services 
(e.g. grocery stores) should be encouraged in each community. 

While the exact location varied from person to person, there were several 



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-11

suggestions to locate commercial where the population would be able to 
support it, and where it would be most viable.
Several respondents felt that additional commercial development should 
occur at the southern end of the valley, while a fair number of others felt 
that it should be equally divided between Wellsville, Nibley and Logan 
in order to distribute the tax revenue and reduce driving distances by 
allowing people to work and shop closer to where they live.
 
 3. Is residential development appropriate adjacent to the highway 
corridor?  

About half of respondents replied “yes” and the other half “no”. Most 
responses supporting residential development along the highway 
supported it with a caveat (residential is okay with buffering and/or 
locating residential development far enough away from the highway to 
avoid sound barrier walls.) Recommendations for the width of the buffer 
varied from several hundred feet to 1000 feet. They also felt that access 
points on the highway should be limited or not allowed. Respondents 
who felt that residential development was not appropriate along the 
highway cited reasons such as noise, pollution, safety and aesthetics (“it 
compromises the rural beauty of Cache Valley” was one comment). 

4. What are appropriate kinds of development or land uses located 
adjacent to the highway corridor?

• Commercial if clustered and/or off the highway, and done well (no 
strip malls or commercial that competes for visual attention—e.g. car 
dealerships); Several felt mixed-use developments were the most 
appropriate. 

• Agricultural uses (and associated structures—e.g. barns)
• Recreational Uses: Trailheads/parking for trailheads, paths for 

pedestrians and cyclists, parks (if far enough away from the highway), 
etc.

• Open Space
• Other suggestions: Light industrial, cultural (like the American West 

Heritage Center), rest stops

5. There is general agreement that views of the valley and mountains 
are important and that those views and open spaces comprise the 
essence of Cache Valley.  What can be done to ensure that those views 
and open spaces are maintained into the future?

• Buffer/screen between development and the highway. 
• Use zoning (down zone, rezone, etc.) to maintain views and limit 

commercial development to specifi c areas.
• Limit building heights.
• Promote and/or provide incentives cluster development, infi ll 

development, and developing in existing economic/social centers.
• Use conservation easements.

6. The Highway 89 south corridor will need to expand and change to 
accommodate future transportation needs, i.e. adding lanes, improving 
intersections, expanding and modifying intersections, better public transit, 
etc.  What is your highest priority for improving transportation and mobility 
in the valley?  

• Improve/invest in public transportation. Provide connections to 
FrontRunner station at Brigham City, make it—and market it as—
convenient and nice to use (e.g. offer free wi-fi ), etc.

• Provide safe bicycle/pedestrian pathways. (These pathways could 
possibly be used as agricultural access as well, if designed well.)

• Provide employment opportunities closer to home.
• Avoid adding stop lights to the highway; use alternative intersection 

treatments (e.g. roundabouts, overpasses, etc.)  

Other Comments, Questions or Ideas
• Keep individual communities from growing together in order to 

maintain individual identities. 
• If zoning/land uses are changed, work with State property 

ombudsman to make sure property owners are fairly compensated.
• Take full advantage of the huge amount of work and money that has 

already been invested in planning for Cache Valley’s future. The 
studies have been done, the plans have been drawn . . . it’s time to 
actually do something positive before there’s nothing left to protect.

• Highway 89/91 thru town is a huge barrier for pedestrians. 
Pedestrians often cannot safely cross the highway to access trails. 
Also, existing trails are often disconnected because development has 
been allowed where trails had been planned. 

• When adding lanes, please be aware of the need for farm equipment 
to access fi elds. As development occurs, consider a buffer zone 
between “smelly” agriculture businesses so everybody is happy.

• Consider using one road/trail to serve both agricultural transportation 
needs and trail uses. These uses could share one road safely, if done 
correctly. 

• Bigger setbacks and berms should be used, rather than sound walls. 
Sound walls often create a “tunnel effect”, compromise the sense of 
openness and block desirable views.

• Conservation easements, TDRs, added density/clustering, and 
open space bonds (purchasing open space) are tools that should be 
considered to ensure fairness to the property owner while preserving 
open space and desirable views.

• Consider building vertically in order to preserve open space.
• Wellsville currently needs more vehicular access points.
• Frontage roads are often unsightly and non-functional (e.g. the 

frontage road in front of Peterson’s commercial development).
• Research the location of the future high school and consider how 

traffi c to and from the high school will impact the corridor.

 



Appendix A-12 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

KEY PLANNING ISSUES

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Transportation
• Minimize transportation confl icts/

maintain safety
• Keep traffi c fl owing
• Incorporate alternative transportation 

types and modes

Top Priorities

Planning Process/Implementation
• Create and implement a plan that is 

fair to all communities involved
• Balance private property rights with 

public needs
• Incorporate all voices into the planning 

process

Open Space/Visual Impacts
• Maintain open space/rural character/

views
• Protect opens space using appropriate 

tools (conservation easements, 
clustering, etc.)

• Keep corridor free from billboards/other 
signage

Land Use
• Focus development at town centers
• Create commercial clusters; add traffi c 

lights only at commercial clusters
• Use buffering, clustering, and other 

tools to help locate and design 
development properly

• Identify and consider feasible land uses 
only

• Preserve agricultural uses along the 
corridor

Land Use/Open Space
General Land Use
• Balance the different land use ideas and 

visions of the corridor communities.
• Consider clustering new development 

along intersecting roadways or within 
communities.

• Forbid or greatly curtail future highway 
residential uses – these are no longer 
appropriate uses along the highway. 

Commercial Land Use
• Commercial development provides 

essential tax revenue to the adjacent 
communities.  Need to ensure that future 
commercial development opportunities are 
provided while protecting the qualities of 
the highway. 

Visual Integrity
• Roadside aesthetics and maintaining 

positive views are important 
considerations. Ensure that new 
development is attractive and fi ts in with 
the surroundings.

• “Clean up” vacant, abandoned and 
dilapidated highway properties.

• Carefully control directional signage and 
either prohibit or limit advertising signs.

• Maintain the “gateway” quality of the 
corridor intact through wise development. Noise

• Locate residential uses far enough from 
the highway to avoid noise impacts. 

• Avoid the use of walls, berms and 
vegetation for mitigating noise – these 
will have signifi cant impact on the visual 
qualities of the highway. 

Sensitive Lands and Open Space
• Cluster new development in order to 

maintain rural character/open atmosphere.
• Protect sensitive wetlands and identify/

preserve “irreplaceable” open spaces.
• Consider purchasing key lands as a 

means of preserving critical lands and 
open space qualities.

• Don’t allow the corridor to be “cluttered” 
with development (like it is from Logan to 
Smithfi eld)

Bicycle/Recreational Trails
• Incorporate an interconnected bicycle/

recreation trail system into corridor design.
• Incorporate safe buffers and crossings for 

trails.

Agricultural Uses
• Maintain agricultural uses along the 

highway and consider agricultural uses/
needs along highway (getting slow-moving 
farm equipment on/off highway). 

• Maintain USU agricultural facilities along 
the corridor.

Urban Design, Architecture and Built Form
Design Guidelines
• Visual aspects of the highway are 

important. There is a need to implement 
zoning/design guidelines to improve 
aesthetics and prevent poor development.

• The corridor should have special 
architecture that refl ects the “sense of 
place” and history of the valley.

• Consider limiting future development to 
forms that are conducive to the historical 
environment.

Maintain gateway/rural character
• The corridor serves as a gateway and 

should maintain agricultural and historical 
qualities.

Transportation and Traffi c
Safe Access/Access Points
• Diagonal intersecting roads are unsafe and 
need to be modifi ed.

• Consider the use of frontage roads for 
linking adjacent land uses between 
signalized intersections. 

• Implement “limited access” concepts where 
possible.

• Consider “clustered development” to 
promote traffi c fl ow and safe vehicular 
movement.

Public Transportation/Air Quality
• Include public transportation nodes that 

connect to potential city centers and future 
Brigham City Front Runner station. 

• Consider alternative modes of 
transportation to help meet population 
needs.

Alternative Routes to Reduce Pressure/
Whole-System Approach
• Consider the highway as part of a holistic 

system of interconnecting roads. 
• Consider highway impacts on nearby 

neighborhoods and residences.

Adjacent Land Uses/Access
• Only consider uses that won’t “bog down” 

the highway.

Traffi c Flow/Traffi c Lights/Traffi c Light 
Alternatives
• Maintain traffi c speeds/keep traffi c fl owing.
• Ensure the existing Corridor Agreement is 

incorporated into the Plan.
• Limit the number of traffi c lights to a 

minimum.
• Consider alternatives to traffi c lights 

(Round-abouts, underpasses/overpasses, 
etc.)

Economics and Market Considerations

Commercial Development and Tax 
Revenue
• Commercial development is needed 

for survival/tax revenue, particularly for 
bedroom communities like Wellsville and 
Nibley. There is a need to balance vision 
with future needs.

Create a Balance/Common Vision
• Need to develop plan for locating 

commercial uses that works for all corridor 
cities.

• Need to balance commercial and 
residential uses – “commercial follows 
rooftops”.

• Need to provide buffers between cities 
and preserve open space while fairly-
compensating land owners.

Type of development
• Many people feel that no new commer-

cial uses should be allowed, while others 
would like to control future uses better. 
There is a general consensus that strip 
mall developments are not appropriate.

• Develop implementation strategies that encourage cooperation and coordinated 
implementation.

• Coordinate and utilize information and tools contained in past studies and plans.  
• Develop tools and ideas that promote economic and land use equity.
• Strike a balance between individual property rights and community interests.
• Be sensitive to existing residences/neighborhoods along the corridor.

General Concerns

The following ideas and issues are the result of public input, focus interviews, and a 
review of previous plans and studies.

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Highway noise is an undesirable by-product of our life. It can be annoying, can interfere with sleep, work, 
or recreation, and in extremes may cause physical and psychological damage. While noise emanates 
from many different sources, highway noise is perhaps the most pervasive and diffi cult to avoid. 

Locating homes and businesses away from the highway is the best option for mitigating highway noise. 
If this is not possible, barriers can be introduced to reduce noise by blocking the direct travel of sound 
waves from the highway, forcing the waves over the top or around the barrier. The barrier must be high 
enough and long enough to block the view (line of sight) of the highway. 

Noise barriers do very little good for homes on a hillside overlooking a road or for buildings which rise 
above a barrier. Openings or gaps in barriers for driveway connections or street intersections reduce 
barrier effectiveness. Furthermore, it is important to note that barriers are not designed to eliminate or 
block all noise. 

As illustrated in the following photo simulations, the visual impact of noise barriers along the Cache 
Corridor would signifi cantly impact the look and integrity of the South Corridor landscape. 

Vision Statement
Visual Integrity of 
Corridor Properties

As illustrated in these 
photographs, the upkeep and 
general condition of many 
corridor properties is less than 
stellar.  An important function 
of this plan is to identify 
opportunities tools to help 
improve the condition of sub-
standard properties as part of 
enhancing the unique, rural feel 
of the corridor.  

“The South Corridor is a critical element of Cache County. In addition to facilitating the fl ow of goods, services 
and people along Highway 89/91, the corridor is a place of future growth and economic development for Nibley, 
Wellsville, Logan, Cache Valley and the region as a whole. It is a place that is defi ned by its beautiful setting, the 
unique visual characteristics of adjacent fi elds, settlements and distant mountains recalling the historic roots of 
the area. As one passes through the corridor, one begins to understand the unique “sense of place” and future 
potential of the place and its surroundings.

The South Corridor should be a place that grows responsibly without compromising the values and cherished 
features of this special place. In order to strike a balance between corridor growth, development and preservation, 
a united approach and a cooperative spirit is required by all participating parties. The result will be a comprehensive 
vision that facilitates the smooth fl ow of traffi c through the valley, creates a safe and effi cient transportation corridor, 
minimizes traffi c confl icts, maximizes positive development potentials, and aligns local community needs and 
desires with those of the county, region and the natural condition of the surrounding landscape.” 

The Impact of Highway Noise

Existing view in Wellsville. With soundwalls.

With vegetation buffer. With lanscape berms.

Despite a general policy that supports locating 
buildings far from the highway edge, a recent USU 
South Farm Agricultural building was located close 
to the highway. What tools are necessary to ensure 
that future corridor development meets the agreed 
corridor vision?

The Highway Commercial area in Nibley has 
generated public concern. Can the “Nibley Model” be 
modifi ed to meet the corridor vision?  

The recent development adjacent to Petersen’s 
Farmers Market is controversial, generating 
signifi cant public comment and debate.  Can this 
area be further developed to meet the needs of 
Nibley and the Greater Cache Valley?  

The Logan Gateway Commercial district signifi es 
the northern terminus of the corridor and the 
entrance into Logan. Assuming that this model 
is successful, can similar treatments be applied 
elsewhere in the corridor? 

Are existing ordinances that control density and 
development within Open Space Conservation 
and Agricultural Preservation Areas suffi cient for 
maintaining the rural “sense of place” and exquisite 
visual qualities of the corridor?

2

5

3

4

1

The treatment of the south entry into Cache Valley is 
critical for maintaining a positive corridor experience. 
Down-valley views establish a positive fi rst 
impression as one enters the valley, while up-canyon 
views frame the mountains beyond for southbound 
motorists. The careful planning of land uses, building 
forms and urban settings is essential for maintaining 
visual integrity in this area.

Wellsville currently allows residential development 
along the highway with a 200’ buffer. It is unclear 
whether this distance is adequate for mitigating 
visual impacts from the highway, and highway noise 
impacts for nearby residents.

A commercial/industrial development is proposed on 
the east side of the highway at this location. Is this 
the best site for a large commercial development in 
this area?

8

7

6

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-13

ALTERNATIVE PLANNING CONCEPTS

A wide range of ideas and planning concepts were investigated as part 
of creating a Preferred plan for the South Corridor. As summarized 
below and detailed in the following drawings, sketches and illustrations, 
four concepts were presented for initial public input and scrutiny.

1 CURRENT DIRECTION ( BASELINE)
The baseline concept represents the current development direction in 
the South Corridor, as depicted in the General Plans of Wellsville, Nibley, 
Logan and Cache County. The four plans are in general agreement 
regarding the need to preserve critical open space and sensitive lands 
along the Little Bear River and other waterways. There is also general 
agreement on the need to the preserve prime agricultural land and 
limiting development to low-density rural residential uses in these areas. 
However, there are signifi cant differences regarding commercial and 
residential uses, the use of buffers and the need to focus development in 
clusters.  Furthermore, the amount of commercial roadside development 
and the amount of commercial acreage far exceeds projected future 
needs.

2 ON-HIGHWAY NODES
This concept illustrates the establishment of clustered development 
nodes at the following key intersections along the highway:

• 2600 South in Nibley 
• 3200 South in Nibley
• 4400 South in Wellsville
• 5000 South in Wellsville
• Center Street in Wellsville 

3 OFF-HIGHWAY NODES
This concept investigates the establishment of clustered development 
400’ from the highway edge at the following key intersections:

• 2600 South in Nibley 
• 3200 South in Nibley
• 4400 South in Wellsville
• 5000 South in Wellsville
• Center Street in Wellsville 

4 IN-TOWN DEVELOPMENT
This concept illustrates shifting commercial development away from 
the highway and into the adjacent communities. The concept helps 
strengthens the rural feel of the corridor while establishing Nibley and 
Wellsville as corridor “places”, destinations and towns.

REFINING THE ALTERNATIVES

The four Alternative Planning Concepts were presented at a Public 
Workshop, where comments and ideas were solicited. The results 
were then presented to the Steering Committee for additional input 
and direction. Based on these contributions, the Landmark Design 
Team developed a preliminary preferred option, (see Design Team 
Recommended Direction page A-17 for details) which combines elements 
of the four alternatives with ideas and suggestions provided.  Some of the 
key ideas contained in the Design Team Recommended Direction include 
the following:

• Limits highway development to “clustered nodes” at the following 
existing and proposed controlled intersections: 

 
 - SR23/Center Street (Wellsville)
 - Main Street/5000 South (Wellsville)
 - 4400 South (Wellsville)
 - 3200 South (Nibley)
 - 2600 South (Nibley)
 - 1000 West Gateway Commercial Area (Logan);
 
• Establishes a 200’ Open Space buffer on each side of the highway 

adjacent to the nodes; 

• Establishes 1,000’ Open Space buffers on each side of the highway 
between the nodes. This is intended to maintain the unique views and 
connections with the surrounding landscape, thereby avoiding the 
need for noise barriers. It also encourages traditional agricultural uses 
and practices to continue within the buffers;

• Incorporates a continuous multi-use path within the 1,000’ buffer;

• Encourages the integration of residential, commercial, mixed use 
and industrial uses within the cities, thereby eliminating excessive 
development adjacent to the highway;

• Prohibits strip development along the highway; 

• Prohibits the development of new residential uses along the highway 
with the open space buffers and at each node; and

• Reduces the amount of land earmarked for commercial uses at each 
node to meet realistic market projections.

IMPLEMENTATION GOALS

Based on an analysis of existing conditions and key issues, the Cache 
Valley South Corridor Plan must achieve the following to be successful:

1. Create a design for transportation, on and adjacent to the corridor, 
which facilitates the effi cient fl ow of goods, services, and travelers 
to sustain business and industry in Cache Valley for many years to 
come. 

2. Ensure the participation of all government entities within the 
planning area toward a comprehensive vision and the coordinated 
management of future growth along the corridor. 

3. Create a plan which directs new growth consistent with the principles 
of the Envision Cache Valley process and is specifi c regarding future 
land uses, future roadways, and vehicular access points. 

4. Maintain the sweeping views of adjacent landscapes and destinations 
along the corridor. 

5. Support thoughtful development at key intersections along the corridor 
that make a strong and lasting impression about this special place. 

6. Establish an appropriate buffer between the highway and 
development in the three communities. 

7. Preserve and protect sensitive lands in order to maintain the integrity 
of the surrounding environment, and the experience of traveling 
through the corridor. 

8. Preserve prime farmland and sensitive lands in order to maintain 
the rich agricultural heritage of the corridor and valley.  This will be a 
challenge as population grows and highway traffi c increases.



Appendix A-14 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Current Direction

Overview
This plan illustrates the current South Corridor development direction as 
represented by the Future Land Use plans of Wellsville Nibley, Logan and Cache 
County.  The plans are in general agreement regarding the conservation of 
sensitive lands along the Little Bear River and other waterways, the preservation 
of prime agricultural land, and the aptness of low-density rural residential uses in 
these areas. However, there are signifi cant differences between the treatment of 
commercial and residential development.

Summary
Having agreement on the conservation of sensitive and prime agricultural lands 
is indicative of the cooperation and unifi ed planning vision that is necessary to 
maintain the special qualities of the South Corridor. The vision of large swaths of 
highway commercial development will signifi cantly impact the highway experience, 
which will be acerbated by the fact that that the amount of land designated for these 
purposes in Wellsville and Nibley far exceeds long range needs. Similarly, allowing 
residential development along the highway, even with 200’ buffers, can have 
signifi cant negative impact on residents and highway motorists alike, particularly if 
sound walls and berms are eventually required. 

Since only a small portion of the highway commercial and residential land has 
been developed, opportunity exists to reconsider the amount, location and type of 
development along the corridor.  Roadblocks for achieving such a vision include 
the lack of cooperation between the three communities, an inability to make 
compromises, and the diffi culty of considering new ideas.

South Campus

Se
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

n 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

ing
 sh

ee
t f

or
 th

is 
ar

ea

Wellsville
• The existing town and bulk of future development is located on the west side 

of the highway, while the bulk of commercial development is proposed on the 
eastern side of the road. 

• The town currently has few commercial enterprises, Wellsville will continue 
as a residential “bedroom community” in the future. 

• The highest residential densities are found in the town center, decreasing in 
density toward the edtges. 

• Low-density residential uses are allowed adjacent to the highway in 
conjunction with the establishment of a 200’ open space buffer. No other 
signifi cant buffers are required along the corridor.  It is debatable whether 
200’ is adequate to protect future residents from future road noise and/or to 
avoid the visual impacts related to the highway.

• A relatively small, partially-developed cluster of Highway Commercial 
is located at intersection of highway and SR 23 (Center Street). A large 
Commercial/Industrial cluster is designated between 4300 South and 5000 
South, primarily on the east (undeveloped) side of the highway. 

• Highway Commercial acreage far exceeds anticipated needs for the next 50 
years.

Nibley
• The existing town is located east of the highway. Residential growth has been rapid in 

recent years.
• No residential uses are envisioned immediately adjacent to the highway.
• There is no discernable town structure or layout, although a future City Center is planned 

near the intersection of 3200 South and Highway 165.
• A narrow strip of proposed Highway Commercial, Industrial and Neighborhood Center 

land lines both sides of the highway for approximately 1.25 miles. The intent is to provide 
access using a system of highway frontage roads. With the exception of a small and 
controversial development on the west side of the highway, and some limited industrial/
mixed uses on the east side, most of the highway zones are undeveloped. 

• The planned highway commercial acreage far exceeds anticipated needs for the next 50 
years.

• Land surrounding the existing commercial development on the west side of the highway 
was recently incorporated into Logan City as agricultural/residential farmland. Nibley has 
strongly objected to this action.

Logan
• The north end of corridor marks the southern entrance into 

Logan.
• Gateway Commercial spans both sides of the highway in 

this area. The intent is to use special design guidelines 
to create a strong and unifi ed entrance experience into 
the city. Much of this area has either been developed or 
serviced for future development.

• Beyond the Gateway Commercial area is a mix of 
commercial, residential, open space conservation and 
agricultural preservation/farmland conservation lands.

The commercial and industrial land illustrated 
represents the Future Land Use Vision of 
Nibley City. The bulk of this land was recently 
incorporated into Logan City (see Existing 
Land Use Map).

This site is located in unincorporated Cache County and 
is currently proposed for annexation by both Nibley City 
and Wellsville. The commercial use illustrated represents 
the Future Land Use Vision of Nibley City. The Wellsville 
Future Land Use Plan indicates this area would be 
Agricultural Preservation/Residential Farmland use.

200’ buffer required in Wellsville where 
residential uses abut the highway.

Little Bear River

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Hi
gh

wa
y 8

9/
91

Existing Commercial 
Development

Future
Commercial (typ.)

Future
Commercial (typ.)

Future
Industrial (typ.)

Existing Industrial

Realigned
Intersection

Realigned
Intersection

Driver’s  
Viewpoint-

Current Direction - Details

Birdseye view looking northeast from 3200 South intersection toward Logan.

Highway view looking northeast along the highway toward Logan. Vantage point is 600’ south of the 3200 South 
intersection

The area between 2600 South and 3200 South along Highway 89/91 in Nibley has been selected to illustrate the detailed implications of the four development alternatives. 

The possible scale, form and layout of the Current Direction are illustrated in the plan drawing. Please note that the plan illustrates buildout in 2060 as depicted in the Nibley Future Land 
Use Plan, including the excess amount of commercial land. The amount and continuity of commercial uses would likely be signifi cantly less than depicted.

The perspective sketches illustrate the three-dimensional characteristics of the concept near the 3200 South intersection. Views are provided both from the air and at ground level. 

Images of appropriate building forms and architecture are also included. 

3200 South

2600 South

2600 South

3200 South

Frontage Road (typ.)

stream

MaterialsInspiration

Buildings and Forms

Places and Destinations



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-15

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

On-Highway Alternative

Overview
This alternative illustrates the clustering of commercial uses at the following key 
intersections along the highway:

• 1000 West in the Logan (Existing Gateway Commercial)
• 2600 South in Nibley 
• 3200 South in Nibley
• 4300 South in Wellsville
• Center Street in Wellsville (Modifi ed Highway Commercial)

The total amount of commercial land has been reduced to refl ect projected long-term needs 
in 2060. Commercial uses in Nibley are clustered on both sides of the highway at the 2600 
South and 3200 South intersections; the largest amount of development is illustrated on the 
eastern “town” side of the highway. Existing commercial uses such as Petersen’s Farmers 
Market are incorporated into the overall design.  Other existing uses could by retained or 
phased out in the long-term as the highway is expanded and improved. 

Commercial Development in Wellsville is located on the west side of the highway at the 
Center Street intersection, and on the east side of the highway adjacent to the proposed 
4300 South intersection. 

A 200’ highway open space buffer/development setback is proposed on each sid eof the 
highway within the new commercial clusters, helping to minimize the visual impact of 
development from the highway, while allowing each intersection to become a discernable 
commercial destination and a positive community gateway.  

Beyond the commercial intersections, a 750’ open space buffer/development setback is 
proposed to maintain existing views of the surrounding landscape, and to help avoid the 
need for unsightly walls, berms and vegetation to mitigate the effects of traffi c noise. 

Se
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

n 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

ing
 sh

ee
t f

or
 th

is 
ar

ea

South Campus

Summary
The establishment of on-highway commercial nodes and the establishment of a two-tier 
system of roadside buffers supports a unifi ed corridor experience.  Since only a small portion 
of commercial and residential development has taken place along the highway, there is 
opportunity to implement this concept and maintain the special qualities of the corridor with 
minimal adjustments. 

Threats to achieving this vision include a lack of cooperation between the three communities, 
the inability to make compromises, and the diffi culty of reconsidering established ideas.

Little Bear River

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

On-Highway Alternative - Details
The area between 2600 South and 3200 South along Highway 89/91 in Nibley has been selected to illustrate the implications of the On-Highway alternative.

The possible scale, form and layout are illustrated in the plan drawing. The perspective sketches illustrate the three-dimensional characteristics of the alternative around 3200 South, 
both from the air and ground vantage points. 

Images of appropriate building forms and architecture are also included.

Birdseye view looking in an easterly direction from 3200 South intersection toward Logan.

Highway view looking northeast along the highway toward Logan. Vantage point is 600’ south of the 3200 South intersection

3200 South

2600 South

3200 South Hi
gh

wa
y 8

9/
91

Realigned
Intersection

Realigned
Intersection

2600 South

Existing Commercial 
Development

stream

Future
Commercial (typ.)

Existing
Industrial (typ.)

200’ Set-back/Buffer 
each side of highway

200’ Set-back/Buffer 
each side of highway

MaterialsInspiration

Buildings and Forms

Places and Destinations



Appendix A-16 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Off-Highway Alternative

Overview
This alternative illustrates the establishment of Off-Highway commercial clusters at 
key intersections along the highway as follows:

• 1000 West in the Logan (Existing Gateway Commercial)
• 2600 South in Nibley 
• 3200 South in Nibley
• 4300 South in Wellsville
• Center Street in Wellsville (Modifi ed Highway Commercial)

The total amount of commercial land has been reduced to refl ect projected long-
term needs in 2060. Commercial uses in Nibley are concentrated on the east 
(town) side of the highway, with limited development on the west side of the 2600 
South intersection to “complete” the existing commercial development located 
there. Commercial Development in Wellsville is located on the west side of the 
highway around Center Street, and on the east side around 4300 South. East side 
commercial has been moved away from the highway to maintain the visual integrity 
of the surroundings.

Existing commercial uses can be incorporated into the overall design where 
feasible. A 400’ open space buffer/development setback is proposed on both 
sides of the highway throughout the corridor, including the commercial clusters.  In 
addition to minimizing the visual impact of the development from the highway and 
avoiding the need for sound walls and berms, this will promote a unifi ed corridor 
experience.

Se
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

n 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

ing
 sh

ee
t f

or
 th

is 
ar

ea

South Campus
4

Summary
The establishment of on-highway commercial nodes and a unifi ed roadside open space 
buffer creates a cohesive corridor experience while meeting the future commercial needs 
of Wellsville, Nibley and Logan.  Since only a small portion of commercial and residential 
development has taken place along the highway, there is opportunity to implement this 
concept with minimal disruption. 

Threats to achieving this vision include a lack of cooperation between the three communities, 
the inability to make compromises, and the diffi culty of reconsidering established ideas.

Little Bear River

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Off-Highway Alternative - Details

Birdseye view looking in an easterly direction from 3200 South intersection toward Logan.

Highway view looking northeast along the highway toward Logan. Vantage point is 600’ south of the 3200 South 
intersection

3200 South

2600 South

3200 South Hi
gh

wa
y 8

9/
91

Realigned
Intersection

Realigned
Intersection

2600 South

Existing Commercial 
Development

stream

Future
Commercial (typ.)

Future
Commercial (typ.)

Existing
Imdustrial (typ.)

400’ Set-back/Buffer 
each side of highway

400’ Set-back/Buffer 
each side of highway

MaterialsInspiration

Buildings and Forms

Places and Destinations



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-17

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

In-Town Alternative
Overview
This alternative illustrates the possiblities of moving commercial development from 
the highway into the adjacent communities. This will help unify the corridor while 
strengthening Nibley and Wellsville as “places” and destinations.

In-town commercial development in Nibley is concentrated along 2600 South 
and 3200 South from approximately 1000 West eastward. The concept illustrates 
linking new neighborhood centers and a town center along mixed-use Main Street 
(3200 South).  A similar concept applies to Wellsville, where Main Street would 
be developed into a mixed use corridor, extending northward along Center Street 
toward a new commercial center located on the east side of Highway 23. 

The total amount of commercial land has been adjusted to refl ect projected long-
term needs in 2060. Existing uses along the highway could be incorporated into the 
overall design where feasible. 

A 1000’ open space buffer/development setback is proposed along each side of 
the highway.  This will minimize the visual impacts of the highway, avoid the need 
for sound walls and berms, and help create a holistic corridor expression and 
experience.

South Campus

Summary
The In-town development concept represents a major departure from existing plans 
and community development visions. The concept is holistic, minimizing the impacts 
of growth and increased highway traffi c, while reinforcing the importance and 
function of the towns. This concept requires broad acceptance and strong political 
will.

Threats to achieving this vision include a lack of cooperation between the three 
communities, the inability to make compromises, the diffi culty of reconsidering 
established ideas, and the lack of community acceptance.

New Nibley Main Street

Nibley City CenterNibley Neighborhood 
Center (typ.)

Nibley Neighborhood 
Center (typ.)

New Wellsville Mixed 
Use Main Street

New Commercial 
Center/Destination

Little Bear River

Materials Inspiration

Places and Destinations

Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

Design Team Recommended Direction
This concept combines elements of the On-Highway, Off-Highway, and In-Town alternatives with ideas received 
from the public as part of the Workshop process. The result is a comprehensive development vision for the 
corridor. 

A summary of the key ideas and elements of the concept follows:

Encourage the integration of residential, commercial, mixed use and industrial uses within the existing towns 
of Wellsville, Nibley and Logan to the greatest degree possible.  
Do not allow strip development along the highway.
Do not allow additional residential uses to be developed along the highway. This will alleviate the need for 
sound walls, berms and other obtrusive buffering techniques, and help preserve the character and visual 
attributes of the surrounding landscape.  
Adjust the amount of land earmarked for commercial uses to match realistic market projections.
Limit highway development to “clustered nodes” at existing and proposed controlled intersections, as follow: 

 - SR23/Center Street (Wellsville)
 - Main Street/5000 South (Wellsville)
 - 4400 South (Wellsville)
 - 3200 South (Nibley)
 - 2600 South (Nibley)
 - 1000 West Gateway Commercial Area (Logan) 

community. For example, 2600 South might primarily be a commercial/big box node, 3200 South a mixed use 
node, and 4400 South an industrial node. 
Establish a 1,000’ Open Space buffer on each side of the highway between the controlled intersections/nodes. 
This will help maintain the unique views and connections with the surrounding landscape, and continuation of 
traditional agricultural uses and practices.
Establish a 200’ Open Space buffer on each side of the highway within the controlled intersection/nodes. This 
will enhance the sense of arrival and the establishment of these locations into distinct places and community 
gateways.
Incorporate a continuous multi-use path within the 1,000’ open space buffer. This facility will link other county 
pathways along the corrider, and facilitate movement of agricultural vehicle and farm equipment along the 
corridor.

Wellsville City
The need for commercial land through 2060 is limited. Future commercial 
development should be centered on existing and future controlled 
intersections to the greatest degree possible.
A large industrial site is envisioned on the east side of the highway south 
of the USU South Campus/4400 South. Agricultural industries should 
be encouraged closest to the highway, with other commercial/industrial 
enterprises located to the east.   
Wellsville has adequate land available for residential growth far from the 
highway. No future residential uses should be allowed within 1,000 feet of the 
highway, thus alleviating the need for sound walls, berms and other sound 
mitigation techniques, and helping to maintain associated open space and 
visual characteristics.
Encourage the establishment of well-designed commercial clusters at the 
5000 South and Center Street intersections.  Ensure that the acreage 

Consider the establishment of limited commercial enterprises as part of the 
American West Heritage Center. Possible uses should be sympathetic to the 
nature and function of the facility, such as restaurants and agricultural supply 
stores. 

Nibley City
Encourage commercial and mixed use development within the established 
town core on the east side of the highway.
Develop the 2600 and 3200 South intersections as distinct nodes, each with 

a commercial/big box node, 3200 South a mixed use node. Ensure that the 

Nibley has adequate land available for residential growth far from the highway. 
Future residential uses should not be allowed within 1,000 feet of the highway, 
thus alleviating the need for sound walls, berms and other sound mitigation 
techniques, and helping to maintain associated open space and visual 
characteristics along the highway.

Logan City
Complete development of 
the Gateway Commercial 
area as envisioned, utilizing 
established design guidelines 
and to create a strong and 

into the city. 
No future residential uses 
should be allowed within 
1,000 feet of the highway 
on the south end of the city 
limits along Highway 89/91. 
This will alleviate the need for 
sound walls, berms and other 
sound mitigation techniques, 
and maintain the associated 
open space and visual 
characteristics along the 
highway.

Future access road 
adjusted to the south

Encourage the development 
of 3200 South east of City Hall 
into Main Street

Encourage the 
transformation of 
Main Street into a 
mixed use avenue.

Adjust geometry of inter-
sections to accomodate 
long-term transportation 
requirements.



Appendix A-18 Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan

RETAIL DEVELOPMENT

The following are defi nitions of shopping center characteristics from the 
ULI study, which help illustrate why community and neighborhood uses 
are most appropriate within the corridor.

SUPER REGIONAL
Super regional shopping centers generally have three or more 
anchors, and provide a full depth of shopping goods, including clothing 
and accessories, home furnishings, gifts and specialty items, and 
electronics.  Increasingly, they also provide food, personal services, and 
entertainment.  While traditionally anchors have been department stores, 
new-generation anchors include food courts, large off-price category 
killers, megaplex cinemas, and specialized, large-scale entertainment 
attractions.  These uses are not envisioned within the corridor.  

REGIONAL 
A regional mall has a similar function to a super regional mall, but with 
fewer anchors and somewhat smaller range and strength in attracting 
customers. These uses are not envisioned within the corridor.

COMMUNITY
Community centers were initially developed around a junior department 
store or large variety store as anchor tenants (in addition to a 
supermarket).  Of all the basic center types, community centers have 
undergone and continue to undergo the most changes.  Anchors today 
have a wide range of possibilities including discount stores (such 
as Target), strong specialty stores such as hardware, building/home 
improvement, and category killers (expanded format stores specializing in 
such items as books, sporting goods, and offi ce supplies).  These types 
of centers may be appropriate in the corridor, depending on the 
specifi c role and function of the given cluster.  

The most popular types of community centers are described below.

POWER CENTER
A power center contains somewhere around four category-specifi c 
anchors of 20,000 or more square feet that account for roughly 85 
percent of the total building space.  These anchors often include 
consumer electronics, sporting goods, offi ce supplies, home furnishings, 
home improvement goods, bulk foods, drugs, health and beauty aids, 
toys, and personal computer hardware/software. These types of centers 
may be appropriate in the corridor, depending on the specifi c role 
and function of the given cluster.  

TOWN CENTER
A town center contains at least two pedestrian streets with street-front 
retail and public space.  Many town centers also have residential or civic 

uses integrated with the site.  These types of shopping centers can be 
appropriate.

OUTLET CENTER
An outlet center contains manufacturers’ and labels’ own branded stores 
where products are sold directly to the public. General requirements are 
for a population ranging between one million and two million within a 100-
mile radius, good traffi c counts and visibility, at least 20 miles distance 
from a regular shopping center, and fairly high tourism levels.  Cache 
County does not meet these requirements and will not do so in the near 
term. These types of centers may be appropriate in the corridor, 
depending on the specifi c role and function of the given cluster.  

OFF-PRICE CENTERS
Off-price centers focus on stores that offer out-of-season, surplus 
stock, or discontinued items at discounted prices.  Apparel and general 
merchandise are common items sold at off-price centers. These types 
of centers may be appropriate in the corridor, depending on the 
specifi c role and function of the given cluster.  

LIFESTYLE CENTER
A lifestyle center typically contains upscale national chain specialty stores, 
dining and entertainment in an open air setting.  It is usually not anchored 
by a single large tenant but rather by a grouping of highly branded 
stores, as well as tenants such as bookstores and cinemas.  There is a 
stronger emphasis on design, landscaping, and outdoor amenities (i.e., 
fountains and street furniture). These types of shopping centers can be 
appropriate.

SALES LEAKAGE ANALYSIS

A sales gap (aka “leakage”) analysis evaluates the total purchases 
made by residents inside and outside of a community (hence, the term 
“leakage” for sales lost outside the community).  Lost sales represent 
opportunities for communities to attract local shoppers back to their area.

This type of analysis fi rst identifi es sales within the State of Utah for each 
major Standard Industrial Classifi cation (SIC) code category and then 
calculates the average sales per capita in each SIC category.  Per capita 
sales in the community are then compared to average per capita sales 
statewide in order to estimate what portion of resident purchases are 
being made within the study area boundaries, and what amount is leaving 
the study area.  The resident purchases being made outside of the area 
represent an opportunity for the community to recapture some of these 
lost sales.

CACHE COUNTY AND LOGAN
The per capita sales for communities within Cache County were 
estimated using the historic retail sales for each community and the 
historic population fi gures (calculated from the 2000 and 2010 Census 
fi gures). The per capita sales were then compared to the State to 
determine the leakage within these communities. Not surprisingly, there is 
little leakage occurring in the County, with Logan experiencing a positive 
capture rate in overall sales. This is likely due to Logan serving as a 
regional hub for the County. 

POPULATION PROJECTIONS

YEAR 2000 2010 
Census

2009 
Estimate

AAGR 2000-
2010

Cache 
County

91,897 112,656 110,385 2.1%

Hyde Park 2,955 3,833 3,734 2.6%
Hyrum 6,316 7,609 7,469 1.9%
Logan 42,670 48,174 47,593 1.2%
Millville 1,507 1,829 1,793 2.0%
Nibley 2,045 5,438 4,934 10.3%
North Logan 6,163 8,269 8,030 3.0%
Paradise 759 904 888 1.8%
Providence 4,377 7,075 6,743 4.9%
River 
Heights

1,496 1,734 1,709 1.5%

Smithfi eld 7,261 9,495 9,244 2.7%
Wellsville 2,728 3,432 3,353 2.3%



Appendix Cache Valley South Corridor Development Plan A-19

SALES LEAKAGE BY ZIP CODE
Sales leakage is more diffi cult to estimate for smaller communities as 
detailed data is not available publicly from the Tax Commission (unless 
there are ten or more outlets in a retail category).  Zip code level sales 
data was used to determine the sales leakage for surrounding areas; 
however, zip code boundaries do not always follow municipal boundaries 
precisely. The Tax Commission provides sales tax fi gures for the following 
zip codes within the study area.

ZIP CODES IN STUDY AREA

City Zip Code 2009 Population
Hyde Park 84318        3,734 
Hyrum 84319        7,469 
Millville 84326        1,793 
Providence 84332        6,743 
Smithfi eld 84335        9,244 
Wellsville 84339        3,353 
North Logan 84341        8,030 

Considering the differences between zip code boundaries and the 
comparison of sales within zip codes to population within municipal 
boundaries, this process provides only a rough estimate of sales leakage 
for these areas for comparative purposes.

SALES LEAKAGE ANALYSIS

Per Capita 
Leakage 

2008

Per Capita 
Leakage 

2009

Capture 
Rate 2008

Capture 
Rate 2009

Hyde Park ($8,021) ($7,831) 33% 28%
Hyrum ($9,797) ($8,262) 18% 24%
Millville ($9,024) ($8,607) 24% 21%
Providence ($4,062) ($3,126) 66% 71%
Smithfi eld ($6,475) ($5,524) 46% 49%
Wellsville ($10,634) ($10,108) 11% 7%
North Logan $39,782 $36,692 435% 437%



 
 
 

 
January 25, 2016 
 
 
 
Dear Audit Firm: 
 
Attached is a request for proposal for audit services for Nibley City for the year ending June 30, 
2016 and the succeeding four years. 

Your proposal must be submitted to David Zook, City Manager, 455 West 3200 South, Utah  
84321, no later than noon on February 19, 2016 as indicated on page 1 of the Request for 
Proposals.  Selection of the Auditor is expected to be made on March 17, 2016. 

To be considered in the bidding process, the proposing independent auditing firm must meet the 
following minimum criteria: 

1. The firm must meet the Government Auditing Standards’ continuing professional education, 
independence, peer review, and licensing requirements. 

2. The firm must have had experience in governmental auditing.  The experience must have 
been on a City-wide basis, and an opinion must have been issued. 

3. The firm must be able to meet the reporting deadlines described in the Request for Proposals. 
 
We look forward to working with you in utilizing the excellent services the auditing profession 
has to offer. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
David Zook 
City Manager 
435.752.0431 
david@nibleycity.com 
 
 



 

A-1 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Financial Audit for 
Nibley City 

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

The purpose of this request for proposals (RFP) is to enter into a contract with a qualified 
independent auditing firm (Contractor) to provide audit services.  It is anticipated that this RFP 
may result in a contract award to a single contractor. 

This RFP is designed to provide interested offeror’s with sufficient basic information to submit 
proposals meeting minimum requirements, but is not intended to limit a proposal's content or 
exclude any relevant or essential data.  Offeror’s are at liberty and are encouraged to expand 
upon the specifications to evidence service capability under any agreement. 

BACKGROUND  

Nibley City, 455 West 3200 South, Utah, 84321, was incorporated under the laws of the state of 
Utah and currently has: 
 

• General Fund 
• Capital Projects Fund 
• Special Revenue Fund EMS 
• Water Fund  
• Sewer Fund 
• Storm Sewer 
• Municipal Building Authority 

 
The City uses Caselle software for its accounting applications.  

The City is required by law to provide an annual audit of its financial statements by a Certified 
Public Accountant in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.  

This requirement includes: 1) a financial statement audit in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 2) a State Compliance Audit, in 
accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State 
Auditor. 

Prior year reports for the City can be found on the Office of the Utah State Auditor’s website at:  
http://auditor.utah.gov/accountability/financial-reports-of-local-governments/. 

SUBMITTING YOUR PROPOSAL 

NOTICE:  By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, the offeror is acknowledging that 
the requirements, scope of work, and evaluation process outlined in the RFP are fair, equitable, 
not unduly restrictive, understood and agreed to.  Any exceptions to the content of the RFP 
must be protested to the City prior to the closing date and time for submission of the proposal. 

 



 

A-2 

Proposals must be received by the submission deadline of February 19, 2016, no later than 
noon mountain time.   Proposals received after the deadline will be late and ineligible for 
consideration.  

The method of submitting your proposal is electronically in PDF format to: 
david@nibleycity.com.   

Selection of the Contractor is expected to be made on March 17, 2016, and all offeror’s 
submitting proposals will be notified immediately as to the selection results. 

LENGTH OF CONTRACT 

The audit contract resulting from this RFP will cover the annual audits for each of the fiscal 
years ending June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2020, subject to an annual performance 
evaluation, budget appropriations, and the needs of the City.   

The City reserves the right to review the contract on a regular basis regarding performance and 
cost analysis and may negotiate price and service elements during the term of the contract. 

STANDARD CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The City retains the right to refuse to negotiate on exceptions should the exceptions be 
excessive or not in the best interest of the City, or if the negotiations could result in excessive 
costs to the City or could adversely impact existing time constraints. 

Wherever the following terms appear in this solicitation or reference is made to them, they shall 
be interpreted according to the section of Utah Code indicated:  bid, bidder, or quote as defined 
in 63G-6a-103(31); RFP, or Request for Proposals, as defined in 63G-6a-103(39).   

All offeror’s should note that Utah Code 63G-6a-402(6) requires the City, for the duration of any 
contract awarded through this RFP, to make available contact information of the winning 
contractor to the Department of Workforce Services. 

DISCUSSIONS WITH OFFERORS (ORAL PRESENTATION) 

An oral presentation by an offeror to clarify a proposal may be required at the sole discretion of 
the City.  However, the City may award a contract based on the initial proposals received 
without discussion with the offeror.  If oral presentations are required, they will be scheduled 
after the submission of proposals.  Oral presentations will be made at the offeror’s expense. 

 

PROTECTED INFORMATION  

The Government Records Access and Management Act (GRAMA), Utah Code, Subsection 
63G-2-305, provides in part that: 

The following records are protected if properly classified by a government City: 

(1) trade secrets as defined in Section 13-24-2 if the person submitting the trade 
secret has provided the governmental City with the information specified in 
Section 63G-2-309 (Business Confidentiality Claims); 



 

A-3 

(2) commercial information or non-individual financial information obtained from a 
person if: 

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to result in 
unfair competitive injury to the person submitting the information or would 
impair the ability of the governmental City to obtain necessary information 
in the future; 

(b) the person submitting the information has a greater interest in prohibiting 
access than the public in obtaining access; and 

(c) the person submitting the information has provided the governmental City 
with the information specified in Section 63G-2-309; 

* * * * * 

(6) records, the disclosure of which would impair governmental procurement 
proceedings or give an unfair advantage to any person proposing to enter into 
a contract or agreement with a governmental City, except . . . that this 
Subsection (6) does not restrict the right of a person to see bids submitted to or 
by a governmental City after bidding has closed;. . .  

GRAMA provides that trade secrets, commercial information or non-individual financial 
information may be protected by submitting a Claim of Business Confidentiality. 

To protect information under a Claim of Business Confidentiality, the offeror must: 

1. Provide a written Claim of Business Confidentiality at the time the information 
(proposal) is provided to the City, 

2. Include a concise statement of reasons supporting the Claim of Business 
Confidentiality (Subsection 63G-2-309(1)), and 

3. Submit an electronic “redacted” (excluding protected information) copy of your 
proposal response.  Copy must clearly be marked “Redacted Version.”  

A Claim of Business Confidentiality may be appropriate for information such as client lists and 
non-public financial statements.  Pricing and service elements may not be protected.  The 
Claim of Business Confidentiality must be submitted with your proposal on the form which may 
be accessed at:   

http://www.purchasing.utah.gov/contract/documents/confidentialityclaimform.doc 

An entire proposal cannot be identified as “PROTECTED”, “CONFIDENTIAL” or 
“PROPRIETARY” and may be considered non-responsive if marked as such. 

All materials submitted become the property of the City.  Materials may be evaluated by anyone 
designated by the City as part of the proposal evaluation committee.  Materials submitted may 
be returned only at the City’s option. 

DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK 

A. AUDIT STANDARDS 

http://www.purchasing.utah.gov/contract/documents/confidentialityclaimform.doc


 

A-4 

The auditor shall perform a financial audit, a state compliance audit of the City for each 
fiscal year of the contract period in accordance with the following: 

• Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated 
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA);  

• The AICPA Audits of State and Local Governmental Units audit and accounting guide;   

• Government Auditing Standards, 2011 revision, published by the U.S. Government 
Accountability Office; 

• For the state compliance audit – the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the 
Office of the Utah State Auditor; 

B. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Financial Report – The auditor shall audit the financial statements and records of the 
City and shall issue an auditor's opinion on those financial statements.  Such financial 
statements shall be prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

The auditor will be involved in drafting, typing, and printing financial statements.  The 
City will provide the auditor with a pdf bookmarked auditing book with backup and excel 
schedules of audit materials to save time and being at the Nibley City offices. 

2. Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters – The auditor shall issue a report on internal control 
over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards.  

3. Report Required for State Compliance Audit – The auditor shall prepare and include a 
statement expressing positive assurance of compliance with State fiscal laws and other 
financial issues related to the expenditure of funds received from federal, state, or local 
governments identified in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the 
Utah State Auditor (This statement is in addition to the compliance opinion required as 
part of a single audit.) 

4. Management Letter – As appropriate, the auditor shall prepare a comprehensive 
management letter including the auditor's findings and recommendations relative to the 
internal control over financial reporting, compliance with laws and regulations, as 
applicable, and adherence to generally accepted accounting principles.  

The auditor shall request written responses from City officials for each recommendation 
and shall include such responses in the reports.  If the City declines the opportunity to 
respond, the auditor shall so state in their report.  

5. Reporting Deadlines – The audit must be completed and 10 copies of each of the 
reports must be submitted to the City by within 120 days after the end of each fiscal 
year.  

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 

Interested offeror’s should include the following information in their proposal to perform the 
audits. 



 

A-5 

A. Profile of the Independent Auditor 

Provide general background information which includes: 

1. The organization and size of the offeror, whether it is local, regional, national or 
international in operations. 

2. The location of the office from which the work is to be done and the number of 
professional staff, by staff level, employed at that office. 

3. A positive statement that the following mandatory criteria are satisfied: 

(a) An affirmation that the offeror is properly licensed for practice as a certified 
public accountant in the State of Utah. 

(b) An affirmation that the offeror meets the independence requirements of AICPA 
Rule 101 and the Government Auditing Standards. 

(c) An affirmation that the offeror meets the continuing professional education 
requirements contained in the Government Auditing Standards. 

4. A copy of the offeror’s most recent peer review report. 

B. Offeror's Qualifications 

1. Identify the audit partners, audit managers, field supervisors and other staff who will 
work on the audit, including staff from other than the local office.  Résumés should be 
included which outline relevant experience and continuing professional education for 
the staff auditors up to the individual with final responsibility for the audit. 

2. Describe the recent local office auditing experience similar to the type of audit 
requested. 

3. If other auditors are to participate in the audit, those auditors should be required to 
provide similar information. 

 

C. Offeror's Approach to the Audit 

Submit a general audit work plan to accomplish the scope defined in these guidelines.  The 
audit work plan should demonstrate the offeror's understanding of the audit requirements 
and the audit tests and procedures to be applied in completing the audit plan.  The plan 
should detail the expected number of audit hours for the financial audit, and compliance 
audit separately on an annual basis for each fiscal year being audited.  The plan should 
also identify the breakdown of total hours between staff, in-charges, and higher levels.  The 
planned use of specialists, if any, should also be specified. 

D. Time Requirements 

Detail how the reporting deadline requirements of the audit will be met. 

E. Comprehensive Not-To-Exceed Fee 



 

A-6 

Supply the billing rates, estimated number of billable hours, other billable expenses and a 
comprehensive "not-to-exceed" fee for the audit, inclusive of travel, per diem and all other 
out-of-pocket expenses.  The not-to-exceed fee information requested above should be 
provided as a separate amount for each fiscal year being audited. 

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS 

A. Document Retention – Workpapers and reports for the audit must be retained for a period 
of five years after the completion of the audit and made available for inspection by the City 
or government auditors, including the Office of the Utah State Auditor, if requested by them. 

B. Compensation for Services – Payment for the audit will be made by the City upon receipt of 
the audit reports. 

C. Availability of Staff – The City’s staff will be available to prepare schedules, trial balances, 
and provide documentation to assist the auditor as their schedules permit during the course 
of the audit. 

  



 

A-7 

EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 

The criteria listed below will be considered when making an evaluation of the proposals.   

% OF SCORING 
WEIGHT 

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

Mandatory Licensing, independence, CPE, peer review, and ability to meet audit deadlines. 

30% Technical Experience of the Firm – Considering governmental audit experience, 
as well as size and structure of the CPA firm. 

10% Qualifications of Staff  

15% Responsiveness of the proposal in clearly stating an understanding of the audit 
services to be performed: 

(1) Appropriateness and adequacy of proposed procedures. 
(2) Reasonableness of time estimates and total audit hours. 
(3) Appropriateness of assigned staff levels. 

45% Cost of the Audit  

Right to Reject – The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted and to 
request additional information from all offeror’s.  Any contract awarded will be made to the 
offeror who, based on evaluation of all responses (applying all criteria and oral interviews if 
necessary), is determined to be the best to perform the audit. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

The individual listed below may be contacted for information.  However, before making contact 
we request you review the City’s prior year financial statements and auditor's reports which can 
be found http://auditor.utah.gov/accountability/financial-reports-of-local-governments/  

  David Sanderson 
 Contract Finance Director 
 801.580.6327 
 dave@dsaccounting.net   
  

http://auditor.utah.gov/accountability/financial-reports-of-local-governments/











	ccagenda 1-21-16
	Agenda Item Report 1-21-16
	Resolution 16-01 - Annual Meeting Schedule
	Stander Color Elevations_Renderings
	Revised Stander Landscape
	SCPG Report
	SCPG-1
	SCPG-2
	SCPG-3

	RFP-for-Financial-Audits Nibley
	Nibley--provisons of the State Law related to closed or executive sessions



